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Financial Summary

MBHE

SEGMENT REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHICAL MARKET

RilE 58 D 2 2 BWA

Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
BELEXRY RIERERK k]
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
2R ZT-hF ZEBE-R"F —T-1nf ZEB-RE —T-1%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BYETRT BETT BET T BETT BETT BETT
Hong Kong N 27,376 17,474 - 16,827 27,376 34,301
Mainland China Bl A 13,327 11,341 - - 13,327 11,341
Total g 40,703 28,815 - 16,827 40,703 45,642
Revenue Shareholders’ funds
Wz RRES
(HK$ Million 7 ¥ & & 7T)
517
323 407
159 1?
105 I
. . . ]
I | | (284)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Dividends per share Net asset value per share
BREE (excluding non-controlling interests)
rE— SRAEFE (FEEFRHLEDS)
(HK cents 7&1ll)
4.6 12.3 10.5
8.4
6.7 I
(8.6)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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Financial Summary

MBFEHME
The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, total T ARREEREREFRAG ([RAA7F])RHE
equity, share capital, results and other financial information of DINGY!I MEBAR (SB[ AEE)RBTAFEHE=A
GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries ST —HBIEFECsEEE BAFE BERE R
(collectively, the “Group”) as of year ended 31 March for the last five IR BB R E A B TS E R o
years.
Financials (HK$ Million) BEE (B%EER) 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
X" —T-RF —T-NF ZT-=F ZT--F
Total assets BEE 1,082 513 509 275 186
Total liabilities BEE 565 727 111 85 34
Total equity BiEs 517 214) 398 190 152
Non-controlling interests ERulegi - 70 ©) ©) (")
Shareholders’ funds BFEES 517 (284) 407 199 159
Share capital e
—in number (Million) -#A (BER) 4,936 3,305 3,305 2,375 2,375
- in value (2012-2013; HK$0.01 -HE(ZF-——Fz-_2-=F:
per share) FRBB0.01T) 49 33 33 24 24
Revenue N M 29 43 67 323
Loss attributable to AAABRIERB A
equity holders of the Company (LB (511) (724) (140) (30) (24)
Per Share Basis (HK cents) SREX (EL)
Loss - Basic BE-EA (11.54) (21.92) (4.47) (1.27) (1.03)
- Diluted o b (11.54) (21.92) (4.49) 1.27) (1.03)
Dividends 8 - - - - 46+
Net asset (iability) value (excluding EE(BE)FE
non-controling interests) (TEEEEHEER) 105 8.6) 12.3 8.4 6.7
Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2012, the management implemented a Mizx: B#EZFT—-—F=A=+—HLEFER EE

capital reorganisation whereby the Company reduced the authorised and
issued share capital through reduction in nominal value of the authorised
and issued share capital to the extent of HK$0.04 per share amounting to
HK$140,000,000 and HK$95,004,000 respectively.

The dividend per share for the year ended 31 March 2012 represented
special dividend of HK4.6 cents per share paid for the year.

ERENEH Bt AQREBEIREATE KB B
TIRAEE S RRE¥0.047T 2 75 250 B BIR S B
140,000,0007T & & #95,004,0007T 2 JATE M B 21T
N

BE_ T —_F-A=1+-HLFEZEBREEAR
FARAEXNFR46ENM 2 FRIR R -

REEEREARAQA 3
ZE-REER
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

By abiding the corporate spirit of “seeking early opportunities with
insight, pursuing excellence, progressing proactively and forging ahead
innovatively”, all over the years, we have all along been adhering to the
industry intrinsic value as the core of our investment philosophy. We
believe all investment values are built on the growth and success of
business operation. We applied the perfect investment evaluation and
management system to select and invest in those enterprises which
have high growth potential and solid business in their own industry
sector. Meanwhile, we also worked closely with the management
teams of prominent enterprises, working together hand in hand to
maximize our own investment value through the joint growth with the
investees.

Like in the past, we continued to move forward dependably in
achieving to “leap into the world with our foothold in China and
become a professional investment institute with international
competitiveness focusing on scalable industry investment”. Apart from
our existing securities trading, loan financing and food and beverages
businesses, during the year, the Group had arranged a general offer of
a joint venture company, which is engaged in financial leasing business
and was established last year, to develop and operate the financial
leasing business and loan financing business in Hong Kong and
Qianhai Shenzhen-Hong Kong cooperation zone in Shenzhen.

During the year, the Group continued the exploration of further
investment in Elemental Minerals Limited proactively. In addition, the
management team of the Company visited different regions in China,
North America and Africa to explore and study other investment
opportunities in resources, mining industry and financial projects, as
well as investments in loan and financial leasing business, etc. The
Company is confident in the prospect of such investment projects. We
will notify our shareholders important information whenever is available.

The loss of the Company during the year was mainly attributable
to the fair value loss of derivate financial liabilities on convertible
bonds of HK$600,000,000 and share-based payment expenses of
over 300,000,000 share options granted during the year calculated
according to the accounting standard, as well as the fair value loss
of securities investment revalued by reference to the market value as
at the balance sheet date. However, these accounting losses did not
have any effect on the cash flow of the Group. The Group’s annual
revenue was mainly contributed by loan financing and financial leasing
businesses, which represented a significant increase as compared to
last year.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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In 2015, the Group mainly focused on the information technology,
medical equipment and clean energy sectors through exploring the
risk investment business in North America by its branch company in
Seattle.

In addition, the Company entered into a Shareholders Agreement
in November 2015 with China-Africa Development Fund, China
Gezhouba Group Corporation International Ltd., China Civil Engineering
Construction Corporation, China Telecom Global Limited, Chiangjiang
Institute of Survey Planning Design and Research and China ENFI
Engineering Co. Ltd. to form a joint venture for the construction of
overseas infrastructure and preliminary development of operating
projects. It is expected that all parities are to invest a total of up to
US$260 million through share subscription, of which US$20 million will
be contributed by the Company.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company also entered
into a letter of intent with D&R Asset Management Group Co., Ltd.
to establish a joint venture company. Both parties wished to leverage
on their respective strengths in the financial market and consolidate
resources with a view to creating a competitive advantage for
developing the fund investment business in China.

In the future, the Group will continue to explore more investment
opportunities, especially in innovative technology and industry 4.0,
medical and healthcare, environmental protection, and infrastructure.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude
and also my sincere thanks to all stakeholders who had made
valuable contributions to the Group this year. They include our loyal
Shareholders, fellow directors of the Company (the “Directors”), our
business partners, our steadfast customers, and those hardworking
and dedicated staff who have longed been supporting us.

Reward Others While Enriching Ourselves, Thus Enlightening Dingyil

LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Chairman’s Statement
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER W RS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s revenue from its continuing operations during the year
under review amounted to HK$41 million or HK$12 million more than
that during the previous year. There was a loss for the year attributable
to the Company’s owners of HK$511 million (2015: HK$724 million)
which included a fair value loss on derivative financial liabilities
amounted to HK$213 million (2015: HK$619 million), unrealised loss
arising from changes in fair value of held for trading investments
amounted to HK$171 million (2015: HK$99 million) and the share-
based payment expenses of HK$111 million (2015: HK$27 million).

The basic and diluted loss per share on ongoing operations was
HK11.535 cents, as compared with loss per share of HK21.915
cents last year, while the overall loss per share for the year was also
HK11.535 cents (2015: HK21.920 cents).

FOOD AND BEVERAGES

The food and beverages segment generated a revenue of HK$8 million
during the year under review (2015: HK$11 million). The segment
reported a loss of HK$1 million (2015: a profit of HK$1 million) for
the current year due to the decrease in turnover and the increase in
gross margin. The profit and loss were contributed by the restaurant in
Beijing, PRC which was acquired on 1 January 2014.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

E A EI =
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SECURITIES TRADING

During the year, the Group has actively involved in the securities and
futures contracts trading business. The majority of the Group’s held for
trading investments are those shares under Hang Seng Index or China
Enterprises Index or H shares. Most of those shares are of China large
corporations (“Entities”) with high trading volumes and large market
capitalization. The Group had achieved realised gain on the disposal
of these shares held for investments amounting to HK$37 million
(2015: HK$12 million) during the year under review. The unrealised
loss of HK$171 million (2015: HK$99 million) arising from changes in
the fair value of the shares still held for investments was recorded as
at year end when the market prices were relatively low. As a result,
the Group reported a segment loss of HK$131 million (2015: HK$90
million) during the year under review. As at 31 March 2016, the Hang
Seng Index was closed at 20,776.70 which was almost the lowest
during the year under review. Given the realised gain during the year,
the Group had shown a good performance in the investments. The
Group considers that the prospects in respect of the shares still held
for investments are healthy. The unrealised loss as recorded at year
end was due to market fluctuation rather than any problem with the
Entities’ fundamentals. The Board understands that the performance
of the investments may be affected by the degree of volatility in the
Hong Kong stock market and subject to other external factors that may
affect their values. Accordingly, the Group will continue to maintain a
diversified portfolio of investment of different segments of markets to
minimize the possible financial risks. Also, the Board will monitor the
performance progress of the investment portfolio closely from time to
time.

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEER W R

FR AEERGHEESRPEANETER-
REBARIBHOIFEEBRERBEREFFED
EEHIHRIBEBTRGO - ZERNDAZEARAE
EaRRXERBATEZFREARCE ([ZE
ER RO -REBEFE AEERLEEHE
BEZZERNESEZR KB E3,7008 T
(ZZT—HF:BH1,200870) - REFR ME
HRE #S58NBEREZRNAANEZHE
G RERBEBEITIETL(ZE—RE B
#9,0008 7T) - At - REIBEFE  NEBEE2H D
HERBE131ET (2T — R F 8 19,0008
) R-ZE—RNEZA=+—R0 EEE&HKT
#20,776.70% 4T BB BT E DUREIR o A F
RZBERKE AEERREFAXRBEETR
o o REBRBDIFIERE ZRM 2 ATRBRE - R
FREFARERBE AR TSR MIEZTE
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XBRARAIEE EHBEE CHMINBRZ Bt
REBBEEFEIFITRAT S B2 E2 T LREA
G URERETEZHBERR I ESEH
FYEEREEE TR I RBER -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EHEEE W RS

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group’s held for

investments were represented as follows:

trading

RZEBE—RER_ETE—RHFE=ZA=+—8 &%
ZT—?VEEE&Q?EZZD—F%IE :

% of  Fair value loss % of total % of % of total
shareholding for the year Fairvalue  assets of the shareholding Fair value assets of the
asat ended asat Group as at asat as at Group as at
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
Company Name/Stock Code 2016 2016 2016 2016 2015 2015 2015
Bz
ZEB-RE R-B-AE R-E-RE
R=%-x& =B=+-B R=B-x§ =ZA=+t-B HKZT-AF WNZT-AF =A=t+-H
ZBR=t-8 ¥z  ZA=t-A tA&@A =A=t-8 =P=t-H hrEEL
LEEB/ROERSE EREAAL MEFE ZARE  BEZESE  GRESSL ZARE  EEZEAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Securities listed in Hong Kong BALTR%
China Construction Bank Corporation (939) REIRRRTRIHERAT(39) 0.014% (38,016) 166,191 15.36% - - -
China Reinsurance (Group) Corporation (1508) PEARR (£B)RABRAA 1.145% (52,350) 159,015 14.70% - - -
(1508)
CITIC Securities Company Linited (6030) RiEBERABRAT6030) 0.190% (11,621) 78,602 7.26% . . -
China Galaxy Securtes Co., Ltd. (6881) REETEERAERAT61) 0.235% (8,831) 65,466 6.05% 0.188% 28247 551%
China Eastern Airlines Corporation Limited (670) FERAMERINERAEG70) 0.218% (12,039) 44,240 4,09% - - -
Industrial and Commercial Bank of FEITERTRINERAR(13%) 0.007% (5,309) 26,040 2.41% - = -
Chin Limited (1398)
Superb Summit International Group Limited (1228) FERBREBERAR(129) 1.270% (3,031) 26,879 2.48% 1.200% 29,910 5.83%
Quam Limited (952) ERERIZRERAR052) 0.818% (9,215) 11,989 1.11% - - -
Bank of China Ltd (3988) SERARAERAT069) 0.005% 4,520) 12,880 1.19% - - -
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (232) RERETERABER(55) - - - - 0.771% 30,650 597%
BRARFE32)
CSSC Offshore & Marine Engineering (Group) R EERBEERABRAE - - - - 0.094% 12,731 2.48%
Company Limited (317) (817)
Others (Note) it (Biz) (26,364) 38,608 3.57% 17,407 3.39%
(171,296) 629,910 58.22% 118,945 23.18%
Note: None of these investments represented more than 1% of the total assets of Ma: RZE—AFZA=+—HB ZEREPHEEMLLRE
the Group as at 31 March 2016. BEHBEEI1%ALE-
TRADING OF WINE BEEE
The Group has kept certain quantities of fine wines. The stocks will AEEERGFETHECEERE - ZEHFE fH
be offered to sell when the market prices are favorable such that the RTESREDN UBAEENESRTZE
Group can obtain a good return on the trading. At present, the stocks Bl -BE ZEFEFEREBZBE-

are kept in the wine cellar situated in Hong Kong.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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LOAN FINANCING

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of HK$25 million (2015:
HK$17 million) and the segment profit was HK$24 million (2015:
HK$15 million). The Group will further develop in this segment in order
to earn a higher interest income.

METAL TRADING

During the year, the Group did not record any turnover on metal
trading. The Group will seek for more opportunities in this segment.

FINANCE LEASING

On 21 August 2014, the Company entered into the joint venture
agreement to form a joint venture for the development and operation
of the finance leasing business. During the year, the Group has
commenced to record turnover on finance leasing and the Group has
recorded HK$4 million (2015: nil) of interest income and HK$4 million
(2015: nil) of segment profit from financial leasing business.

FURTHER ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN
ELEMENTAL

Elemental Minerals Limited (“Elemental”) is an advanced mining
exploration and development company listed on the Australian Stock
Exchange. It is currently developing the Sintoukola potash project
located in the Republic of Congo.

The Group acquired on-market 49,548,744 shares of Elemental (the
“Elemental Shares”) in a series of transactions conducted during the
period from 28 April 2014 to 24 April 2015 for an aggregate purchase
price of approximately HK$61 million (exclusive of transaction costs).
As at the date of this annual report, the Group holds an aggregate of
70,404,268 Elemental Shares, representing approximately 16.25% of
the entire issued share capital of Elemental.

Details of the further acquisition of Elemental Shares were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 4 March 2015 and 17 April
2015 respectively.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EEER W RO
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RAFENRN  NEEEBSIWABE2500& T (=
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—HFE)DEFE-
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Elemental Minerals Limited ([ Elemental | ) & —f&]
SHRBENRERNBEREANT IR AFGEESFZ
S T o E IR IF 5 M) &R £ A0 B 2 & Sintoukolaif
ESTH A o

AREBER -_ZE—NENA -+ N\BE-_ZT—F
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- Y B849,548,744 % Elementalf% 15 ([ Elemental
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB W RS

FORMATION AND ACQUISITION OF THE
INTERESTS IN THE JOINT VENTURE ON FINANCE
LEASING BUSINESS

On 21 August 2014, the Company entered into the joint venture
agreement (as supplemented by supplemental agreements dated
24 December 2014, 13 March 2015 and 19 May 2015) with an
independent third party, Joy Well Investments Limited (‘dWIL”), to form
a joint venture (the “Joint Venture Company”) for the development
and operation of the finance leasing business. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Joint Venture Company will be owned as to 62.5%
by the Company and 37.5% by JWIL. The parties had invested an
aggregate of RMB200,000,000 (approximately HK$252 million) into
the Joint Venture Company, of which RMB125,000,000 (approximately
HK$158 million) was contributed by the Company according to its
shareholding percentage.

On 5 January 2016, the Company entered into the share purchase
agreement with JWIL, pursuant to which, the Company agreed to
acquire and JWIL agreed to sell the 37.5% of the issued shares of
the Joint Venture Company at a consideration of RMB75,000,000.
The Completion took place on 11 January 2016. After that, the Joint
Venture Company has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

Details of the above transaction were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 21 August 2014, 10 September 2014,
30 September 2014, 17 October 2014, 25 November 2014,
24 December 2014, 13 March 2015, 19 May 2015 and 5 January
2016 respectively and the circular of the Company dated 5 January
2015.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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RZE—NFNAZ+—B ARRBEE—FZEL
£ = 7 Joy Well Investments Limited ([JWIL | ) &7
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CONNECTED TRANSACTION - PROPOSED ISSUE
OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS UNDER SPECIFIC
MANDATE

On 28 June 20183, after trading hours, Wincon Capital Investment
Limited (“Wincon”), the controlling shareholder (as defined in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)) of the
Company, as the subscriber and the Company as issuer entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Wincon Subscription Agreement”) in
respect of the issue of and subscription for the convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount not exceeding HK$620,000,000 at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.33 per conversion share and the warrants
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$155,000,000 at an exercise
price of HK$0.35 per warrant share, respectively (the “Proposed Issue
of the New Wincon Convertible Bonds”). On 12 December 2014,
Wincon had confirmed to the Company in writing that it would not
exercise or transfer any of the warrants which may be issued pursuant
to the Wincon Subscription Agreement if such warrants are issued to it,
and it would not pursue any action against the Company for damages
or other remedies if the Company does not issue such warrants to it.
In view of such written confirmation provided by Wincon, the Company
would not seek to issue the warrants as contemplated under the
Wincon Subscription Agreement. The Wincon Subscription Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder, including the allotment
and issue of the conversion shares under a specific mandate of the
Company, were approved by the Independent Shareholders at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 31 December 2014.
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The estimated net proceeds of the issue of the convertible bonds (after
deducting the fees and expenses) will be approximately HK$619.5
million. The total net proceeds are originally intended to be used for
funding the partial payment of the proposed offer or other possible
further investments. Although the proposed offer subsequently lapsed
on 31 March 2014 and it might no longer be necessary for Wincon to
maintain its status as the controlling shareholder following the lapse of
the another proposed issue of the convertible bonds and the warrants,
as the Shares have been suspended for trading since 2 July 2014, it
is difficult for the Company to raise such substantial fund from third
party investors through placing or issue of convertible notes without a
prevailing trading price for pricing reference. As Wincon is still willing
to inject such a substantial funding to the Company, the Directors
consider that it is in the interest of the Company and the Shareholders
to capture this funding so as to fuel the future development of the
Group.

The estimated net proceeds of the Proposed Issue of the New Wincon
Convertible Bonds (after deducting the fees and expenses) will be
approximately HK$619.5 million, which are intended to be used as
to approximately HK$472.5 million for funding the new financing and
finance leasing business of the Group, as to approximately HK$60
million for the acquisition of further Elemental Shares and as to HK$87
million for other possible future investments.

On 8 January 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 8 January 2015, the Company and Wincon entered into a letter
of extension to extend the closing date from 8 January 2015 to 8
July 2015 (or such later date as parties thereto may agree) (the “New
Closing Date”). The remaining convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 as contemplated under the Subscription
Agreement will be subscribed by Wincon on or before the New Closing
Date.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Independent
Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 19 March 2015,
the closing date was extended to 8 July 2015.
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During the year, the net proceeds from the issue of the convertible
bonds are approximately HK$600 million, in which approximately
HK$215 million was used to finance the financing business of the
Group, approximately HK$40 million was used for the acquisition of
further Elemental Shares and the remaining proceeds were invested in
the held for trading investments. The Directors confirmed that the net
proceeds from the issue of the convertible bonds have been applied in
accordance with its intended uses.

On 7 May 2015, 60,606,060 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 8 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 9 June 2015,
90,909,090 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 16 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 17 June 2015,
90,909,090 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 23 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon and on 24 June 2015,
121,212,121 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 25 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of

HK$60,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 30 June 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 2 July 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$20,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 3 July 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 6 July 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$70,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.
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On 7 July 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 8 July 2015, the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$160,000,000 was subscribed by Wincon.

On 13 July 2015, 515,151,515 Shares has been converted by Wincon.

On 14 December 2015, 575,757,575 Shares has been converted by
Wincon.

As at the date of this annual report, the remaining convertible bonds in
the principal amount of HK$140,000,000 have not yet been converted
into Shares by Wincon.

Details of the Proposed Issue of the New Wincon Convertible Bonds
were disclosed in the announcements of the Company dated 28
June 2013, 19 July 2013, 30 August 2013, 30 September 2013,
14 November 2013, 31 December 2013, 28 February 2014, 24
April 2014, 30 April 2014, 30 June 2014, 30 September 2014, 31
December 2014, 8 January 2015, 16 January 2015, 19 March 2015,
8 June 2015, 16 June 2015, 23 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 30 June
2015, 3 July 2015, 6 July 2015, 7 July 2015, 9 July 2015, 13 July
2015 and 14 December 2015 respectively and the circulars of the
Company dated 15 December 2014 and 2 March 2015 respectively.

GRANT AND EXERCISE OF SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company on 21
September 2012 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

On 11 November 2015, the Board granted and the grants were
accepted by the eligible participants as defined in the Share Option
Scheme in respect of 50,000,000 share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.638 per share.
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On 28 December 2015, the Board granted and the grants were
accepted by the director/eligible participants as defined in the Share
Option Scheme in respect of 280,460,000 share options at an exercise
price of HK$0.792 per share.

Details of the above grants of share options were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 11 November 2015,
28 December 2015 and 24 June 2016.

On 30 March 2015, a total of 2,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 2,000,000 Shares were
issued on 1 April 2015.

On 4 June 2015, a total of 1,800,000 share options were exercised at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 1,800,000 Shares were
issued on 9 June 2015.

On 18 June 2015, a total of 15,000,000 share options were exercised
at an exercise price of HK$0.477 per share and 15,000,000 Shares
were issued on 18 June 2015.

ISSUE OF CONVERSION SHARES

On 22 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$30 million in full, at the conversion price of HK$0.22 per
conversion share, pursuant to which a total number of 136,363,636
conversion shares were issued to that subscriber on 28 March 2013.

On 23 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$20 million in full, at the conversion price of HK$0.22
per conversion share, pursuant to which a total number of 90,909,090
conversion shares has been issued to that subscriber on 28 March
2018.
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On 25 June 2015, the Company received a conversion notice from a
subscriber for the conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate
amount of HK$50 million in full, at the conversion price of HK$0.22 per
conversion share, pursuant to which a total number of 227,272,727
conversion shares has been issued to that subscriber on 31 May 2013.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 12 October 2012, 17 October 2012, 20
November 2012, 31 December 2012, 31 January 2013, 28 March
2013, 31 May 2013 and 25 June 2015 and the circular of the
Company dated 2 November 2012.

MAJOR TRANSACTION — PARTICIPATION IN
COOPERATION AGREEMENT

On 25 September 2015, R B EE (ORI I EEAEGR AR (‘Dingyi
Jinhui”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”)
committing to provide 38% funding for the acquisition (the “Xibu
Yungu’s Acquisition”) by a joint venture company, % 37 74 &5
EAREBEREELT (Xibu Yungu’), and the acquisition (the
“Xumao Ventures’ Further Acquisition”) by Xumao Ventures Limited
(“Xumao Ventures”), as a nominee of Xibu Yungu. Xibu Yungu then
entered into an acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
to acquire 80% equity interest in ©EREBREREB CRINBRELQ
A] (“Jinshidai”) and related shareholders’ loans (the “Acquisition”)
from the vendors of Jinshidai (the “Jinshidai Vendors”), whereas
Xumao Ventures entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the
“Sale and Purchase Agreement’) to acquire 100% equity interest
in Think Right Developments Limited. The Cooperation Agreement
was entered into to provide cash funding for the total acquisition
consideration of RMB1,060,800,000 for Xibu Yungu'’s Acquisition and
Xumao Ventures’ Further Acquisition. The Group will provide its portion
(i.e. Dingyi Jinhui’s 38%) of the funding by its internal resources and/
or through other financing methods. The Cooperation Agreement has
provided that the maximum commitment by Dingyi Jinhui towards the
acquisitions is capped at RMB403,104,000.
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The Company has been informed by Xibu Yungu that, despite of
repeated reminders by Xibu Yungu to the Jinshidai Vendors, the
Jinshidai Vendors have not performed in accordance with the terms
of the Acquisition Agreement. On 29 January 2016, Xibu Yungu
submitted an application for arbitration to the Shenzhen Arbitration
Commission (RIIIHE,Z E € ) (the “Commission”) seeking specific
performance of the Acquisition Agreement and damages against
the Jinshidai Vendors. The application has been accepted by the
Commission on the same date.

The Company had been informed by Xibu Yungu that on 11 April
2016, Jinshidai Vendors, Parkwill Group Limited, Xibu Yungu and
Xumao Ventures entered into a settlement agreement (the “Settlement
Agreement”) to settle the arbitration claim by Xibu Yungu to the
commission seeking specific performance of the Acquisition Agreement
and damages against the Jinshidai Vendors (the “Arbitration”).

Under the Settlement Agreement, the Jinshidai Vendors agreed to
make a payment of RMB38,000,000 to settle the Arbitration and
related proceedings. Xibu Yungu had received the payment subsequent
to the balance sheet date.

The Group had only provided the funding of RMB38,000,000 to Xibu
Yungu as capital injection and such funding has been refunded to the
Group in view of the cessation of the Acquisition.

After deducting the costs and expenses in relation to the Acquisition
Agreement, the Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Settlement
Agreement from the settlement of RMB38,000,000 by the Jinshidai
Vendors, the Group would receive a share of 38% of the remaining
balance, approximately RMB10,000,000, as other income.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 25 September 2015, 29 September 2015, 2 October
2015, 9 October 2015, 30 November 2015, 9 December 2015, 29
January 2016, 12 April 2016 and 27 April 2016.
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DISCLOSEABLE TRANSACTION — FORMATION
OF JOINT VENTURE FOR OVERSEAS
INFRASTRUCTURE PROJECTS

On 12 November 2015, the Company, China-Africa Development
Fund* (“CAD Fund”), China Gezhouba Group Corporation
International Ltd.* (“CGGC”), China Civil Engineering Construction
Corporation* (“CCECC”), China Telecom Global Limited* (“China
Telecom Global”), Chiangjiang Institute of Survey Planning Design
and Research* (“CISPDR”), China ENFI Engineering Co. Ltd.”
(“China ENFI”) and China Overseas Infrastructure Development and
Investment Corporation Limited entered into a shareholders agreement
to form a joint venture (the “Joint Venture Company 2”) for the
construction of overseas infrastructure and preliminary development
of operating projects. The parties expected that they would invest
by share subscription up to an aggregate of US$259,999,999
(equivalent to approximately HK$2,014,999,992) into the Joint Venture
Company 2, of which US$20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$155,000,000) will be contributed by the Company. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Joint Venture Company 2 will be
owned as to 7.69% by the Company, 38.46% by CAD Fund, 19.23%
by CGGC, 7.69% by China Telecom Global, 3.85% by CISPDR, 3.85%
by China ENFI and 19.23% by CCECC.

The overseas infrastructure projects to be invested by the Joint
Venture Company 2 will include projects in Africa, while the
Joint Venture Company 2 may also identify suitable overseas
infrastructure opportunities in other continents. The areas of potential
investment would include transportation, airports, ports, bridges,
telecommunications, waterworks and urban water supply and
drainage, gas supply, electricity facilities and provision of intangible
products or services to cater for the fixed asset needs for the science,
education, cultural, healthcare and other sectors. As at the date of this
annual report, the Company has not contributed any fund for the share
subscription of the Joint Venture Company 2.

Details of the transaction were disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 12 November 2015 and 13 November 2015.

*for identification purpose only
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 19 May 2016, the Company received the exercise notices from
the grantees to exercise an aggregate of 8,430,000 share options at
an exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 8,430,000 shares were
issued on 20 May 2016.

On 20 May 2016, the Company received the exercise notices from the
grantees to exercise an aggregate of 10,000,000 share options at an
exercise price of HK$0.375 per share and 10,000,000 shares were
issued on 23 May 2016.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, the Company repurchased
and cancelled 30,615,000 and 72,100,000 ordinary shares
respectively.

On 17 June 2016, the Company entered into a non-legally binding
letter of intent with D&R Asset Management Group Co., Ltd. (“D&R”)
to establish a joint venture company. The total commitment of capital
contribution to be made to the joint venture company is estimated
to be RMB200 million, of which RMB98 million is proposed to be
contributed by the Company and RMB102 million is proposed to be
contributed by D&R. Details of the transaction were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2016.

STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

Apart from the existing businesses of securities trading, food and
beverages, wine trading, loan financing, metal trading and finance
leasing, the Group will continue to explore other potential investment
opportunities with reasonable returns that meet the Company’s criteria.
This will not only strengthen our core business but also increase the
shareholders’ values. The Group has been exploring some investment
opportunities in mining projects, resources projects, properties
development projects, infrastructure development projects and
investment and asset management.
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Set out below are the biographical details of the current Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. LI KWONG YUK (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 54, joined the Company as executive Director and
chairman of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
the chairman of the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) and directors of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Li is a businessman with over 12 years’ investment experience in the
highway industry in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). He
studied at Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Trade from 1978 to 1981.
Mr. Li had worked on various investment projects in areas such as
infrastructure and finance in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has 50%
shareholding in Wincon International Limited (“Wincon International”),
a company set up by Mr. Li and incorporated in Hong Kong, which is
principally engaged in investment business in highways in the PRC. He
is a sole director and the beneficial owner of Wincon Capital Investment
Limited, the controlling Shareholder, and also directors of various
companies including Wincon International, Wincon Asset Management
Limited, Dingyi Wantong Investment (HK) Limited, Dingyi Venture
Capital (HK) Limited, Dingyi New Energy Investment Limited, &M R
BESRAEAR AR (Guangzhou Huan Long Expressway Co., Ltd.,
being its unofficial English translation) and ‘F#YllH R{EESBIREBE A
Al (Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation).
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MR. SU XIAONONG (“Mr. Su”)

Mr. Su, aged 52, joined the Company as executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company (the “Chief Executive Officer”)
on 27 October 2011. He is also a member of the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Su graduated from East China
College of Political Science and Law in 1986. He has been director or
management of various venture capital, private equity and investment
consultancy companies in the PRC, including worked at JZ&3IT E
B EEIE AR AR (Shenzhen Gofar Investment Management
Co., Ltd., being its unofficial English translation) from April 2003 to
November 2007. Mr. Su currently works at ;#3I|  1 Bf 5 % 3% & FA R
F PR 2 8] (Shenzhen Union Venture Capital Consulting Co., Ltd., being
its unofficial English translation) and FII T REEREEFR AR
(Shenzhen Dingyi Wantong Investment Co., Ltd., being its unofficial
English translation). He is also a partner and vice president of Shenzhen
Dingyi Venture Capital L.P..

MR. CHEUNG SZE MING (“Mr. Cheung”)

Mr. Cheung, aged 47, joined the Company as executive Director and
chief financial officer of the Company on 27 October 2011. He is also
a member of the Remuneration Committee and directors of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Cheung has accumulated over 20
years’ working experience from the international audit firm and public
listed companies. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Cheung is a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was an
audit manager in an international audit firm.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
MR. CHOW SHIU KI (“Mr. Chow”)

Mr. Chow, aged 48, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 27 October 2011. He is also chairman of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Chow has accumulated years of working
experience in auditing, accounting and corporate finance areas. He
holds a Master Degree in Professional Accounting. Mr. Chow is a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has worked for various private and listed companies
at senior management level. He is currently the vice president of a
renowned local travel agency and an independent non-executive
director of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8090).

MR. CAO KUANGYU (“Mr. Cao”)

Mr. Cao, aged 66, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 12 December 2014. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Cao holds a
Bachelor Degree in Economics from the University of Hunan and
a Master Degree in Financial Management from the University of
London. Mr. Cao has extensive experience in the areas of banking and
finance. He worked in Bank of China, Hunan Province branch for the
period from July 1981 to February 1996 and his last position was the
deputy president of the branch. For the period from February 1996 to
September 1999, Mr. Cao was the deputy general manager of Bank
of China, Singapore branch. For the period from September 1999 to
September 2003, he was the president of China Citic Bank, Shenzhen
branch. Then he worked as the managing director of the investment
banking division of BOCI Asia Limited from September 2003 to
September 2007. Mr. Cao is currently an independent non-executive
director of JLF Investment Company Limited (stock code: 472), Huili
Resources (Group) Limited (stock code: 13083), Dongwu Cement
International Limited (stock code: 695) and Junefield Department Store
Group Limited (stock code: 758), all of which are companies listed on
the Stock Exchange.
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MR. IP CHI WAI (“Mr. Ip”)

Mr. Ip, aged 48, joined the Company as independent non-executive
Director on 31 March 2016. He is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. He graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Degree of a Bachelor of Laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong
and has more than 20 years of experience in the legal profession. Mr.
Ip is currently an independent non-executive director of Asia Standard
Hotel Group Limited (stock code: 292), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of China Bio Cassava Holdings Limited (stock code: 8129)
from September 2000 to November 2013, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
DR. YU TAI TEI (“Dr. Yu”)

Dr. Yu, aged 56, joined the Company as Senior Vice President —
Corporate Finance in January 2016 mainly responsible for all aspects
relating to finance and accounting of the Group. Dr. Yu has a Degree of
Master of Business Administration from the University of Warwick and
a Degree of Doctor of Business Administration from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Dr. Yu is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators, the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries,
and the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. He is also a Chartered
Professional Accountant of Canada. Dr. Yu is also accredited as an
authorised supervisor by HKICPA to train prospective members of the
institute. Dr. Yu has more than 30 years’ working experience with multi-
national and Hong Kong listed companies as well as the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, in the areas of finance, business control,
auditing and tax.
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MR. LI ZHONGXIA (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 32, joined the Company as a senior investment manager
on 3 November 2014. Mr. Li has over 7 years of experience in the
corporate finance and investment industry. Mr. Li holds a Bachelor of
Arts degree in Economics and Management from University of Oxford,
and a Master of Science degree in Finance from London School of
Economics and Political Science. He worked at the corporate finance
department in ICBC International Capital Limited and Merrill Lynch (Asia
Pacific) Ltd. He also worked at client solutions department in Sun Hung
Kai Financial Limited before joining the Company.

MR. LI XIAO XIAO (“Mr. Li”)

Mr. Li, aged 27, joined the Company as an investment officer on 12
February 2015. He holds a Bachelor Degree in Accounting and Finance
from the University of Southern California. Mr. Li has accumulated
extensive working experience in accounting, corporate finance, and
investment management. He is a licensed CPA in the State of New
York and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He was a Senior Associate at a big four accounting firm,
specializing in private equities and hedge funds. Mr. Li also worked at
a Wall Street bank from May 2013 to January 2015, originating and
managing corporate banking transactions with a focus on emerging
markets.
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CONTINUING OPERATIONS

REVENUE

The Group's revenue increased from HK$29 million in 2015 to HK$41
million in 2016, mainly due to the increase in the interest income from
provision of loan financing and finance leasing.

GROSS PROFIT

Gross profit margin of the Group maintained at 90% (2015: 86%) this
year.

OTHER INCOME
Other income decreased to HK$1 million (2015: HK$6 million) this year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling and distribution costs was decreased to HK$4 million this
year as compared to HK$5 million in last year due to the decrease
in turnover of the Beijing Restaurant. The administrative expenses
increased to HK$169 million (2015: HK$68 million) which was mainly
due to the share-based payment expenses of HK$111 million (2015:
HK$27 million).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment decreased from HK$10 million in last year to
HK$6 million this year. This was mainly due to the depreciation charge
for the year.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held for trading investments was significantly increased from HK$119
million to HK$630 million this year because of the increase in the
portfolio of the listed investments in the securities trading business.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash and bank balances decreased from HK$194 million in last year to
HK$18 million mainly due to the proceeds from issuance of convertible
bonds were used for the increase in held for trading investments, loan
receivables and finance lease receivables.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ FUNDS AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s net assets attributable to the
owners of the Company amounted to HK$517 million (2015: net
liabilities of HK$284 million), an increase of HK$801 million when
compared with that of 2015. Such net increase was mainly due to the
issue and exercise of convertible bonds during the year.

As at 31 March 2016, total debt to equity ratio was 0.23 (2015: total
debt to negative equity ratio of 0.38) and net debt to equity ratio
was 0.19 (2015: nil), which were expressed as a percentage of total
convertible bonds and finance lease obligations and net convertible
bonds and finance lease obligations respectively, over the total equity
of HK$517 million (2015: total net liabilities of HK$214 million).

BORROWINGS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s finance lease obligations amounted
to HK$1 million (2015: HK$2.8 million), of which all of them is repayable
within one year. The finance lease obligations are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars and subject to fixed interest rate.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had pledged its assets with net book
value of HK$3 million (31 March 2015: HK$4 million) to secure finance
lease obligations.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s assets are denominated in HKD, RMB, USD and
AUD. Considering the exchange rates between these currencies are
relatively stable, the Group believed that the corresponding exposure
to RMB, USD and AUD exchange rate fluctuation was relatively limited.
The Group does not undertake any derivative financial instruments or
hedging instruments. The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign currency risk profile, and continues to actively
monitor foreign exchange exposure to minimize the impact of any
adverse currency movement.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group had no capital
commitments.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimize cost of funds,
the Group’s treasury activities are centralized. Cash is generally placed
in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
US dollars, Renminbi or Australian dollars. The Group’s liquidity and
financing requirements are frequently reviewed. In anticipating new
investments, the Group will consider new financing channels while
maintaining an appropriate level of gearing.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has introduced corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rule”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all
code provisions of the CG Code during the year ended 31 March 2016
except for certain deviations disclosed below:

1. Code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of a regular board meeting to all Directors to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. During the year ended 31
March 2016, certain regular Board meetings were convened with
less than 14 days’ notice to facilitate the Directors’ timely reaction
and expeditious decision making process in respect of internal
affairs of the Group. All Board meetings, nevertheless, were duly
convened and held in the way prescribed by the Bye-laws of the
Company. The Board will use reasonable endeavour to meet the
requirement of code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future.
Adequate and appropriate information are circulated normally
three days in advance of Board meetings to the Directors.

2. Code provision A.5.1 of the CG Code requires the nomination
committee of listed issuers to comprise a majority of independent
non-executive directors. Subsequent to the resignation of Mr.
Sun Dongsheng (“Mr. Sun”) on 30 April 2015, the Nomination
Committee did not comprise a majority of Independent Non-
executive Directors.
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Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules provides that every board
of directors of a listed issuer must include at least three
independent non-executive directors. Moreover, Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules provides that the audit committee of a listed
issuer must comprise a minimum of three members. Further,
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules provides that a listed issuer
must establish a remuneration committee which comprises a
majority of independent non-executive directors. Subsequent
to the resignation of Mr. Sun on 30 April 2015, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors and the members of the
Audit Committee fell below the minimum number required under
Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the required
composition of the Remuneration Committee fell below the
requirements under Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

On 31 March 2016, the Board appointed Mr. Ip Chi Wai (“‘Mr.
Ip”) as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member
of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Following Mr. Ip’s appointment, the
Company has fully complied with the requirements of Rules
3.10(1), 3.21 and 3.25 of the Listing Rules and code provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code.

Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should provide
a record of the training they received to the issuer. Mr. Sun
Dongsheng resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 30 April 2015 and had not provided a record of the training to
the Company.

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board
should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li Kwong Yuk, the
chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2015 due to his
other business engagements.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by Directors during the year.

The Company has made specific enquiries to all the Directors and they
have confirmed they have complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2016.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The overall management of the business of the Company is vested
in the Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting
the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors should make decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Board has delegated
the power to oversee the daily operational matters of the Group to the
management of the Company under the supervision of the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or through the
Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position to exercise its
power in an informed manner, all members of the Board have full and
timely access to all relevant information and may take independent
professional advice if necessary.

The Board has full support from the Chief Executive Officer and the
management of the Company to discharge its responsibilities.
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Appropriate insurance cover for the Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors and senior management of
the Group arising out of corporate activities of the Group has been
arranged.

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

BOARD COMPOSITION

During the year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Board comprises six Directors and their respective roles are
set out as follows:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

Mr. Cao Kuangyu

Mr. Ip Chi Wai (appointed on 31 March 2016)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015)

The biographical details of each Director are set out in the
“Management Profile” in this annual report. Their roles and functions
are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Board possesses a balance of skills and experience which are
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the Company. A
balanced composition of Executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors also generates a strong independent element on the Board,
which allows independent and objective decision making process
for the best interest of the Company. The Company will review the
composition of the Board regularly to ensure the Board possesses the
appropriate and necessary expertise, skills and experience to meet the
needs of the business development of the Group.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation of
independence from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the confirmation,
the Company considers all Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent during the year ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets either in person or through other electronic means of
communication to monitor the execution of plans, review the Group’s
business performance and review financial reporting as well as all other
material matters. The Board held 10 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2016. Individual attendance records of each Director at the
Board meetings are set out in the table on page 42 of this annual
report. Sufficient notice with agenda and the relevant information of the
Board meeting are given to all Directors. Minutes of the Board Meetings
and meetings of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee are drafted by the Company Secretary
and the final version of the minutes of the said meetings are sent to
all Directors for comments and record. The signed minutes of the
said meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by any Directors. If a substantial Shareholder or a Director
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the Board
which the Board has determined to be material, the matters will be
dealt with by a Board meeting rather than written resolutions and
the Board will ensure that an adequate number of Independent Non-
executive Directors are involved in the consideration of the relevant
matters. Independent Non-executive Directors are encouraged to take
an active role in the Board meetings.

RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships, among the Board members.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year, a newly appointed Director was given an induction
after his appointment so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the Group’s business and of his duties and
responsibilities under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements. The Company provides regular updates on
the business performance of the Group to the Directors. The Directors
are continually updated on the latest development regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable statutory requirements to ensure
compliance and upkeeping of good corporate governance practices.

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
developments (the “Continuous Professional Development”)
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. According to
the confirmations received from the Directors, all Directors have
participated in the Continuous Professional Development for the year
ended 31 March 2016 in the following manner:
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk is currently the Chairman and Mr. Su Xiaonong is
currently the Chief Executive Officer. In accordance with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer are separate and performed by different person.

The Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functions of the Board
and providing leadership for the Board while the Chief Executive Officer
is responsible for managing the businesses of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each Independent Non-executive Director has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for a fixed term of two years from the
effective date of the service agreement and automatically renewed for
one year from the expiry date of the appointed period until terminated
by either party giving at least three months’ notice.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a fixed term of two years from the effective date of the
service agreement and automatically renewed for one year from the
expiry date of the appointed period until terminated by either party
giving at least three months’ notice.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). Under Bye-law 112.(A), at each AGM, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire
from office by rotation. Every Director shall retire from office no later
than the third AGM since the last re-election or appointment of such
Director.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee in order to maintain high
level of corporate governance standard of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 April 2015, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Sun Dongsheng. Mr. Sun Dongsheng resigned
as Director on 30 April 2015 and also ceased to be a member of
the Audit Committee. Following Mr. Sun Dongsheng’s resignation,
during the period from 30 April 2015 to 31 March 2016, the Audit
Committee comprised two Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Audit Committee) and Mr.
Cao Kuangyu. On 31 March 2016, Mr. Ip Chi Wai was appointed as a
member of the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee comprises
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The chairman of the Audit
Committee, Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, possesses appropriate professional
qualifications in finance and accounting and meets the requirements of
Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. No member of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the existing auditing firm of the Company during one
year after he ceases to be partner of the audit firm.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review and
provide supervision over the financial reporting system and internal
control procedures of the Group and to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts and the interim report and to provide advices and
comments thereon to the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Audit Committee met
twice with the auditor of the Company. In January 2016, on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board has approved
and adopted the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee in
light of the amendments of CG Code in relation to risk management
requirements. Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Audit
Committee were disclosed in the “Terms of Reference of Audit
Committee” as revised which has been published on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company on 5 January 2016.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed auditing, internal controls, risk management systems of
the Group and financial reporting matters including the review of the
audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016. The Audit Committee has also recommended the Board on the
adoption of the revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended 31 March
2016. Individual attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 42 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions in the CG
Code.
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During the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 April 2015, the Remuneration
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Cao Kuangyu and Mr. Sun Dongsheng, and two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong and Mr. Cheung Sze Ming. Mr. Sun
Dongsheng resigned as Director on 30 April 2015 and also ceased
to be a member of the Remuneration Committee. Following Mr. Sun
Dongsheng’s resignation, the Remuneration Committee comprises
two Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki
(chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Cao Kuangyu, and
two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Su Xiaonong and Mr. Cheung Sze
Ming. On 31 March 2016, Mr. Ip Chi Wai was appointed as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Remuneration Committee
comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors and two
Executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are,
including but not limited to, to make recommendations to the Board on
the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors
and the senior management of the Company and to establish a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. Details
of the duties and responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee were
disclosed in the “Terms of Reference of Remuneration Committee”
which has been published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company on 29 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Remuneration Committee
adopted the model which is described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code that the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management and the newly
appointed Independent Non-executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee held 3 meeting(s) during the year ended
31 March 2016. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 42 of this
annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference and the same has been revised in order to comply with the
relevant code provisions in the CG Code.

During the period from 1 April 2015 to 30 April 2015, the Nomination
Committee comprises one Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Kwong
Yuk (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and two Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki and Mr. Sun
Dongsheng. Mr. Sun Dongsheng resigned as Director on 30 April
2015 and also ceased to be a member of the Nomination Committee.
Following Mr. Sun Dongsheng’s resignation, the Nomination Committee
comprises one Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (chairman
of the Nomination Committee) and one Independent Non-executive
Director, namely Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. On 31 March 2016, Mr. Ip Chi Wai
was appointed as a member of the Nomination Committee and the
Nomination Committee comprises one Executive Director and two
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are,
including but not limited to, to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience, length of
service and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy. Details of the duties
and responsibilities of the Nomination Committee were disclosed in
the “Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee” which has been
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company on
30 August 2013.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualification, skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessed the independence of all Independent Non-executive
Directors, recommended the Board on the nomination of Directors for
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company, identified
individual suitably qualified to become the Independent Non-executive
Director and recommended to the Board on the selection of individual
nominated for the Independent Non-executive Director.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings during the year ended
31 March 2016. Individual attendance record of each member of the
Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 42 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the fees paid/payable to the
Auditor in respect of audit services provided by the Auditor were as
follows:
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TEERBRES
ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND EENETEGKE 2 HELER

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the individual attendance HE-_Z—R"F-_A=+—HILEFERN S==

record of the Directors for the Board meetings, the Board Committee NARESgeR EFZEegE -2 —1
meetings and the AGM held on 30 September 2015 respectively is set FNA=ZTHRODZBRERF RS ZEANEFER
out below: BHEIIAT
Attended/Eligible to attend
BHiE/RERLE
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee
Name Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting AGM
ENZEEE FWzEEg REZES
®E Ezgen e 6 6 RREFAE
Executive Directors
HiTE=Z
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 10/10 N/A N/A 2/2 0N
FHRBEE TiEA TER
Mr. Su Xiaonong 10/10 N/A 3/3 N/A 0/1
BERLAE AiE A TiER
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 10/10 N/A 3/3 N/A 11
REFEULEE TEA TiER
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYFGTES
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki 10/10 3/3 3/3 2/2 1/1
BEELE
Mr. Cao Kuangyu 10/10 3/3 3/3 N/A 0
ERTEE TER
Mr. Ip Chi Wai (appointed on 31 March 2016) 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
REREE (RZFE-—ANEFZA=1—HEZF)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015) 2/2 0/0 0/0 0/0 0/0
BRARE (R=ZF-AFEMA=1HEE)
DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT EECRR

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for the preparation of EEMARERBEIERERBAGSTEAFR
the financial statements in accordance with the statutory requirements PBBERcEFT-EFWTHEH EA—J EEI RN
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of RFBEBERLEENTFTEEARB 2 EHIRRZE
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may a8 KN HETE 14 o

cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.
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AUDITOR’S STATEMENT

The statement by the Auditor about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board, recognizing its overall responsibility in ensuring the system
of internal control of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness, is
committed to implementing an effective and sound internal control
system to safeguard the interest of the Shareholders and the assets
of the Group. The Board is responsible for establishing the Group’s
internal control framework, covering all material controls including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The internal control
framework also provides for identification and management of risk.

The Audit Committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Board has also conducted a review of the
effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system of the Group.
With the consideration of the findings and recommendations by the
Audit Committee, the Board has reached the conclusion that the
Group’s internal control system was in place and effective.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company appointed Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric (“Mr. Chan”)
as the Company Secretary since 30 September 2013 from an external
secretarial services provider. The primary corporate contact person at
the Company is Mr. Cheung Sze Ming, an Executive Director and the
Chief Financial Officer of the Group. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rule, Mr. Chan confirmed that he has taken no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during the year ended 31
March 2016.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

RIGHTS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL
MEETING

Shareholders may convene special general meeting of the Company
(the “SGM”) according to the Bye-Laws and the provisions as set out
in Section 74 of The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Bermuda
Act”). The Board shall, on the requisition of Shareholders holding at
the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid-up capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit carries
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company, forthwith
proceed duly, to convene the SGM. The requisition must state the
purposes of the SGM, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the principal place of business in Hong Kong of
the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention Plaza-Office Tower,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, and may consist of several
documents in like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the SGM, the requisitionists or
any of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene the SGM in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3
months from the said date.
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PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY THE
SHAREHOLDERS TO THE BOARD

The Company endeavor to maintain two way communications with
the Shareholders through various channels. The Shareholders are
encouraged to put their enquiries about the Group through the
Company’s email at info@dingyi.nk or by mail to the principle place
of business in Hong Kong of the Company at Unit 2708, 27/F,,
Convention Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
All the enquiries are dealt with in a timely manner. The Shareholders
are also encouraged to attend the AGM and the SGM and to put
their enquiries to the Board directly. Notices are duly circulated to
the Shareholders in order to ensure each Shareholder is informed to
attend the AGM and the SGM. The Chairman, chairmen of each of the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the Auditor will attend the
AGM and respond to the Shareholders’ enquiries in a promptly manner.
The procedures for conducting a poll will be explained by the chairmen
of the AGM and the SGM orally at the beginning of the aforesaid
meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT THE GENERAL MEETINGS

(i) Pursuant to Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act, either any
number of the Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the meeting to
which the requisition relates or not less than 100 Shareholders,
can request the Company in writing to (a) give to the
Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next AGM notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved and is intended to
be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate to the Shareholders
entitled to have notice of any general meeting sent to them any
statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business to
be dealt with at that meeting.
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(i)

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be deposited to the
above-stated principle place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong not less than six weeks before the meeting (in the case of
a requisition requiring notice of a resolution); and not less than
one week before the meeting (in the case of any other requisition)
together with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the relevant
expenses of the Company.

Upon receiving the requisition, the Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under the provisions as stated
in Sections 79 and 80 of the Bermuda Act.

For procedures for the Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director, please refer to the information available on
the website of the Company at www.dingyi.hk.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a

webs

ite at http://www.dingyi.hk, where the Company’s business

operations and developments, financial information, corporate

governance practices and other information are posted.

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional

documents during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

STANDARD OF EMPLOYMENT

The Company has complied with the applicable employment-related
laws and regulations currently in force in Hong Kong. The Company
does not employ staffs who are below 18 years of age. The Company
provided such rights and benefits to its employees which are no less
than those required statutorily. No employee is paid less than the
minimum wage specified by the Minimum Wage Ordinance (Chapter
608 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Monthly salary payments are made on
time according to respective employment contracts. The Company’s
contributions to the defined contribution retirement scheme it operated
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are made by each
monthly contribution day.

WORKING CONDITIONS

The Company is committed to employing with the laws relating to
anti-discrimination and equal opportunities promotion. It also strives
to provide a pleasant, safe and healthy workplace for our employees.
We care for our employees and recognize that having positive attitude
helps motivate employees at workplace.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Group are one of the most important assets
and stakeholders of the Group and their contribution and support
are values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies according to industry benchmark as well as the
individual performance of employees. Other fringe benefits, mandatory
provident fund and share options are provided to retain loyal employees
with the aim to form a professional staff and management team that
can bring the Group to different levels of success.
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EnviropmenthaSocial and Governance Report
RE-HERERERSE

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board takes its fiduciary role seriously and is committed to
maintaining a high standard of business integrity and transparency in
our business practice. To understand our major stakeholders’ needs
and expectations, the Company has designated an open channel of
communication with its shareholders and an email account is dedicated
to communication with stakeholders on its website.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business
operations. Our environmental strategy is to achieve a balance
between the quality and efficiency of our services and the minimization
of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation.
Accordingly, the Group has taken a proactive approach to effect
internal and external communications by means of telephone, emails
and conferences or such other communication means which are
efficient yet environmentally friendly. Also, we are able to minimize
physical travelling and printing.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March
2016 analyzed by reportable segments are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016
are provided in the Chairman Statement and Management Discussion
and Analysis of this annual report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 are set
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on pages 75 and
76. No interim dividend was paid during the year. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend.

SHARE CAPITAL AND CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Movements in the share capital and convertible bonds during the year
are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out on page 80 and note 36(A) to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to Shareholders amounted to HK$nil (2015: HKS$nil).
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Report of the Directors
EEEgREE

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in plant and equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 and 3 and on pages 27 to 29 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 36% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers accounted for 49% of
the Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for
15% of the Group’s purchases and the largest customer accounted for
12% of the Group’s revenue. None of the Directors, their associates
nor any Shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) has any interest in the
Group’s five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 35 (2015: 58) full-time staff under its subsidiaries
globally as at 31 March 2016. Total staff costs amounted to HK$15
million (2015: HK$19 million) for the year ended 31 March 2016. The
remuneration policies of the Group are reviewed periodically on the
basis of job nature, market trend, company performance and individual
performance. Other staff benefits include bonuses awarded on a
discretionary basis, retirement schemes and the Share Option Scheme.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws in
Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company repurchased a
total of 296,735,000 shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of HK$198,913,564, of which 255,250,000
shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2016.
Subsequently, the Company repurchased a total of 30,615,000 shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration
of HK$20,677,387. On 8 June 2016, a total of 72,100,000 shares of
the Company were cancelled.

Particulars of the shares repurchased are as follows:

Total number
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HK$ HK$ HK$
ot ik it
2015 —E-hHEF
July + A 51,335,000 0.79 0.55 34,791,965
August J\H 49,225,000 0.79 0.51 30,869,243
September LA 38,005,000 0.69 0.62 25,020,174
October +A 4,990,000 0.80 0.76 3,891,888
November +—A 13,525,000 0.70 0.63 9,014,620
December +=A 11,200,000 0.76 0.73 8,259,877
2016 VAL
January —H 30,975,000 0.74 0.65 21,432,392
February — A 42,775,000 0.72 0.58 27,059,228
March = 54,705,000 0.76 0.66 38,574,177
296,735,000 198,913,564

The Directors consider that the above share repurchases are in the
best interest of the Company and its shareholders and that such
repurchases would lead to an enhancement of the earnings per share
of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
annual report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (Chairman)
Mr. Su Xiaonong (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki

Mr. Cao Kuangyu

Mr. Ip Chi Wai (gppointed on 31 March 2016)
Mr. Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015)

Mr. Sun Dongsheng resigned as Independent Non-executive Director
on 30 April 2015 as he wished to allocate more time to his other
business commitments.

In accordance with bye-law 112.(A) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Su Xiaonong,
the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director, and Mr. Cao
Kuangyu, an Independent Non-executive Director, shall retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with bye-law 115 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Ip Chi Wai,
who was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on 31
March 2016 to fill a casual vacancy, shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company. Mr. Ip, who being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

The directors who have served on the boards of directors of the
subsidiaries of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk

Mr. Su Xiaonong

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming
Ms. Lo Kwan

Mr. Li Tao Hui
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each
of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence during the year ended 31 March 2016 and all of them
are still being considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transaction” below, no contracts of
significance relating to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company had no contract entered into in respect
of the management or administration of the overall business or any
material business.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were required to be recorded in the register to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

RZBE-—REZA=+—"H ARFAEERER
TTBRABRARR REBBER (ERRESF M
HIE R ([RERBERM]) EXVER) 2 tn
MBI MMESFTAER ERIEEF L RAEED
EXVERETRESD A G AR A LB R 2
Kok R (BRERERE 7 KB G 2 A B8 5K
SIRSRIERA 2 m PR ) HMBBRERA
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ZEBLEMAZ R LRR  SIARBEZRETRIZAN
SARRP MR S LORB T
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Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares

Number of underlying of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)

LN

2 #®TRH

ot e

BABEDH

Esng L) EEREE HERGEE By (Hizt1)

Mr. Li Kwong Yuk (‘M. Li") Interest of controlled 3,176,562,981 424,242,424 3,600,805,405
FRhERE ([ZRE]) corporation (Note 2) (Note 3)
REHEEER (Kist2) (Hi323)
Beneficial owner 164,825,000 18,300,000 183,125,000

ExBEBA (Note 4)
(Hizt4)

3,783,930,405 76.02%

Mr. Su Xiaonong Beneficial owner - 43,750,000 43,750,000 0.88%
BERLE EXBEEA (Note 5)
(Hizts)

Mr. Cheung Sze Ming Beneficial owner - 12,000,000 12,000,000 0.24%
REFHILE ERERA (Note 6)
(Hizte6)
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Notes:

Save

Based on 4,977,281,528 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31
March 2016.

These shares held by Wincon Capital Investment Limited (“WCIL”) as to
3,165,087,981 and Wincon Asset Management Limited (“WAML”") as to
11,475,000. Each of WCIL and WAML is wholly and beneficially owned
by Mr. Li. Pursuant to the SFO, Mr. Li is deemed to be interested in these
3,176,562,981 shares.

These underlying shares held by WCIL, which is a total of 424,242,424
conversion shares at the initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per share, will
be issued and allotted upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$140,000,000.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, being (i) 13,300,000 underlying shares granted on
19 April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 5,000,000
underlying shares granted on 28 December 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.792 per share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, being (i) 23,750,000 underlying shares granted on 19
April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 20,000,000
underlying shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.477 per share.

All underlying shares are share options granted by the Company under the
Share Options Scheme, being (i) 7,000,000 underlying shares granted on 19
April 2013 at the exercise price of HK$0.375 per share, and (i) 5,000,000
underlying shares granted on 3 February 2015 at the exercise price of
HK$0.477 per share.

as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors

and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short

positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the

Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of

the SFO, or which were required to be recorded in the register required

to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or

are required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in

the register referred to therein, or are required, pursuant to the Model

Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company, the interests and short positions of
the persons or corporations other than the Director or chief executive
of the Company, in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Ny

N
|

ko
H

I

&

(]

TERRZ

RZE-—RFEZA=1t—R BARFAEERE
ETBABRA THALTIEE (RARESH
T2ITBABRIN) RAR TR SARREA D P
BEACTHEN AR AIRER 5 &S &HIF336
FEEZERMAZES ARIT

REARBDEBREEBERD 2HFR

Approximate
percentage of
total number of

Number of issued shares of
Name of substantial Number of underlying the Company
Shareholders Capacity ordinary shares shares Total (Note 1)
EARRTH
EERTRG
BY2
EER HER 5 BHBEDT
TERREE BB 54 #E £ By (Hizt1)
WCIL (Note 2) Beneficial owner 3,165,087,981 424,242,424 3,589,330,405 72.11%
KBEX (fiiz2) ERBEBA (Note 3)
(H17#3)
Mr. Leung Chiu Beneficial owner 378,954,654 2,375,000 381,329,654 7.66%
gl ERBEBA (Note 4) (Note 5)
(Hizt4) (Hizts)
Notes: M5
1. Based on 4,977,281,528 ordinary shares of the Company issued as at 31 T RF=ZA=+—HBE%774,977,281,528

March 2016.

2. WCIL is wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Li
Kwong Yuk was deemed to be interested in these shares and underlying
shares.

3. These underlying shares being the total of 424,242,424 conversion shares at
the initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per share, will be issued and allotted
upon full conversion of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal
amount of HK$140,000,000.
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4. These 2,375,000 underlying shares are share options granted by the
Company on 19 April 2013 under the Share Option Scheme at the exercise
price of HK$0.375 per share.

5. Based on the disclosure of interest filed by Mr. Leung Chiu on 18 January
2016, the percentage of Mr. Leung’s shareholding was approximately 7.49%
based on the total of 5,088,976,528 shares of the Company in issue. As at 31
March 2016, the percentage of Mr. Leung’s shareholding was approximately
7.66% based on the total of 4,977,281,528 shares of the Company in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, so far as is known to
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
which were required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO, or, were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of
the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 September 2012, the Shareholders approved the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme. A summary of the principal terms of the
Share Option Scheme, as disclosed in accordance with the Listing
Rules, are as follow:

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant the share options to the eligible participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Under the Share Option Scheme, the Directors may grant
share options to the following persons or entities (the “Eligible
Participants”) to subscribe for shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules:

(@ any employee (whether full-time or part-time and including
the Director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries (the
“Subsidiaries”) or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (the “Invested Entity”);
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(b)

any Directors (including non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), any Subsidiaries or any Invested Entity;

any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity;

any customer of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity;

any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant, individual or
entity who in the opinion of the Directors has contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the Group;

any other group or classes of participants who have contributed
or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group; and

any company wholly-owned by one or more Eligible Participants.

The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued

upon exercise of the share options and the share options granted

under any other share option scheme of the Group (including both

exercised or outstanding share options) to each grantee in any

12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued shares of the

Company for the time being.

In respect of any particular option, such period as the Directors may

determine, which may not later than 10 years from the date of grant of

the relevant share options.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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There is no minimum period required under the Share Option Scheme
for holding of the share options before it can be exercised.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for
a period of 21 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when the duplicate
of the letter by the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the
Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The exercise price shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

The Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years commencing
on 21 September 2012 to make an offer for the grant of a share
option.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 9 February
2015, the scheme mandate limit for the Share Option Scheme was
refreshed to allow the Company to issue a maximum of 330,464,062
share options under the Share Option Scheme, representing
approximately 6.64% of the total number of issued shares of the
Company (i.e. 4,977,281,528 shares) as at 31 March 2016.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, () a total of 330,460,000
share options were granted by the Company; (i) 16,800,000 share
options were exercised; (iii) 1,000,000 share options were lapsed;
(iv) a total of 22,250,000 share options were re-classified; and (v) no
share options were cancelled. Pursuant to the Shareholders’ approval
for the refreshment of scheme mandate limit on 9 February 2015, the
outstanding number of the shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 4,062, representing approximately 0.00% of the total
number of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 4,923,611,528 shares)
as at the date of this annual report.
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Subsequent to the year ended 31 March 2016, a total of 18,430,000
shares options were exercised. As at the date of this annual report,

a total of 527,280,000 shares options were granted by the Company

under the Share Option Scheme and the outstanding number of

share options available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is

527,284,062, representing approximately 10.71% of the total number

of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 4,923,611,528 shares) as at the

date of this annual report.

The movements in the share options granted under the Share Option

Scheme during the year are shown below:

REBE-_T—XRNFEFZA=1+—BLEE% &
18,430,000 EERER BITE -RAFHRAH &
H527,280,00017 B i B B3 AN 2 RIAR IR IS A i =T
SR MR EERERT S AT H BT 2B RITE
BAEE B A527,284,06217)  HBE R AR B R
IR B EIE BT () B B (B14,923,611,528% i
1) 2 #10.71% °

RER REBRESE MO ZBREZ
FHIFIM TR :

Number of share options
BREHE
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company’s
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016 options options HKS per share  HKS per share
RERBRE
BTEERAN
KRARGZ
S 7 BRE mEFS
—g8-1% RER  ZB-RE  BRE BRE TR b &
SEAEZSRR mA-B  REARE  REARTE  REAREE  RERER EfSE ZAZt-B R4BH BYE BREK BREE
Executive Directors
HiTES
Mr. Li Kwong Yuk 13,300,000 - - - - - 13,300,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 -
18-04-2018
FREEE —3-=f —2-=%
mA+AE mAtARE
3 N\E
MA+/\B
- 5,000,000 - - - 5000000  28-12-2015 28-12-2015 to 0.792 -
27-12-2020
—“Z-1F
+-F=tNR
Mr. Su Xiaonong 23,750,000 - - - - - 23,750,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 -
18-04-2018
BRREE —2-=% 3=
mA+HE MA+NBZE
—2-0\F
mA+NR
20,000,000 - - - - - 20,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—ZZ-1E —Z-n%
—A=H
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Number of share options
BREHE
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company’s
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016  options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BTEERA
KAARGZ
B S BRE T
—8-1% RER  ZB-RF BRE BRE fix: 34 W&
SEAEZSER mA-B  REARE  REARTE  REAREE  RERER Efi78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREE
Mr. Cheung Sze Ming 7,000,000 - - - - - 7,000,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 -
18-04-2018
REREE - —Z-=E
mA+THA MATHAE
—T-0\%
A+NR
5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—T-R% —B-n%
—A=AH —“A=RZ%
Sk 23
—AZH
Independent Non-executive
Director
BUkHTES
Mr. Sun Dongsheng 1,000,000 - - - - (1,000,000) - 26:04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375 -
(resigned on 30 April 2015) 25-04-2018
BRALE —3-=F “3-=f
(R-F-REMA=1HEIE) mAZ+5xA WAZ+XEZE
ZB0\E
mAE=+AA
Sub-total 70,050,000 5,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 74,050,000
it
Substantial Shareholders
TERE
Mr. Leung Chiu 2,375,000 - - - - - 2,375,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0.375 -
18-04-2018
2454 3= —F-=f
MA+NE mA+HhEZE
—E-0\%
mA+NA
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Number of share options
BREHE
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company’s
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016  options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BTEERA
KAARGZ
B S BRE T
—8-1% RER  ZB-RF BRE BRE fix: 34 W&
SEAEZSER mA-B  REARE  REARTE  REAREE  RERER Efi78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREE
Mr. Li Xuan 2,375,000 - - - - (2,375,000) 19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0375 -
18-04-2018
FHEE - —Z-=E
mA+THA MATHAE
—T-0\%
A+NR
Mr. Yang Dongjun 2,375,000 - - - - (2,375,000) - 19042013 19-04-2013 10 0.375 -
18-04-2018
BREEE —T-=F —E-=F
mA+AR mA+NRZE
—Z-N\E
mA+AR
Like Faith Global Investment Limited 31,500,000 - (15,000,000) - - (16,500,000) - 08-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 1.100
02-02-2020
—Z-1E “Z-1%
—A=H
Sub-total 38,625,000 - (15,000,000) - - (21,250,000) 2,375,000
it
Others
At
Employees 3,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) - 2,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0.375 -
25-04-2018
&8 —3-=% It St
mA=+/8 MAZF/ RE
—E-0\%
mA-+HA
5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—Z-1% —Z-T1f
—A=R —A=HE
S 23
—fA=A
Other eligible participants 33,875,000 - (1,800,000) - - 4,750,000 36,825,000  19-04-2013 19-04-2013 to 0375 1.180
18-04-2018
EAERBEA —Z-c=E St
MA+NAE MATAEE
2%
mA+NA
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Number of share options
BREHE
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company’s
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016  options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BAEERA
KAARGZ
B S BRE T
—8-1% RER  ZB-RF BRE BRE fix: 34 W&
SEAEZSER mA-B  REARE  REARTE  REAREE  RERER Efi78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREE
Other eligible participants 12,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 13,000,000  26-04-2013 26-04-2013 to 0375 -
25-04-2018
HAEREEA - —Z-=E
mA=+7/A MAZt~BE
—T-0\%
mA-+HA
70,500,000 - - - - 16,500,000 87,000,000  03-02-2015 03-02-2015 to 0477 -
02-02-2020
—2-1f —B-n%
—A=AH —“A=RZ%
Sk 32
—fAZ=A
- 50,000,000 - - - - 50,000,000  11-11-2015 11-11-2015 to 0.638 -
10-11-2020
“Z2-1% “Z-1%
T-At+-H T-At-HZE
It Sk 22
t-AtA
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Number of share options
BREHE
Weighted
average
closing
price of the
Company’s
shares
immediately
before
the dates
Exercise on which
Date of Validity price of the share
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed  Re-classified At grant of period of share  options were
Name or category 1 April during during during during during 31 March  share share options exercised
of participant 2015 the year the year the year the year the year 2016  options options HKS per share  HKS per share
REERRE
BAEERA
KAARGZ
B S BRE T
—8-1% RER  ZB-RF BRE BRE fix: 34 W&
SEAEZSER mA-B  REARE  REARTE  REAREE  RERER Efi78 =A=t-B RHEAH BAE BRER BREE
Other eligible participants - 275,460,000 - - - - 275,460,000  28-12-2015 28-12-2015 0 0.792 -
27-12-2020
A AEREEA —Z-nE —Z-nE
TZAZTN\B +ZAZtN\HE
kSt 3
TRz ttH
Sub-total 124,375,000 325,460,000 (1,800,000) - (1,000,000) 22,250,000 469,285,000
it
Total 233,050,000 330,460,000 (16,800,000 - (1,000,000) - 545,710,000
&zt

The closing prices of the Company’s shares immediately before the
dates on which the share options were granted, i.e. 18 April 2013, 25
April 2013, 2 February 2015, 10 November 2015 and 24 December
2015 were HK$0.37, HK$0.37, HK$0.46, HK$0.63 and HK$0.79 per
share respectively.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 28 June 2013, the Company as the issuer and WCIL, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, as the subscriber entered
into the subscription agreement (the “Subscription Agreement”) in
respect of the issue of and subscription of the convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$620,000,000 (the “Convertible
Bonds”) at the initial conversion price of HK$0.33 per conversion share
(the “Conversion Price”), representing approximately 1,878,787,878
conversion shares (the “Conversion Shares”) and the warrants in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$155,000,000 (the “Warrants”) at
the exercise price of HK$0.35 per warrant share, representing a total of
442,857,142 warrant shares (the “Warrant Shares”), respectively.

The Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, including the allotment and issue of the Conversion Shares
and the Warrant Shares under specific mandate of the Company, are
subject to the approval of the Independent Shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company.

On 24 April 2014, the Company and WCIL agreed in writing to
extend the long stop date to 31 December 2014 (the “Closing
Date”). On 8 January 2015, the Company and WCIL entered into a
letter of extension to extend the Closing Date to 8 July 2015, which
was pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the Independent
Shareholders at the special general meeting held on 19 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Convertible Bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$620,000,000 was subscribed by
WCIL and duly completed on 8 July 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the aggregate number of
1,454,545,451 Conversion Shares has been converted by WCIL and
the remaining aggregate amount of HK$140,000,000 of the Convertible
Bonds, representing approximately 424,242,424 Conversion Shares,
has not yet been converted by WCIL.
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Details of the Subscription Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 28 June 2013, 24 April 2014, 8 January 2015,
16 January 2015, 8 June 2015, 16 June 2015, 23 June 2015, 25 June
2015, 30 June 2015, 3 July 2015, 6 July 2015, 7 July 2015 and 9 July
2015, respectively and the Company’s circulars dated 15 December
2014 and 2 March 2015, respectively.

On 25 March 2015, ®EBR OFY) @MEMAEBR AR (Dingyi Bao
Yin (Shenzhen) Financial Leasing Limited*) (‘DY Bao Yin”), an indirect
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and EIEZHKREHR
[R A 8] (Zhanjiang Xin Tai Investment Company Limited*) (“Zhanjiang
Xin Tai’), an entity indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Li Kwong Yuk
(the ultimate controlling Shareholder of the Company), entered into
a finance lease agreement (the “Finance Lease Agreement”) in
respect of the lease assets (the “Lease Assets”), which are machinery
and equipment and vehicles, to be transferred and leased under the
Finance Lease Agreement. The lease consideration consists of the
principal amount of RMB7,870,000 (the “Lease Consideration”) and
the annual lease interest rate is 6.6125% for the period of 2 years and
commencing from 31 March 2015 and which will be paid by Zhanjiang
Xin Tai in four instalments on a six-month basis. Pursuant to the
Finance Lease Agreement, Zhanjiang Xin Tai has conditionally agreed
to sell the Lease Assets to DY Bao Yin at the transfer consideration of
RMB7,870,000.

Details of the Finance Lease Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 25 March 2015.

On 5 January 2016, the Company entered into a share purchase
agreement (the “Share Purchase Agreement”) with Joy Well
Investments Limited (“dWIL”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to acquire and JWIL agreed to sell 375 ordinary shares of
Ease Main Limited (“Ease Main”), a company owned as to 62.5%
by the Company and 37.5% by JWIL, which represents 37.5% of the
issued shares of Ease Main at a consideration of RMB75,000,000.
The completion of the Share Purchase Agreement took place on 11
January 2016. Upon completion, Ease Main was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and the Group continued to consolidate the
financial results of Ease Main.

*for identification purpose only
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Details of the Share Purchase Agreement are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 January 2015.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 31 March 2014, Trillion Winner Investment Ltd (“Trillion”) as the
owner entered into an aircraft charter agreement (the “2014 Aircraft
Charter Agreement”) with Dingyi Resources Limited (“Dingyi
Resources”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the charteree, pursuant to which Trillion agreed to provide and Dingyi
Resources agreed to hire the aircraft for the period commencing on
1 June 2013 and ending on 31 March 2016 for the charter price of
US$2,000 per flight hour (“Charter Price”) (excluding all other costs
and expenses shall be for the account of Dingyi Resources in relation
to hire an aircraft). The transaction pursuant to the 2014 Aircraft
Charter Agreement constituted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules as Trillion is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr. Li
Kwong Yuk, the controlling shareholder, the chairman and an Executive
Director of the Company.

On 30 March 2016, Trilion and Dingyi Resources entered into a new
aircraft charter agreement (“2016 Aircraft Charter Agreement”) to
renew the 2014 Aircraft Charter Agreement for the period from 1 April
2016 to 31 March 2019. The annual cap of the Charter Price to be
paid by Dingyi Resources will not exceed HK$5 million.

Details of the 2014 Aircraft Charter Agreement and 2016 Aircraft
Charter Agreement are set out in the Company’s announcements
dated 31 March 2014 and 30 March 2016 respectively.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, Dingyi Resources paid the
aggregate of charter price of approximately HK$1,587,000 (2015:
HK$809,000) to Trillion pursuant to the 2014 Aircraft Charter
Agreement.
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Pursuant to the Listing Rules, the Independent Non-executive Directors
have reviewed the above continuing connected transaction and
confirmed that these continuing connected transaction was entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; (i)
in accordance with the 2014 Aircraft Charter Agreement governing
it on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole; and (iv) have not exceeded
the relevant amount capped in accordance with the Company’s
announcement dated 31 March 2014.

The Auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor has
issued an unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction disclosed by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the Auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and include transactions that constitute connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been complied.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Details of the Company’s retirement benefits scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Except for the Share Option Scheme and the Convertible Bonds, at
no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Full details on the Company’s corporate governance practices are set
out on pages 30 to 46 in this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

Details of the environmental policies are set out in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Details of the relationships with employees are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of this annual report.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that maintaining good relationships with
customers has been one of the critical reasons for the Group’s
success. Our business model is to maintain and build on our strong
relationships within our client base. Our mission is to provide the finest
service to our customers and the Group is constantly looking ways
to improve customer relations through enhanced services. Regarding
the securities trading and loan financing businesses, the Group has no
major suppliers. Whereas regarding the other principal businesses, the
Group has maintained good relationship with the suppliers to ensure
their continued support to the Group in the foreseeable future.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group include strategic,
operational and financial risks.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The Directors maintain a strategic plan based on the knowledge
to the external environments. The Group will invest in projects
and investments based on the strategic plan in order to cope with
the market demand and expectation. Given the rapid change of
unforeseeable external environments in the financial and equity
markets, the Group is facing significant strategic risks on its
investments when changing the strategic plans to adopt the
unexpected changes of external environments.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management regularly reviews the Group’s operations to ensure that
the Group’s risk of losses, whether financial or otherwise, resulting from
fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance matters,
are adequately managed.

FINANCIAL RISKS

The principal financial risks are set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements heading “FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS” -
“FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES”.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for disclosed in the Management Discussion and Analysis on
pages 8 to 21 of this annual report and the section headed “SHARE
OPTION SCHEME” above, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreements during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of
the Company and the liquidator or trustees (if any) for the time being
of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities, which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto. The Company has taken out insurance against all
losses and liabilities associated with defending any proceedings which
may be brought against Directors and other officers of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company was not aware of
any non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on it.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

At the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
sufficient public floats as required under the Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2016 were
audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited as the Auditor.

By order of the Board

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
LI Kwong Yuk
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F., Lee Garden One

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

iAo

Sthe‘ZOing

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dingyi Group
Investment Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries set out on
pages 75 to 208, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
31 March 2016, and of their financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Chuen Fai

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5589

Hong Kong
28 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —=F—~NF=H=+—HI FE

2016 2015
ZE-RF —Z-hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B & BT T BT T
Continuing operations BERSEER
Revenue WA 7 40,703 28,815
Cost of sales 8 AR (4,248) (4,026)
Gross profit E7 36,455 24,789
Other income H b W 58 9 1,108 6,010
Gain on disposal of PERIEERERE 2
held for trading investments 36,774 12,448
Loss arising from changes in fair value of HIEEEREZRAAE
held for trading investments EHELZEBR (171,296) (99,361)
(Loss) gain arising from changes in fair value ~ #TAEBEEZ A ALE
of derivative financial assets, net BHELEZ (BR) RS
R 24(i) & (i) (1,017) 1,728
Realised gain on settlement of MEeTMEEHZE 2
derivative financial assets BRI 24(ii) 30,726 4,412
Loss arising from changes in fair value of MESRBEZANE
derivative financial liabilities BEYELZER 24(ii (213,321) (618,633)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale At EeREE
financial assets VERET SRS (17,375) (2,656)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB QR Z WS 40 - 9,562
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ny SR AR (3,995) (5,069)
General and administrative expenses —REITHRER (169,353) (67,967)
Finance costs BhE AR 10 (35,136) (12,136)
Loss before tax B B BB 1R 11 (506,430) (746,873)
Income tax expense Fristi & A 13 (632) (142)
Loss for the year from continuing operations KR EFELEXEHB 2
FEBR (507,062) (747,015)
Discontinued operations HRILREER
Loss for the year from discontinued REKRIEEEEK 2
operations FEER 14 - (806)
Loss for the year FEF#E (507,062) (747,321)
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —F—

NE=ZHA=1—HILFE

2016 2015
—EB-AEF —Z-hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BT T BT T
Loss for the year attributable to RABIEEB AEIREEEE
the owners of the Company
— from continuing operations —REREREER (510,919) (724,207)
— from discontinued operations —RERIEREER - (156)
Loss for the year attributable to KAEREB ANELEEEBE
the owners of the Company (510,919) (724,363)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to RIS IR FR
non-controlling interests w A (B8
— from continuing operations —REBELEET 3,857 (22,808)
— from discontinued operations —RERIEREER - (150)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to FEIE RSN E
non-controlling interests i Fl (E1R) 3,857 (22,958)
(507,062) (747,321)
Loss per share gREE 16
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARREEES
(HK cents per share) (FRAW)
— from continuing operations —REFELEER 11.535 21.915
— from discontinued operations —RERIEREER - 0.005
11.535 21.920
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
eHESRHEMEGEE W ER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —=F—~NF=H=+—HI FE

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year FEEBESR (507,062) (747,321)
Other comprehensive (expense) income FEHMGES (EH) WA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to Eigrjge B n i E R 2 A -
profit or loss:
Reclassification adjustment upon impairment At E SR E E R ER
of available-for-sale financial assets EM AR (1,183) -
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHHESREEL
financial assets NI ERE - 1,183
Exchange difference arising on translation of BEBINEREEZ
overseas operations P& 3 =& (5,050) (1,233)
(6,233) (50)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FELAEBALE (513,295) (747,371)
Total comprehensive expense EBhEEFRAERAE
for the year attributable to:
The owners of the Company KRARHEE A (517,152) (723,947)
Non-controlling interests FEZE I 1 A A 3,857 (23,424)
(513,295) (747,371)
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Consolidated statement of financial position
BHMBARAE

As at 31 March 2016 RZ-ZEF—~NF=-H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E-XEF —E—hF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
M BT T BT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Plant and equipment R = & 5% 45 17 6,263 9,831
Finance lease receivable FEU b E T E IR 22 6,579 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESREE 18 75,466 65,839
Non-current deposits and prepayments EREBFHES R
TERTRIB 20 2,582 1,813
90,890 77,483
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 19 7,607 7,850
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EREER - FHIES R
T FRIE 20 10,781 17,541
Loan and interest receivables FEWE /\&ﬂ g 21 229,056 95,555
Finance lease receivable FEl B & M & IR 22 94,723 -
Held for trading investments BIEEERE 23 629,910 118,945
Derivative financial instruments PTEEMmIT A 24 711 1,728
Cash and cash equivalents RehReEEY 25 18,312 194,020
991,100 435,639
Current liabilities REBEE
Margin loans payable ERRELER 26 376,861 14,038
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERBRR - FAE S K&
EIRE A 27 65,721 10,979
Amounts due to related companies FERT R E R RIBR R 35 2,215 311
Amount due to a director I —BEEFHIE 35 9 -
Derivative financial instruments PTEERmITE 24 - 618,633
Current income tax liabilities EHEHAaE 3,375 2,743
Obligation under a finance lease RbE T EAE 28 1,374 1,443
449,555 648,147
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (8E)FE 541,545 (212,508)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBERE 632,435 (135,025)
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Consolidated statement of financial position
BHMBRR R

As at 31 March 2016 R=F—~NF=H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —T—HF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 BT T BT T
Capital and reserves BAR#E
Share capital A% A 29 49,358 33,046
Reserves i 467,663 (317,260)
Equity attributable to the owners of NRTHEB AEGEZE
the Company 517,021 (284,214)
Non-controlling interests FEIZ I 1 A A - 69,899
Total equity ol 517,021 (214,315)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Obligation under a finance lease BhE M SR 28 - 1,373
Convertible bonds Al I 5 30 115,414 77,917
115,414 79,290
632,435 (135,025)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 75 to 208 were

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28

June 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

LI Kwong Yuk
=R
Director

EF

RET5ZE208E 2 WY BHREN T —RNF N
B+ \BHHRESEeEREETZILHTHE
EREREE:

SU Xiaonong

BER
Director

EF

e

i
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

EHEZEEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —F—~NF=H=+—HI FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KD EEEARL
Convertible
Capital bonds -
redemption Share Other Exchange  Investment equity Non-
Share Share reserve option reserve i i ion A lated controlling
capital premium (note i) reserve (note il reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
EXRERE Hibfife TRRES FRHM
%3 BRHEE (M) BRERE (Fsti) EXRDMHE REERHE ESELREHE Rt @t 3 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BB BETT BB BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2014 RZE-RFRA-B 33,046 310,376 14 16,225 5,021 () - 108,424 (65,140) 406,889 (8,987) 397,902
Loss for the year FEEE - - - - - - - - (724,363) (724,363) (22,958) (747,321)
Other comprehensive (expense) ~ EREH it 4
income for the year (BR)BA
~ Fair value gain on avallable-for- ~ — At ESBEE L
sale financial assets DhERE - - - - - - 1,183 - - 1,183 - 1,183
~ Exchange differences arising -BEENEBEEL
on translation of overseas EXEE
operations - - - - - (767) - - - (767) (466) (1,233
Total comprehensive (expense)  FRGA (B ) MALE

income for the year - - - - - (767) 1,183 - (724363 (723,947) (3424 (747371)
Changes in ownership interests in

a subsidiary that do not result in

a loss of control (note 39) - - - - 211 - - - - 21 93,173 93,384
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 40) - - - - (5,021) - - - 5,021 - 9,137 9,137
Issue of convertible bonds - equity

conversion component (note 30) - - - - - - - 5,644 - 5,644 - 5,644
Recognition of equity-settled share 3

based payments vested fRES (7 9ﬁ 533)

(note 33) - - - 26,989 - - - - - 26,989 - 26,989
Share options exercised (note 33)  2{T{ B iE (Fi3¥33) - 290 - (290) - - - - - - - -
Share options forfeited pLE tie - - - 17m - - - - 177 - - -
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 FL T ﬁﬁ A=1+-8

T-15MA-B 33,046 310,666 14 41,747 1 (844) 1,183 114,068 (784,305) (284,214) 69,899 (214,315)
Loss for the year - - - - - - - - (510,919 (510,919 3,857 (507,062)
Other comprehensive expense
for the year
- Reclassification adjustment
upon impairment of
available-for-sale financial
assets - - - - - - (1,183) - - (1,183) - (1,183)
~ Exchange differences arising -RERNEBELL
on translation of overseas EXEE
operations - - - - - (5,050) - - - (5,050) - (5,050)
Total comprehensive expense FREABREE

for the year = = = = = (5,050) (1,183) - (610919  (517,152) 3,857 (513,295)
Acquisition of addtional interests in  JithE — M 2 &] 2 B iE

a subsidiary (note 38) i (H338) - - - - 211) - = = (18,955) (19,166) (73,756) (92922)
Issue of convertible bonds - equity - %17 ﬁx :

conversion component (note 30) - - - - - - - 993,510 - 993,510 - 993,510
Issue of shares upon conversion of

convertible bonds (note 29) ) 19,091 1,312,5% - - - - - (908,059) - 423,628 - 423,628
Recognition of equity-settled share #2254 :*E:fo RER

based payments vested FREB (F5H33)

(note 33) - - - 110,762 - - - - - 110,762 - 110,762
Repurchased of ordinary shares Bk EE R (2,967) (195,960) - - - - - - - (198,927) - (198,927)
Share options exercised (note 33) B {T{EEEBE (Fi5E33) 188 11,654 - (3,262) - - - - - 8,580 - 8,580
Share options forfeited R IE - - - (118) - - - - 118 - - -
At 31 March 2016 RZZE-"E=A=1+-A 49,358 1,438,956 14 149,129 = (5,894) = 199,519 (1,314,061) 517,021 - 517,021
Notes: ks
0] Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the shares 0] EREEHEIED BARRAR AR IRGEEZ T2

repurchased which has been paid out of the distributable reserves of the BERGD CHEE
Company.
(i) Other reserve represents the gain on deemed partial disposal of subsidiaries (i) ﬁtﬁﬁ BRI ——FR-E—NFIEEHL

that do not result in a loss of control in 2011 and 2014.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —=F—~NF=H=+—HI FE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
s BT T BT T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REZEH
Loss before taxation from continuing BRI R BB EER
operations 518 (506,430) (746,873)
Loss before taxation from discontinued PREEAT R B R EET
operations E518 - (306)
(506,430) (747,179)
Adjustments for: BERBENTEIE:
Bank interest income RITH B M= (397) (723)
Effective interest income on convertible AR (& F FE IR IE 2
bond receivables R B W= - (3,229)
Finance costs & AR 35,136 12,136
Depreciation of plant and equipment 5 R EITE 3,545 3,728
Loss arising from changes in fair value of MEEMBEZARE
derivative financial liabilities SEEEEE 213,321 618,633
Loss (gain) arising from changes in fair MEEMEEZARE
value of derivative financial assets, net BEELCEE
(Wzs) HER 1,017 (1,728)
Loss arising from changes in fair value of BIEEEREZANE
held for trading investments BEEL 2 EIE 171,296 99,361
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LEMB AR Z WS - (9,562)
Written off of other payable $H 58 B b FE A 5K TE (114) -
Reversal of debtors, deposits and S AT < PR K -
prepayments previously written off GFHZEe RBENRIA
el - (1,744)
Loss on disposals of plant and equipment HEMEREE BB - 121
Impairment loss on loan and EWEREFRE 2
interest receivables BEEE - 2,335
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHHESMEE L
financial assets MEEE 17,375 2,656
Share-based payments expenses AR B ER 2 AT 110,762 26,989
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHRAERER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
s BT T BT T
Operating cash flows before movements in HEEREHRZ
working capital KEREME 45,511 1,794
Decrease in inventories FERD 243 164
(Increase) decrease in debtors, deposits FEREER - FHiES R
and prepayments TEATFRIBE (35 00) F 5,991 1,865
(Increase) decrease in loan and EREREFE
interest receivables (3g ) R (133,501) 154,829
Increase in finance lease receivable FE U B B 1H & SR N (101,302) -
Increase in held for trading investments BIEEBEREE N (682,261) (184,148)
Decrease in derivative financial assets MTESREERD - 5,588
(Decrease) increase in creditors, deposits ERER FAZRS R
and accruals TEIRE R (R 4) 38 m (1,086) 761
Increase (decrease) in amounts due to JE 1 B 38 2 A BR B G A0
related companies CRA) 1,662 (3,622)
Cash used in operations EEMAZRS (864,743) (22,769)
PRC income tax paid B BIATEH - (41)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ARREETH2REFE
ACTIVITIES (864,743) (22,810)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Purchases of available-for-sale financial BEURIECREE
assets (28,460) (44,086)
Purchases of plant and equipment BEWE K& (56) (3,146)
Interest received B U F 8 397 723
Proceeds from disposals of plant and HEMRE R&ER
equipment FriS #IE - 32
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HEMBRREERD
subsidiaries WEMAFRE - 12,979
Repayment on early redemption of a IRATER TR ES 2
convertible bond B - 74,868
Repayment to related companies EERAENAFIE - (520)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING (FAR)RBERETE 2
ACTIVITIES HEFHE (28,119) 40,850

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHRERER

[ E_E-—NEFE=H=1—HIFE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

2016 2015
—E—XE —E—RF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
s BT T BT T
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEED
Proceeds from issuance of convertible KREBBETA]MRES 2P
bonds (SO 30 600,000 20,000
New margin loans raised EEFIERECENK 362,823 14,038
Advance from a director KE—BEF BN 9 -
Proceeds from exercise of share options ITIE AR 1S 3RIB 8,580 -
Advance from related companies REAMBEBEBARZEHK 242 3,136
Transaction costs attributable to issue of BOBRESEGERS
convertible bonds AR 30 = (174)
Repayment of obligation under a finance BhE SR ER
lease (1,442) (1,385)
Interest paid SENEES (7,809) (729)
Payment on acquisition of WEE—ENB AR Z
additional interests in a subsidiary FHOME 2= 2 (T 53K 38 (41,626) -
Payment on repurchase of shares LA PANEN (198,927) -
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in HER—BHBARZ
a subsidiary (without losing control) BT 2 PTISFRIA
(3 2K = Il ) 39 - 93,384
Repayment to non-controlling interests BRI SRR IE = (312)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BETBFEECREFE
ACTIVITIES 721,850 127,958
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH ReRBRSEEY (D)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2058 (171,012) 145,998
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ROA—BZRER
AT 1 APRIL Re%EY 194,020 40,725
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents of HESEDSBEFEHRE
disposal group classified as non-current IERBEEZRE R
assets held for sale ReFEWRD - 9,277
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates INEE RSB 2 FE (4,696) (1,980)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R=ZAZ+—-HZEER
AT 31 MARCH REZEEY 18,312 194,020
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Dingyi Group Investment Limited (the “Company”) is a listed
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton, HM12, Bermuda and Unit 2708, 27/F., Convention
Plaza-Office Tower, 1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
respectively. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”).

The directors of the Company regard Wincon Capital Investment
Limited, a private limited liability company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, as the immediate and ultimate holding
company of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
carrying out loan financing business while the activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R EE S EA

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z —F—~NF=H=+—HI FE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 # % — %

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)”) and amendments issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010 - 2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycle
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

2.

SEHMBHERME

—NFZA=+—HIFE

ERFE] MR ERI BB B WS
A (BB BHHE2ER])

RAFE AEECEATIIEZESHD
G ([BEBEFMAE]) MM REE
RIREMBREEL BREEMBREE

8- FEEER ([FBEFEA ) REFT

7o

ELR FREVBRELER T —
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SEHEN) ZFEHGE

FEY EEMBHREEN-F
wEER ——HEZFT=FH
(EFTA) Hz FEME

BEG ERBAETE  BEMHK
ZRIE195%
(EFTA)

RAFERRBH MRET TRV BREE
A EHARNEERAFERBEFE 2T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT

YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

86 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Leases*

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012
- 2014 Cycle!

Disclosure Initiative’

Classification to HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers?

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation’

Agriculture: Bearer Plants’

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements!

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception'

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests
in Joint Operations'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE (Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
8 Effective date not yet been determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of
HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z-F—NF=ZH=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described below:

° All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are
held within a business model whose objective is to collect
the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 (2014) requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value
of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities’ credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated
as fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or
loss.

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and
commitments to extend credit were added. Those
requirements eliminate the threshold that was in HKAS 39
for the recognition of credit losses. Under the impairment
approach in HKFRS 9 (2014) it is no longer necessary for
a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised. Instead, expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

° HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more
closely aligns hedge accounting with risk management
activities undertaken by companies when hedging their
financial and non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-
based approach, HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a
risk component can be identified and measured and
does not distinguish between financial items and non-
financial items. The new model also enables an entity to
use information produced internally for risk management
purposes as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS
39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance
with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that
are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength of
the hedging relationship. This can be determined using
risk management data. This should reduce the costs of
implementation compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge
accounting because it reduces the amount of analysis that
is required to be undertaken only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
the amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with the customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

V) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.
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2.

—NF=A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (Continued)

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT TO HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include
a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are
summarised below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from
one of the disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or
disposal through distribution to owners) to the other should
not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a
continuation of the original plan. There is therefore no interruption
of the application of the requirements in HKFRS 5. Besides, the
amendments also clarify that changing the disposal method does
not change the date of classification.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENT TO HKFRSs 2012 -
2014 CYCLE (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract
that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement
in a financial asset. An entity must assess the nature of the
fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing
involvement in HKFRS 7 in order to assess whether the additional
disclosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred
asset that is derecognised in its entirety are required. Besides,
the amendments to HKFRS 7 also clarify that disclosures in
relation to offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities are
not required in the condensed interim financial report, unless
the disclosures provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of
high quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency
in which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds in that currency, government bond
rates must be used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes
to the interim financial statements ‘if not disclosed elsewhere in
the interim financial report’. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report. The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the
same time. If users do not have access to the other information in
this manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS 38
CLARIFICATION OF ACCEPTABLE METHODS
OF DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods
for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be
rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

ii) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
assets could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become
effective for financial statements with annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of plant
and equipment, the directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS
38 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and their treatment in the financial
statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease term of more
than 12 months, unless the underlying asset has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost which consists of
the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability,
plus any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received, the initial
estimate of restoration costs and any initial direct costs incurred
by the lessee. A lease liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
Lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the
carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payment made, and
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or
lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments. Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the
right-of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment, while
interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to profit or loss.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as operating
leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of
leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards including
HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted provided
that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers at or before the date of initial application of
HKFRS 16. The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial statements
of these requirements. However, it is not practicable to provide
a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a
detailed review.

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where and
in what order information is presented in the financial statements.
Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into consideration all
relevant facts and circumstances, how it aggregates information
in the financial statements, which include the notes. An entity
does not require to provide a specific disclosure required by
a HKFRS if the information resulting from that disclosure is
not material. This is the case even if the HKFRS contain a
list of specific requirements or describe them as minimum
requirements.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 1 DISCLOSURE
INITIATIVE (Continued)

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when
their presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s
financial position and financial performance respectively. Entities,
in which they have investments in associates or joint ventures,
are required to present the share of other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using
the equity method, separated into the share of items that (i)
will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (i)
will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the understandability
and comparability of its financial statements when
determining the order of the notes; and

(i)  significant accounting policies are not required to be
disclosed in one note, but instead can be included with
related information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
amendments to HKAS 1 in the future do not have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values at the end of reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use
in HKAS 36.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved where the Group has:

° power over the investee;

° exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee; and

° the ability to use its power over the investee to effect the
amount of the Group’s returns.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control of the subsidiary and cease when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the Group
gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP
INTERESTS IN EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods and services renders in the
normal course of business. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the

CRGIECE &
For the year ended 31 March 2016 # 2 =F—~NF=H=+—HI-FZ
FESIBEK
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FE:

following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Finance lease income is recognised using the effective interest
rate implicit in the lease over the term of the lease.

Gain or loss on the disposal of held for trading investments is
recognised on a trade date basis when the relevant transactions
are executed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and equipment held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of plant and
equipment less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives,
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the
leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods
so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s
net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASING (Continued)

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless they
are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they
are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below).

Operating leases payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising
under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
exchange fluctuation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Group entities operate various pension schemes. The schemes
are generally funded through payments to insurance companies
or trustee-administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculation. The Group has defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately administered
pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits
are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits as
defined above.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL represents financial assets held for
trading, and a financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 6¢.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including debtors and deposits, loan and interest receivables,
finance lease receivable and cash and cash equivalents) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified
as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active
market are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
monetary financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends on available-
for-sale equity investments are recognised in profit or loss.
Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation
reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment of
financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive the dividends is
established.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

° disappearance of an active market for that financial market
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as debtors, loan
and interest receivables, and finance lease receivable, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition,
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average
credit period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of debtors, loan and interest receivables and finance lease
receivable, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
debtor, loan and interest receivables or finance lease receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

E-E-AE=A= AR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including margin loans payable, creditors,
deposits and accruals, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to a director and obligation under a finance lease
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The component parts of the convertible bonds issued by the
Company are classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for
a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is an
equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component is
estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible instruments. This amount is recorded as a liability on
an amortised cost basis using the effective interest method until
extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity date.

The conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the convertible bonds as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity and is not subsequently remeasured. In
addition, the conversion option classified as equity will remain
in equity until the conversion option is exercised, in which case,
the balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the maturity date of the convertible bonds, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to accumulated
losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon
conversion or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible bonds
are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion
to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged directly in equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are
recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

Share options granted to employees

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the
fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted is expensed immediately to
profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received,
unless that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference to
the fair value of the share options granted. The fair values of the
goods or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016

3.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss,
if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON TANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses reported and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—~NF=H=4+—HI FEF

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised and disclosure made in the consolidated
financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the worldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
The Group estimates and recognises liabilities based on the
submitted tax returns and expected the final tax assessment to
be received will have no additional tax become due. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Depreciation of plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives after taking into account their
estimated residual values. The determination of the useful lives
and residual values involve management’s estimation. The Group
assesses annually the residual values and the useful lives of
the plant and equipment and if the expectation differs from the
original estimates, such a difference may impact the depreciation
charges in the year in which the estimates change.

Estimated fair value of financial instruments

As described in note B¢, the directors of the Company use their
judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
For derivative financial instruments, assumptions are made
based on quoted market rates adjusted for specific features of
the instrument. Other financial instruments are valued using a
discounted cash flow analysis based on assumptions supported,
where possible, by observable market prices or rates. The
estimation of fair value of unlisted equity instruments includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or
rates. Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in note 6c¢.
The directors of the Company believe that the chosen valuation
techniques and assumptions are appropriate in determining the
fair value of financial instruments.
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4.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Valuation of share options

As mentioned in note 33, the Group has granted share options
to directors, employees and consultants. The directors of the
Company have used an option-pricing model — Binomial model
(the “Binomial Model”) to determine the total fair value of the
options granted. The option pricing models require the input
of subjective assumptions, such as risk free rate, dividend
yield, expected volatility and expected terms, to be made by
the directors of the Company in applying the Binomial Model
(note 33). The fair value of options granted for the year ended
31 March 2016 determined using the Binomial Model was
approximately HK$110,762,000 (2015: HK$26,989,000).

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, a significant or prolonged
decline in fair value below cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment. Judgement is required when determining
whether a decline in fair value has been significant or prolonged.
In making this judgement, the historical data on market volatility
as well as the price of the specific investment are taken into
account. The Group also takes into account other factors, such
as industry and sector performance changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flow of the investee. As
at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets was approximately HK$75,466,000 (2015:
HK$65,839,000) net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$50,354,000 (2015: HK$32,979,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BHMBHRME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of loan and interest receivables and
finance lease receivable

The policy for impairment of loan and interest receivables
and finance lease receivable is based on assessments
of the recoverability of each debtor, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification of bad
and doubtful debts requires the use of judgment and estimates.
Where the actual result is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of the receivables
and doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of loan and interest
receivables was approximately HK$229,056,000 (2015:
HK$95,555,000) net of accumulated impairment loss of nil (2015:
HK$2,335,000). No impairment loss is provided for the year
(2015: HK$2,335,000).

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of finance lease
receivable was approximately HK$101,302,000 (2015: nil). No
impairment loss is provided for the year.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital structure to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) BARRRER (®
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which REEZEREEREEY (BIEMT260T
includes the margin loans payable disclosed in note 26 and WFE 2 ETTRE S B R LM 28T #E 58 2
obligation under finance lease disclosed in note 28, net of cash BHEAE) KBRS LESZEBYANL
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the RARHEBAEGER (BERAEEE)
Company comprising share capital and reserves.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure KRB EETEHRTERLERE -1EBZRE
periodically. As part of this review, the directors of the Company Z—Hy RNRREEEESHEEAEHL
consider the cost of capital and the risk associates with BEARARARRERE NEBGRBRARGES
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the ZEBER SRRMKE BITHR LK
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall M RERILA R AT ES B B IR A ES LA
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share BHBEBERERE-
issues and share buy-backs as well as issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS cRIT A
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL (A) €T ENEHR
INSTRUMENTS
2016 2015
—E-REF —T—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Financial assets TREE
FVTPL REZREANERRE
— Held for trading investments —REEERE 629,910 118,945
— Derivative financial instruments TSI A 711 1,728
Available-for-sale financial assets AfEESREE 75,466 65,839
Loans and receivables (including cash B 5 &% & W RIR
and cash equivalents) (BRATRREEED) 360,440 305,459
1,066,527 491,971
Financial liabilities ETRMAE
At amortised cost R SRR 561,594 106,061
Derivative financial instruments TEERMIA - 618,633
561,594 724,694
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-
for-sale financial assets, debtors and deposits, loan and
interest receivables, finance lease receivable, derivative
financial instruments, held for trading investments, cash
and cash equivalents, margin loans payable, creditors,
deposits and accruals, amounts due to related companies,
amount due to a director, obligation under a finance lease
and convertible bonds. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (interest
rate risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed rate finance lease receivable, loan
and interest receivables, and margin loan payable and
obligation under a finance lease.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to floating-rate short-term bank
deposits carried at prevailing market rates.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary action when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
prevailing market rates arising from the Group’s bank
balances denominated in HK$ and RMB base deposit
rate stipulated by the People’s Bank of China arising
from the Group’s bank balances denominated in
RMB.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of
the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. 1% (2015: 1%) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by
1% (2015: 1%) and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/increase by
approximately HK$109,000 (2015: decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,678,000) resulting from the
changes in the interest income from bank deposits.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. RITE (®)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) =R EAMEER W RBUEER (&)

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued) 5 E kR (%)

(i) Foreign Currency risk (i) 5% JE B
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with REBEIERBBEEER A
most transactions mainly settled in HK$. As at 31 AHEORPEBUBEEE A
March 2016, the Group holds available-for-sale —E-RF=ZA=1+—H &&E
financial assets, held for trading investments and ERALRIT (RT]EEZ
bank deposits denominated in Australian dollar A ESREE FIEEER
(“AUD”) and bank deposits denominated in Renminbi BERBITFERARUARE (TA
(“‘RMB”). Foreign exchange risk arises when future R¥ ) EHE 2 IRITF R INE R
commercial transactions or recognised assets or BNERREAER GO ERE
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not EXBBENTIEREEEEE
the Group’s functional currency. The Group does not LEBHERELE AEEILE
have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the INEEER R A BRREES
management monitors foreign exchange exposure BEERONE B KRN ERFEE
and will consider hedging the potential foreign HORBEINE B g

currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets RMEBAR NEEUBRERSE
and liabilities denominated in currencies other than EER,EBMEEENINCZE
the respective functional currencies of the relevant BB EYKEERBEZRERT

group entities at the end of the reporting period are as (ERCNE

follows:
Assets
BE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—HEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
AUD BIT 75,832 88,483
RMB AR¥E 2,975 3,061
Others HAth 2,645 220

BB ABRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(i) Foreign Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to AUD and RMB.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 1% (2015: 1%) increase and decrease in
the functional currencies of the relevant group
entities, RMB or HK$, against the relevant foreign
currencies. 1% (2015: 1%) is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for
a 1% (2015: 1%) change in foreign currency rates.

A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss for the year where the respective
functional currencies (HK$ or RMB) strengthens 1%
(2015: 1%) against the relevant foreign currency
(AUD, RMB or other currencies). For a 1% (2015: 1%)
weakening of respective functional currency (HK$
or RMB) against the relevant foreign currency (AUD,
RMB or other currencies), there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year
and the balances below would be negative.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHMBREMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. RITE (®)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) =R EAMEER W RBUEER (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Market risk (Continued) 5 E kR (%)
(i) Foreign Currency risk (Continued) (i) P B fE (%)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRERE DT (&)
Effect on profit or loss
HiEzoge
2016 2015
—E—XREF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Strengthen against AUD by 1% $RITHE% 633 739
Strengthen against RMB by 1% HAREHE1% 25 26
Strengthen against other HEMEBHE1%
currencies by 1% 22 2

BB ABRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iij) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in listed equity securities and these
investments are classified on the consolidated
statement of financial position either as available-for-
sale financial assets or held for trading investments.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, the management has appointed
a special team to monitor the price risk and will
consider hedging the risk exposure should the need
arise.

The sensitivity analysis below have been determine
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the end
of the reporting period.

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been increased/
decreased by 1% (2015: 1%) and all other variables
were held constant, the post-tax loss of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2016 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$5,260,000 (2015:
HK$993,000) resulting from the changes in fair value
of these listed investments.

If the share price of the listed investments classified
as available-for-sale financial assets had been
increased/decreased by 1% (2015: 1%) and all
other variables were held constant, the investment
revaluation reserve as at 31 March 2016 would
increase/decrease by approximately HK$755,000
(2015: HK$658,000) resulting from the change in fair
value of available-for-sale.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk

Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
financial assets, held for trading investments, debtors and
deposits, loans receivables, finance lease receivable and
cash and cash equivalents.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of the reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual debt at the end of each reporting period
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

In respect of loan and interest receivables, and finance
receivable, representing financing advances to customers
under the Group’s loan financing and financial leasing
business, individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
financial background and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

In respect of the loan and interest receivables arising from
the Group’s loan financing business, 23% (2015: 88%)
of the total gross loan and interest receivables as at 31
March 2016 was due from the Group’s largest customer
and 77% (2015: 100%) of the total gross loan and interest
receivables as at 31 March 2016 was due from the Group’s
five largest customers for the Group’s loan financing
business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of the finance lease receivables arising from the
Group’s financial leasing business, 93% (2015: nil) of the
total gross finance lease receivable as at 31 March 2016
was due from the Group’s largest customer and 100%
(2015: nil) of the total gross finance lease receivable as
at 31 March 2016 was due from the Group’s five largest
customers for the Group’s financial leasing business.

In respect of the debtors arising from the Group’s metal
trading business, no outstanding balance (2015: 100%)
as at 31 March 2016 was due from the Group’s largest
customer.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for loan and interest receivables is mainly in Hong
Kong, which accounted for 97% (2015: 100%) of loan
receivables as at 31 March 2016 and 2015.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations for finance lease receivables is mainly in the PRC,
which accounted for 100% (2015: nil) of finance lease
receivable as at 31 March 2016.

The Group has no concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations for debtors as at 31 March 2016
(2015: 100% in the PRC).

The directors of the Company consider the credit risk is
under control since the management exercises due care in
granting credit and checking the financial background of
these customers on a regular basis.

The credit risk on held for trading investments, liquid fund
and available-for-sale financial assets is limited because
they are deposited with financial institutions or investment
counterparties with high credit quality and the Group does
not expect any significant counterparty risk.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely by
the management of the Company. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group will be able to meet its
financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The maturity
dates for non-derivative financial liabilities are based on the
agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at
the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. @Rt T E (@)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (B) £REAMREEENMREE (&)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
or within  but less than but less than undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows amount
RERS BE—F BAWE AFRRE
R-FR EIREE BIREEF MEBE REE
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT BE®TT BB T BETT
As at 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilties FiTEERBERE
Margin loans payable ERRESER 377,757 - - 377,757 376,861
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER FARE2R
BRER 65,721 - - 65,721 65,721
Amounts due to related companies EREEARRA 2,215 - - 2,215 2,215
Amount due to a director i —2ESEX 9 - - 9 9
Convertible bonds R ES - 140,000 - 140,000 115,414
Obligation under a finance lease REHEAE 1,400 - - 1,400 1,374
447,102 140,000 - 587,102 561,594
More than More than
On demand one year two years Total
orwithin - butless than  but less than  undiscounted Carrying
one year two years five years cash flows Amount
REX BiE—F BEME AABHE
R—FR BLRME BLRTE MEEE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT EBTT BET BT BETT
As at 31 March 2015 R-E-EF=A=+-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTEERBEE
Margin loans payable JE 111%a7i§'§tA 14,048 - - 14,048 14,038
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERBARER
,ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ 10,979 - - 10,979 10,979
Amounts due to related companies [EREERRRR 311 - - 311 311
Convertible bonds R ES 2,000 22,000 102,167 126,167 77,917
Obligation under a finance lease REMERE 1,527 1,400 - 2,927 2,816
28,865 23,400 102,167 164,432 106,061
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AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. RITE (®)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C) GO BMRRERABRZAR
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED Bt E
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The following table provides an analysis of financial TRIBHEESBMTE 2O IRRETE
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end M ERERERARZAAEE
of each reporting period for recurring measurement, WRBEAEESHBRERARER
grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which BRI BEENBERF—BANEZE=R
the fair value is observable in accordance to the Group’s Bl o

accounting policy.

31/3/2016
—E-R"E=A=t—H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E— A E=R7 B
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREAREREZ
SRMEE
Derivative financial assets TEEREE
— Listed future contracts —LTHEEH 711 - 711
Held for trading investments HIEEBERE
- Listed equity investments - FHRARE 603,031 26,879 629,910
Available-for-sale financial assets TAHHESRHEE
Listed equity investments FhlRARE 75,466 - 75,466
Total HEE 679,208 26,879 706,087

BB ABRAT
—s-—xgen 199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

2T E (%)
(C) EHHBRARAEREZAN

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

=]

& (@)

31/3/2015
“E-hF¥=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 3 Total
E—7 E=45 ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT
Financial assets at FVTPL RERREARBEEREZ
SRMEE
Derivative financial assets TESREE
- Listed equity call options — FRARRE B 1,728 - 1,728
Held for trading investments BIEEERAE
- Listed equity investments - EIBRAKE 89,035 29,910 118,945
Available-for-sale financial assets T HESREE
Listed equity investments FHRARE 65,839 - 65,839
Total ek 156,602 29,910 186,512
Financial liabilities at FVTPL RERRRAREREZ
SRARE
Derivative financial liabilities TESHMEE
— Unissued convertible bonds —RETURRES - 618,633 618,633

Held for trading investments with carrying amount of
approximately HK$26,879,000 (2015: 29,910,000) has
been suspended for trading as at 31 March 2016 and
31 March 2015. The fair value of those held for trading
investments was determined by using market approach

which were transferred form Level 1 to Level 3 accordingly

in 2015 and remained as Level 3 in 2016. There were

no other transfers between level of fair value hierarchy in

BREEAY B 126,879,000t ( —E—F
B #520,010,0007T ) 7 FHIEE FH&

BN T —

NEZA=+—HBkZ

T-RF=-A=+—REFEE %%
HIEEBEREZANEBEBEATS
FEE AR T —RAFHEERE—
B EEE=FRN LR —F—RFK
REE=AH RAFEIBEFE-

current and prior years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. RILTE &

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (C)

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements on
financial instruments as at 31 March 2016 and 2015 as set
out below:

As at 31 March 2016

B BRRRABRZD R
BT & ()

e

R_E—RNER-_ZF—HF=ZA
=+—H BRI EZE=FAR
REFEZEREINWOT
R-BE—-XE=A=+—H

Significant unobservable

Valuation technique Key input inputs
& (B B i FEBABE EXTUHERAEE
Held for trading investment Market approach Volatility levels Volatility levels of 35.9%-118.1%
(note a)
HIEEERE RN AN B 1@ 7K F35.9%-118.1%
(Mtzta)

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

As at 31 March 2015

6. &R E (%)
(C) EHHBRARAEREZAN

Bt & (&)

R-ZZE—RF=A=+—H

Significant unobservable

Valuation technique Key input inputs
fhE R FTE@WARE EXTAHERRAEE
Unissued convertible bonds Binominal option Volatility levels Volatility levels of 53.11% (note a)
pricing model
REITRRRE S —IEAAREEERN  OREKT BB FEE3.11% (HisEa)
Held for trading investment Market approach Volatility levels Volatility levels of 48.00% (note a)
FHIEEERE %A B 8 7K S B IR K F48.00% (Ffita)

The fair value of unissued convertible bonds were
determined by using binominal option pricing model that
consider the possible future prices for each period in time
as well as the respective probability. The fair value of held
for trading investments were determined by using market
approach that reflects recent market value of comparable
companies with similar business, adjusted for differences in
nature, scope and location of the business.

Note a: A slight 5% (2015: 5%) increase in the rate of volatility levels
used would result in a significant increase in the fair value
measurement of the unissued convertible bonds and held for
trading investments and vice versa.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6.
(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — %

RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

EHMBHERME

—NFZRA=+—HIFE

2T E (%)
(C)

B BRRRABRZD R
BT & ()

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements on DA B R E T = BB AR ERT
recurring basis: EHER:
Convertible
bonds -
conversion Held for Unissued
option trading convertible
component investment bonds Total
AaRES - HEEE RET
RRREEDA RE HRRES &t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETT BETT
At 1 April 2014 R-E-NFEA—H 96 - - 96
Transfers into of Level 3 BEZEE=R7 - 29,910 - 29,910
Recognition of unissued RRETARRES
convertible bonds - - (536,601) (536,601)
Settlement upon early redemption 1R R E B A AR EHEER
of convertible bond (96) - - (96)
Loss arising on changes of AAEERELE BB
fair value - - (82,032) (82,032)
At 31 March 2015 and RZE-RAF=A=+—HK
1 April 2015 —hEMA—H - 29,910 (618,633 (588,723
Issue of convertible bonds BIABRES - - 831,954 831,954
Loss arising on changes of AREEDHELIER
fair value - (3,031) (213,321) (216,352)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-R"E=ZA=+—H - 26,879 - 26,879

The above loss arising from changes in fair value for the

year ended 31 March 2016 recognised in profit or loss of

approximately HK$3,031,000 (2015: nil) and approximately
HK$213,321,000 (2015: HK$82,032,000) are included in
“Loss arising from changes in fair value of held for trading

investments” and “Loss arising from changes in fair value of

derivative financial liabilities” respectively in the consolidated

statement of profit or loss.

TR BERARRZEE_S—~F
AT+ HLEFEZANELES
B4 2 1848 13,031,000T (=&
— R F &) RB T 49213,321,000T
ZT—HF B%82,082,0007T) * &
RIETAGHERER [(BHIFEEREY
AAEZHEEZEEI RITTESR
BEZAANBENELEZEBE] A

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

6.

7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(C) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNISED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other current financial assets and liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their corresponding fair value
due to short-term maturities. The directors of the Company
consider that fair value of other non-current financial assets
and liabilities approximate to their carrying amounts as
the impact of discounting of non-current assets is not
significant and the non-current liabilities are amortised at
market interest rates.

REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of food and
beverages, metal trading income, financial leasing income,
interest income from provision of loan financing and dividend
income from held for trading investments during the year. The
following is an analysis of the Group'’s revenue from continuing

6.

2T E (%)

(C) EHUBRRRABREZAN
Bt & (&)

ARREERR AREHRHNE
REHPHRERAUEFEKALER
Hpn@emEER BB ZRAER
HAEZARERE - ARREFER
5 HRERBDEENEIFEYTE
REIFERBEETIIRT SN -
BHMFRDEMEERBBERE
EHAREEMES -

YA

RER WABKREERHEE cBEEWR
A BEMERA REERBRE ZF WK
ARFHEEBERE ZBBWAZWA - K&
BREFELEEBZWRAZITMT

operations:

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Revenue represents amounts received and WASEZR BT E WK

receivable from: FEW 2 &8

Sales of food and beverages BHRIHE 8,298 10,698
Metal trading income cBEREWA - 643
Financial leasing income EhEHE WA 4,175 -
Dividend income e B A 3,404 -
Interest income from provision of loan financing = # & @ E 2 5 8 A 24,826 17,474
40,703 28,815

An analysis of the Group’s revenue by segments is set out in note
8.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable segments are identified and reported in the manner
consistent with internal reports to the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-marker (executive
directors) in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance
of the reportable segments based on the revenue and profit/
loss presented. No operating segments identified by the chief
operating decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

The Group has five reportable and operating segments (i)
securities trading business; (i) trading of wine business; (iii)
food and beverages — restaurant business; (iv) loan financing
business; (v) metal trading business and (vi) financial leasing
business, which the segment of (vi) is newly operated during the
year ended 31 March 2016. Segment revenue is measured in
a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, financial leasing business
was identified as a reportable and operating segment because
financial leasing business is one of principal activity of the Group
and the chief operating decision-maker believes that such
reporting better reflects the segments’ performance based on the
respective nature of relevant operating units.

An operating segment regarding food and beverages — restaurant
and bars business in Hong Kong was discontinued during the
year ended 31 March 2015. The segment information reported
for the year ended 31 March 2015 does not include any amounts
for these discontinued operations, which are described in more
details in note 14.

8.

SEEHR

BYZ2 ﬁZ”ﬁEEIEME%%%(ﬁﬁ

)T HEHNABREATHERRED
éﬁz—ﬁﬁi%uﬁﬂ&ﬂ$%ﬁi¥
FTEEERRERBMZHRZBARFIE,

N

BIEAGETERZIVBIRA - REEAR
SEATER OEE TEAHAEEE

BERREMBRIZEEDE-

¥ MEM@E%% U%%E

NVighEMEEER AP EWVi)E
EZT—RF=ZR=+— Eiirﬁw“
D NBEWARBEREHIBERRZ —BA
HEtE o

@ZK iﬁ_/\fﬁzﬁ E+_ Eﬁig ’ EEE/\\\
MEMEEBAAEEC T EXK s —RF
ERERRERAEHERTREANLE
BB ZMERIF RS ARE -
BAHEXEBEFNRATERREEDIH-

FHER - BRERNBBEERZKENHE
EREBE-ZT-—AF=A=1T—HLEFER
BIEgE - NBE_T—HF=-HA=1—H
IEFE2Hz D EERW B AZFLRIEL
EEBzEMNTE FRELZFBHNWME
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

8.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable and operating segment:

@
N

N

DRER (8)
DHEWAREE

AEBEXREFERL
TERMEEDE

DT

CERTE 2 WA R RERA

Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E—RE=A=+—HLEE
Food and
Securities  Trading of beverages - Loan Metal Financial
trading wine  restaurant Financing trading leasing
business business business business business business Total
EH BE 8- £ 2B BE
BEXK BEXK BEXY REXY BEXK HEEK @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BB T BT T BT T BETT BB T
Continuing operations HESEER
Revenue /9N
External revenue LIS ON 3,404 - 8,298 24,826 - 4175 40,703
Gain on disposal of held for trading HEREEEREZ
investments Wz 36,774 - - - - - 36,774
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BB 58 (131,165) - (1,393) 24,307 - 3720 (104441)
Interest income FEKA 397
Finance costs BEMAK (35,136)
Loss arising from changes in fair value of  HT4£ & BEBANEEH
derivative financial liabilities EEZEE (213,321)
Loss arising from changes in fair value of  $T4 ¢ REEZ A EE
derivative financial assets, net EEZEE FE (1,017)
Realised gain on settlement of derivative T4 ¢ BAEEE 2 BB
financial assets 30,726
Impairment loss on available-for-sale HNESREEZRESE
financial assets (17,375)
Unallocated corporate income AABAFMA 597
Unallocated corporate expenses AABEAAAY (166,860)
Loss before tax BHAER (506,430)

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

BE-F—AE=ZA=F—AILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DIEEFR (&)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued) DEWARES ()
Year ended 31 March 2015 HEZZT—RAF=-A=1+—HLFE
Food and

Securities Trading of  beverages - Loan Metal

trading wine restaurant financing trading

business business business business business Total

B B BH- X 2B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BETT BT BB BT
Continuing operations BELEEK
Revenue ['ON
External revenue NI A - - 10,698 17,474 643 28,815
Gain on disposal of held for trading  HERHEBEBERE 2 Wz
investments 12,448 - - - - 12,448
Segment (loss) profit 28 (BR) A8 (90,485) - 1,002 15,139 (2,794) (77,138)
Interest income FIBHA 3,952
Finance costs BEKAE (12,136)
Loss arising from changes TESRBEALEED
in fair value of derivative EEZER
financial liabilities (618,633
Gain arising from changes MTESREEZRAER
in fair value of derivative EEzWaE 38
financial assets, net 1,728
Realised gain on derivative MTESREEZEER YA
financial assets 4,412
Impairment loss on available-for-sale ] & & Bl & & 2 B EEE
financial assets (2,656)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz dE 9,562
Unallocated corporate income bl NI ON 314
Unallocated corporate expenses NG (656,278)
Loss before tax BB AIE R (746,873)

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
SEGMENT REVENUE AND RESULTS (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit/loss represents the profit earned by/loss from
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, interest income, exchange loss, net, gain
on disposal of subsidiaries, loss arising from changes in fair value
of derivative financial liabilities, gain/loss arising from changes in
fair value of derivative financial assets net, impairment loss on
available-for-sale financial assets, finance costs and depreciation
of certain plant and equipment. This is the measure reported to
the chief operating decision-maker for the purposes of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
reportable and operating segment:

N

DIEER (&)
PTEWRAREE (®)

RESE SHBREAEE Y & +ﬁ%m
H(JWWE%WJ S¥EFE BB E
DRI FE, EECEE MLES M
FRITRER EFHFMW -FIERAER
EBEFE HEWBATKE TELHA
Bz ARERDELZEER TEEREE
DAREEBES W EIRFE AT
ELMEEZ RERBE BERALE T
)%& SEITE -REED I RFRFT G
BT EEE AR ES RN

\

THREEREE
REBZEERBBERERMEEDEZY
W :

2016 2015
At —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Continuing operations FEREEL

Segment assets PTHEE

Securities trading business BHEBEED 629,910 118,945
Trading of wine business BEEEEK 7,250 7,250
Food and beverages — restaurant business ﬂﬁk —BEEE 1,869 3,731
Loan financing business BERREES 229,056 95,555
Metal trading business TBEBEXED - 9,053
Financial leasing business BEREES 101,302 -
Total segment assets DIEEEHLRE 969,387 234,534
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEAREE 112,603 278,588
Total consolidated assets EHEEHE 1,081,990 513,122
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Continued)

N

DRER (8)
THEEERERS (8

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Segment liabilities PEEE

Securities trading business BEEEED 376,861 14,038
Trading of wine business BB = -
Food and beverages — restaurant business BR—BEES 5,433 5,624
Loan financing business EXRREEY 4 -
Metal trading business CEEBEXD = 13
Financial leasing business BEREE 429 -
Total segment liabilities DB EEE 382,727 19,675
Unallocated corporate liabilities Ao EEE 182,242 707,762
Total consolidated liabilities atEERE 564,969 727,437
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and MERSERRELASEROEERMS :

allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments other than

certain plant and equipment, available-for-sale financial

assets, certain deposits, prepayment and other debtors,

derivative financial instruments and cash and cash

equivalents; and

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than

certain deposit, accruals and other payables, amounts due

to related companies, amount due to a director, current

income tax liabilities, derivative financial instruments,

obligation under a finance lease and convertible bonds.

s FEBEEEUIEERKLENE (BETHE
L& rftbEemEE - ETFD
1w AR R EMERERR  ITE
TRTARBRS MRSFEMHRIN)

M

s MARBEESEELENE ETHL
B BEERREMENERR BN
FEABERR BN —REFHRAE
HpEnaE TEemI A #ER
EARERABRBERRIN)

REEEREARAQA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. NEEF(#
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION HbpEER
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E—RE=ZA=1+—HLEE
Food and
Securities  Trading of beverages - Loan Metal Financial
trading wine restaurants financing trading leasing
business business business business business business  Unallocated Total
&% ik} BH- £ k4 | Mg
BEEEY EEER ABEEY REEY  HEEY 0 AEXy RAE st

HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS$'000
A®Tn  BBTn  A%Tx BTz B%Tn BTz B%Tn  BETx

Continuing operations BFRESEER
Amounts included in the measure of Rt E A BBk E B

segment profit or loss or segment DREEBTAZEE:

assefs:
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE

(other than available-for-sale (TRETHRIEE ?ﬁﬁ‘l BER

financial assets and finance ERRERERE

lease receivable) - - 10 - = = 815 825
Depreciation of plant and equipment B MR ETE - - 743 = = = 2,802 3,545
Loss arising from changes in fair value ~ HFEEREZ AAEEH

of held for trading investments EEZER 171,296 - = = = = - 171,296
Written off of other payable HMEHMERER - - (114) = = = o (114)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief  E IR T T ELLRRE

operating decision-maker but not R EDEFEREER

included in the measure of segment PEEERURTAZEE:
profit or loss or segment assets:

Interest income FEWA - - - - - - (397) (397)
Finance costs BEKA - - - - - - 35,136 35,136
Income tax (credit) expense FiH (B%)RX - - (251) - - 883 = 632
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

BE-F—AE=ZA=F—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. DIEEFR (&)
OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) Hib 2 ¥EER (@)
For the year ended 31 March 2015 BE_Z—RF=-A=1+—HILFE
Food and
Securities Trading of  beverages - Loan Metal
trading wine restaurants financing trading
business business business business business  Unallocated Total
EH g B R Ea
BEEY BEEK EEER BEEK BEEK AOE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BT BT BT BB BB BB
Continuing operations HECSEER
Amounts included in the RitEHEFEHERENL
measure of segment profit o SRBERAZEE:
loss or segment assets:
Additions to non-current assets ~ FERBEERE (TR
(other than available-for-sale AREESHERE)
financial assets) - - 17 - - 4,806 4,823
Depreciation of plant and BEREETE
equipment - - 758 - 33 2,500 3,291
Loss arising from changes FEBEREZANERE
in fair value of held for trading B4 7B
investments 99,361 - - - - - 99,361
Impairment loss on loan EREFZRESE
receivables - - - 2,335 - - 2,335
Reversal of debtors, deposits S A0 882 EUER
and prepayments previously ke RER
written off B2 BE - - (1,744) - - - (1,744)
Amounts regularly provided to  THIRBRTEELEREE
the chief operating R EHEFE
decision-maker but not BERHEEE:
included in the measure of WARFAZ R
segment profit or loss or
segment assets:
Interest income FIBHA - - - - - (3,952) (3,952)
Finance costs B & KA - - - - - 12,136 12,136
Income tax (credit) expense FiisH (Ke)Ax (137) - 252 27 - - 142
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & R

The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and United States of America (the
“USA”).

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on the
location of the operations. Information about the Group’s non-
current assets (excluding available-for-sale financial assets,
finance lease receivable and those related to discontinued
operations) is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets.

ARBZE2EURELE PEARAME
(THE]) REMEERE ([XE]) -

BERAKBERAIINNEP 2HBERLLEEBTK
AZBRIREEMERES| - BRAREEZ
FRBEE(TEEAHRLESHEE &
WREHERAREBK HEEXGHAEE)
ZERREEMEMEUERY -

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—~NF=H=4+—HI FEF

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued)

8. HFEEFR (#/)
i & & R (@)

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets
REMIEEZHBA FREBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
“B-RFE 0% “E-RE _ZT-IE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETT BETT BT
Hong Kong Bk 27,376 17,474 6,551 9,272
PRC H 13,327 11,341 2,272 2,372
USA E35 - - 22 -
40,703 28,815 8,845 11,644
The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 REERBEZE_Z—RFR_ZT—HF=H
March 2016 and 2015. =S+ —BIEFEWEAEE S HHE -
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBETEEFNER
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing KREEEFEZEPIWA (hAREEK AR
over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: FEEBIBE10%) T
2016 2015
—E-XF  —ZT-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Customer A' BEPA N/AT & F3° 10,580
Customer B! ZFB 4,509 N/AZ 38 A2
Customer C? BFC? 3,782 N/AT i 8
7 Revenue from loan financing business ! REERRMEEBZ WA

2 Revenue from financial leasing business
g The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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10.

OTHER INCOME

Notes to the Consolidated Financi

al Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

9. Eftlas

2016 2015
ZEB-AEF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Effective interest income on FEM AT IR B 5 2 B FIE A
convertible bond receivables - 3,229
Reversal of debtors, deposits and RIS < PR K -
prepayments previously written off FHZES RBEMNRIAREE - 1,744
Bank interest income HRIT A B W s 397 723
Written off of other payable P 5 LA E SRR 3R 114 -
Others HAt 597 314
1,108 6,010
FINANCE COSTS 10. B & B
2016 2015
—EB-AE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on margin loans payable ERNRESERTE 7,724 587
Effective interest expense on convertible AMREFZERMEMAS
bonds (note 30) (Pff5£30) 27,327 11,407
Interest expenses on a finance lease BEREZFERX 85 142
35,136 12,136

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging:

11. BRI AIE 1R

BEATEIEES R TIIRIE:

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Continuing operations BEREER
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments  ZEENEBTHAE8&
(note 12) (MEE12) 7,431 7,701
Other staff costs (excluding directors’ and HEMETINA(TBEESR
chief executive’s emoluments) FETHRAEHSE) 7,519 5,583
Share-based payments expenses AR B ERANRHE X
(excluding directors’ and (TBEEEER
chief executive’s emoluments) FETHRAEMSE) - 1,017
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIRAE FET B
(excluding directors’ and (TEEESEK
chief executive’s emoluments) FETBAEME) 168 127
Total staff costs B TR ALREE 15,118 14,428
Amount of inventories recognised PEHRAAAXZFESR
as an expense 4,248 4,026
Impairment loss on loan and W EREFB 2 HEEE
interest receivables - 2,335
Auditors’ remuneration = RN E & 1,350 1,350
Depreciation of plant and equipment WEREEITE 3,545 3,291
Operating lease payments in respect of ZEHEENFETHHEEMX
leasing of premises under minimum lease B ERER R
payments 9,666 8,915
Exchange loss, net & X B8 558 4,788 2,894
Share-based payments expenses granted to & FRAM 2 LARR 1D A EFE
consultants (note) F sz (BsE) 108,995 20,741

Notes: It represents share options granted to external consultants in exchange
for services rendered to the Group. Please refer to note 33 for details.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBREMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ
12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EENTETHRABZHBAK
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’ EE <
EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S (A) BEERFETHRAEZHME
EMOLUMENTS
Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and BEXNHEREAQAREEREBITH
chief executive of the Company are as follows: AEZEBZMEWT
2016
—B-RE
Retirement
Salaries benefit Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme payments
fees benefits  contribution expenses Total
D%
ek BB AEHY
2N HigH TEMX FREX k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BET R BETR BETR BET

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect ofa  FLEAAEARAF S
person’s services as a director, whether of ~ EMBARES
the Company or its subsidiary undertaking ~ FTiRft 2 fR#5 M E 3%

ez B &
Executive Director: HiTES:
Li Kwong Yuk EHiE - 3,534 a4 1,767 5,345
Su Xiaonong EER - 446 38 - 484
Cheung Sze Ming ST - 1,304 18 - 1,322
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES:
Cao Kuangyu ERT 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki AER 150 - - - 150
Ip Chi Wai (appointed on 31 March 2016) LR (RZT—R%F

=ZA=+t—-BEZ#E) - - = = =
Sun Dongsheng (resigned on 30 April 2015)  BEA (R -ZT—FF

A=+ HET) 10 - - - 10

280 5,284 100 1,767 7,431

BB ABRAT
—s—xeem 191



152

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—~NF=H=4+—HI FEF

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

EXECUTIVE’S

Emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

e 8 2 B

12. BENTEBTHRABZHFMAK
& (&)

A) EERFETBRAEZHME

(&)

EXNRENARBEEREIETH

chief executive of the Company are as follows: AEEBZMEWT
2015
—Z-1fF
Retirement
Salaries benefit  Share-based
Directors’ and other scheme payments
fees benefits contribution expenses Total
PARR 9 A&
Hek RIKEF b-tpd
EZHe Hi a7 SRR BE i3 BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BBTT BEETT BETT BETT BETT
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of  FLEAIAEARAF S
a person’s services as a director, EMBRRIES
whether of the Company or PRtz R ME 5k
its subsidiary undertaking e 2 Bl &
Executive Director: HTES:
Li Kwong Yuk ThE - 240 31 - 271
Su Xiaonong R - 446 38 4,185 4,669
Cheung Sze Ming R - 1,393 18 1,046 2,457
Independent Non-Executive Director: BUFHTES:
Cao Kuangyu BT (R=T—NF
(appointed on 12 December 2014) +-A+-HEZT) 34 - - - 34
Sun Dongsheng BRA 120 - - - 120
Chow Shiu Ki AER 150 - - - 150
304 2,079 87 5,231 7,701

Mr. Su Xiaonong is also the chief executive of the Company

and his emoluments disclosed above include those for

services rendered by him as the chief executive.

None of the directors and the chief executive of the

Company waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid
by the Group during the two years ended 31 March 2016
and 2015. No emoluments were paid or payable by the

Group to the directors and chief executive of the Company

as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as

compensation for loss of office during the two years ended

31 March 2016 and 2015.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12.

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(B) EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

The five highest paid individuals included two directors
(2015: two directors), details of whose emoluments are
set out in note 12(a) above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining three (2015: three) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

EHHBEHREMEE
BE-F-AFZA=+—ALFE
BEENTETHABE ZEHMNAKL
BE WM& (&)

B) EEzM=
hEBREFALTEBERG (ZE—1
FWMB)ET HEWe 2 FBEEHS
XM FE120@) XN FHR T =4 (=
E—RAF:ZZ)Eag ALz
—F:

2016 2015

—E-XHF —E—AF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEEYEAF 3,019 1,137
Share-based payments expenses ARG 10 B ETR 2 S X - 1,017
Retirement benefit scheme contribution IROKREFETEI 3k 20 30
3,039 2,184

The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three)
highest paid individuals fall within the following bands:

BRT=2(ZF—LF =R)&%5%
AL zHMEI D B THIEE

2016 2015

—B-KF —T-hfF

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEAE BB A

Nil — HK$1,000,000 7 — 711,000,000 1 2
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 75 %1,000,0017T —

& 1,500,0007T 2 1

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the two years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015.

RBE-_F-—A"Eh-_FT-0%¥=A
=+—BIMEFEHE ~EEHRE
ENSENREHEA LIS  (ERKS
MMASKP AR E B ) 52/ - S ER
BERAE-

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE . FMEHER
2016 2015
ZEB-AEF —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Continuing operations BEREEL
Current income tax EHIFTIS R
Hong Kong BB - 27
The PRC aa 883 252
883 279
Over-provision in prior years RIBEFE BB
The PRC & (251) -
Deferred income tax (note 31) EIEFTE R (F5E31)
Current year KEF[E = (137)
Income tax expenses Frisii & R 632 142

Hong Kong profits tax was calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2015:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits. For the year ended
31 March 2015 and 2016, no provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax
as the assessable profit was wholly absorbed by the tax losses
brought forward. For the year ended 31 March 2015, Hong
Kong profit tax has been made after offsetting tax losses brought
forward from previous year of each individual company.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

Overseas profits tax, the USA taxation which was calculated
based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdiction on the
estimated assessable profits. No provision of overseas profits tax
has been made as the Group did not have any assessable profits
subject to overseas profits tax for both years.

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the British Virgin Islands
(the “BVI") and Bermuda, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the BVI and Bermuda.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

13. TS ER (8)
REFFEHEREAGIBRETITZBE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or AIEIBE RN T -
loss as follows:
2016 2015
At —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss before tax from continuing operations RERBERKEEB 2 BRBATER (506,430) (746,873)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5%  IZ A ETISF R 16.5%+1E 2 1B
(2015: 16.5%) (ZZE—RF:16.5%) (83,560) (123,234)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries REMRDEEERLE Z
operating in other jurisdictions MEBARz T TRMENZE 204 85
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR 2 g & 65,808 111,970
Tax effect of non-taxable income BRI S 2 MG & (670) (17,357)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERMEBIE BB E 26,355 28,831
Tax effect of temporary different RERELREB MG E
not recognised 222 -
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously f FliB 7T KR 2 TS E1E 2
not recognised k% (7,476) (153)
Over-provision in prior years KRBT FEBEEE (251) -
Income tax expenses FriSti &R 632 142

Details of deferred income tax are disclosed in note 31.

BEFTEH 2 BRI 31K EE -

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 30 December 2013, World Pointer Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, issued a written notice (the “Notice”)
to CL Holdings Limited, the non-controlling interests of Eastech
Limited, Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited and Grand Concept
(Hong Kong) Limited (together, the “World Pointer Group
Companies”) to exercise a put option (“WP Put Option”) to
sell all (but not part only) of the 51% interests in the issued
share capital for each of the World Pointer Group Companies
(the “WP Option Shares”) at an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$25,000,000 to CL Holdings Limited. If the Group did not
exercise the WP Put Option, CL Holdings Limited had a put
option (“CL Put Option”), granted by World Pointer at the grant
date of the WP Put Option, to sell the remaining 49% interests
in the issued share capital of World Pointer Group Companies to
World Pointer Limited with exercise period from 1 January 2014
to 15 January 2014. The directors of the Company exercised the
WP Put Option on 30 December 2013 in consideration of the WP
Put Option is in-the-money and can maximum the return for the
shareholders of the Group. The Notice has a six-month notice
period which will expire on 30 June 2014, and the completion of
the sale and purchase of the WP Option Shares was taken place
on 4 July 2014. There is a gain on disposal of the World Pointer
Group Companies of approximately HK$9,562,000 recognised in
profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2015.

The operations of the restaurants and bar business carried out
by World Pointer Group Companies up to the reporting period
end date are presented in the consolidated financial statements
of the Group as discontinued operations for the two years
ended 31 March 2015 as the disposal constitutes a major line of
geographical area of operation in Hong Kong. The net proceeds
of disposal exceed the net carrying amount of the relevant assets
and liabilities and accordingly, no impairment loss has been
recognised.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFZ

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 14, BRIEREFET
The loss for the year from the discontinued operations is set out BRIMGEER 2 RFEBEETINT -
below.
Period ended
4 July 2014
HE
—E—F
+AMmA
LEEAM
HK$’000
BT T
Revenue A 16,827
Cost of sales $HE A (3,816)
Gross profit EA 13,011
Other income Hoth Wz 94
Selling and distribution costs HE RS IHKA (10,463)
General and administrative expenses —REITHRER (2,948)
Loss before taxation R AT ES 1R (306)
Income tax expense Frisii & A -
Loss for the year from discontinued operations RERIEEEER 2 FEEE (306)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations JEERBRIEGE XS 2 FEEE:
attributable to:
— The owners of the Company —ARRAEEA (156)
- Non-controlling interests — JE PR e e (150)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations RERIEEER 2 FEEE (306)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations IHE e B s FEBEAENTSIE:
include the followings:
Other staff costs Hih 8 TR 4,694
Retirement benefit scheme contribution RIKEFET SR 186
Total staff costs BTN 4B5E 4,780
SIEEEKEBRAA

ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The loss for the year from the discontinued operations is set out

14. m\ Z<<< %*%
BRIMGEER 2 RFEBEETINT -

below.
Period ended
4 July 2014
HE-T—NNF
+ A A IFHAR
HK$'000
BT T
Amount of inventories recognised as an expenses ERARI FESHE 3,816
Auditors’ remuneration ZEED @N ® -
Depreciation of plant and equipment MEREEITE 437
Loss on disposals of plant and equipment HERERREZEE 121
Operating lease payments in respect of MEYE 2 &EHEHEENK
leasing of premises under
— minimum lease payments —HEAERK 2,822
— contingent rent —oEHE 696
Net cash generated from operating activities RELEEH RS FE 707
Net cash used in from investing activities BARiEEEE) IR € F58 (782)
Net cash generated from financing activities REBE SIS 2IREFHE 2,819
Net cash generated from discontinued operations IS EBELE RS T8 2,744

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities related to World
Pointer Group Companies as at 31 March 2014 have been
presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial
position as held for sale, details of which are disclosed in note
26.

15. DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31
March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end
of the reporting period (2015: nil).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
A B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

16. LOSS PER SHARE 16. B EE
FOR CONTINUING AND DISCONTINUED REERCEXBRALEEEXEKM
OPERATIONS =
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable RARVEEANEBGBRERNRESEHEBNIZ
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data: AT EERE -
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
Loss &8 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of ZARATFEH AEIGEEEE
the Company 510,919 724,363
Number of shares vl S 4E] 000 ’000
F A& Fh&
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t & & & A K i EE1E 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss T AR hn e Y9 B
per share 4,429,187 3,304,640

BEERREERAT
—s-—xgen 199
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

16. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)
FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from
continuing operations attributable to the owners of the Company
is based on the following data:

106.

BIREE (8
MIFEKEEEMS

ARREAARGEREFELLERTE 2R
EARREBERTRBRIATBIRE

Loss figures are calculated as follows: ERETFHENT
2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year attributable to the owners of N2 @#EA AJE(LEEZ B8
the Company 510,919 724,363
Less: Loss for the year from discontinued B RBERIHEEETE 2 FEBE
operations - (156)
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted loss I E K BIFE S E XK 2 Bl E
per share from continuing operations AREEBE L BB 510,919 724,207

The denominators used are the same as those detailed above for
both basic and diluted loss per share.

FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Basic and diluted loss per share for the discontinued operation
is HK$0.005 cents per share in 2015, based on the loss for the
year from the discontinued operations of HK$156,000 in 2015
and the denominators detailed above for both basic and diluted
loss per share.

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for the
years ended 31 March 2016 and 2015. The computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s share options and conversion of the Company’s
outstanding convertible loan notes since their exercise would
result in a decrease in loss per share for both years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
A B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FF

17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. BB &
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures,
improvements and office Motor
and equipment equipment vehicles Total
HEMERE RR-RER
ES WRAERE "E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T AT T BT T BETFT
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-E-RF
ZA=t+—-HLEE
Opening net book amount FONREFE 5,001 863 3,967 9,831
Additions RE 10 46 - 56
Charge for the year FERZ (1,988) (424) (1,133) (3,545)
Exchange differences E R E (77) @ - (79
Closing net book amount FRREEE 2,946 483 2,834 6,263
At 31 March 2016 R-ZBE-X"E=ZHF=+—-H
Cost BRA 7,295 1,348 5,667 14,310
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (4,349) (865) (2,833) (8,047)
Net book amount REFE 2,946 483 2,834 6,263
Year ended 31 March 2015 HE-_Z—-1F%
ZSA=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 3,119 160 5,100 8,379
Additions NE 3,752 1,071 - 4,823
Charge for the year FERAYL (1,795) (363) (1,133) (3,291)
Exchange differences X ZFE (75) ) - (80)
Closing net book amount FARREEE 5,001 863 3,967 9,831
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-HAE=H=+—H
Cost AR 7,423 1,303 5,667 14,393
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (2,422) (440) (1,700) (4,562)
Net book amount R FE 5,001 863 3,967 9,831

BEEMAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z-F—NF=ZH=+—HIFE

17. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17.

The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their estimated
residual values, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease
term or 3 years

Equipment 33 1/3%

Furniture, fixtures, office equipment 33 1/3%

Motor vehicles 20%

The net book value of motor vehicles held under a finance lease
is approximately HK$2,834,000 (2015: HK$3,967,000).

BRI K vk
B R A B TR A R R A
RERERE FRAZFENT

HEMEKE BEAREFHNK

SFCREE
B 33 1/3%
R EE - 331/3%
I NE L
E 20%

RIERERERF 2 AEZREFENAS
#2.834,0007T ( —ZT— R4 : /B#53,967,000
Jo) °

18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 18. Al E v & mEE
2016 2015
—E-AF T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed investments: FRE:
— Equity securities listed in Australia — RN BT 2 A RE 75,466 65,839

The available-for-sale financial assets represent the Group’s long
term investment in ordinary shares of Elemental Mineral Limited
(‘EML”), an unrelated listed company in Australia Securities
Exchange. They are denominated in AUD.

The fair value of listed equity securities is determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the Australia Securities
Exchange at the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial asset which have been pledged as security for the
margin loans payable is approximately HK$53,111,000 (2015:
36,247,000), details of which are set out in note 26.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MM BREMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

19. INVENTORIES 19. 7 8
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BEF T
Food and beverages B 357 600
Wine P %E 7,250 7,250
7,607 7,850

20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

20. FEUBRFX

FhiEE RN FRIE

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade debtors B 5 IR - 8,972
Deposit placed in financial institution FHReREE 2 FLHES
(note a) (MIsta) 773 -
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment EMmEWER FHES R
(note b) TEfRTRIE (b ) 12,590 10,382
13,363 19,354
Analysed for reporting purposes: EsRERR DN
Non-current assets EmEN A E 2,582 1,813
Current assets mBEE 10,781 17,541
13,363 19,354
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFE

20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@) As at 31 March 2016, a deposit of approximately HK$773,000 (2015:
nil) was pledged to a financial institution to secure the margin loan
payable as set out in note 26.

(b) As at 31 March 2015, the Group has paid a refundable deposit of
approximately HK$4,500,000 (2016: nil) to an independent third party
for the provision of the financial advisory service regarding a potential
investment project in the South Pacific. The project was cancelled
during the year ended 31 March 2015 and the deposit was fully
refunded subsequently during the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group has established different credit policies for customers
in each of its core businesses. The general credit periods granted
to customers range from 30 to 60 days (2015: 30 to 60 days)
except for sales of food and beverages at restaurants, which are
mainly on cash basis. The Group did not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors presented
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period which
approximates the respective revenue recognition dates.

20. RUHRF  F R © MIBNFUIE

(&)
FeE

@ WH-ZZ—RF=ZA=+—8" m%%wsmo
T(ZE—hF 82RO EBRT—

@%ﬁu%ﬁ%ﬁ%%uﬁﬁ(ﬁmmi%%
#) -

) R-ZE—RHFZA=+—H8B XEEEHA—%
BYE=FRRBATENBEREEE R
HE SRR RS A REF R IR QEE
4,500,000t (ZF —"F &) -FE&Z B H
EREBE-ZT-—RAF=-A=+—HILFEFH
&fﬁ&iawai_; NE=ZA=+—
BIEFEREUR

REEHEEZOEF 2EPERL TR Z
FEEHR -BREIBURESHEECERBZER
HEN BT EP—MRIEEHN FI0£60H
= — A% :30%60H ) c NEE W EFLZ
:%%%ﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁo

RiRs R BESE A (RERARSR
BEIIEE) 252 B 5 IR 5 2 BR # 47
e

2016 2015

—EB-AE —E-0F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BETT

181 days to 365 days 181H£E365H - 880
Over 365 days 365H A E - 8,092
- 8,972
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=+—HIFZ

20. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$8,972,000
(2016: nil) which are past due as at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.

AGEING OF TRADE DEBTORS WHICH ARE
PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

20. RUHRF  F R © MIBNFUIE

(&)

RBEBRR FTALKEE 5 RKRREH
Z HREE 478 8,972,0007T (=& — X
F ) 2 EWERRE B H AR ERIER
BEEEEE-

CEBERBEZES BRRRZ
AR

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

181 days to 365 days 181H £365H - 880
Over 365 days 365H A £ - 8,092
- 8,972

Trade debtors’ balances that were past due but not impaired
mainly relate to individuals or companies that have been the
Group’s customers for more than six months with no history of
default in the past. The management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable.

EEEY ERE S SRR EHRER
HAREENEAA LT RBEY BIER
BELZBEAXRBER-EEERS BA
IR FEMRFLRERE RAREEEER
WEHBREAEH A NARLSERATEH
Ye1m o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

1. RWEREFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Loan receivables JEWE R 184,018 71,333
Interest receivables FE U FI| B 45,038 26,557
229,056 97,890

Less: Impairment loss recognised R ERERREESE
in profit or loss - (2,335)
229,056 95,555

The loan and interest receivables are due from independent third
parties, which are unsecured and their relevant due date are
started from December 2014 and ended in October 2016 (2015:
started from November 2014 and ended in October 2015).
The interest rates on the loan and interest receivables are fixed
ranging from 10% to 48% per annum (2015: 10% to 24% per
annum). No impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 March 2016 (2015: HK$2,335,000).

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

1. BIRE R EFE (&)

LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of loan and interest
receivables net of impairment loss presented based on the loan
drawn down date at the end of the reporting period:

EHMBHERME

E_E-NFE=ZH=1—HIFE

RBERRREETIRNAPEH 2 BKE
REHE (HIBRRERR) ZREDHTT

2016 2015

—E-AF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

Within 90 days 90H A - 7,917
91 days to 180 days 91H £180H 5,542 5,114
181 days to 365 days 181 H E365H 187,403 5,116
Over 365 days (note) 3658 A £ (B5E) 36,111 77,408
229,056 95,555

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group and a borrower
entered into supplemental agreements to extend the repayment
date of the outstanding loan and interest receivables from 5 August
2014 to 31 December 2014 and then to 30 June 2015 and adjust
the interest rate from 2.5% per month to 1% per month.

The Group’s loan financing customers included in the loan and
interest receivables are due for settlement at the date specified
in the respective loan agreements. The Group did not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Included in the Group’s loan and interest receivables are loan
and interest receivables with aggregate carrying amount of
approximately of HK$28,536,000 (2015: nil) which are past due
as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balance
as the borrower is a long relationship customer and repayment
agreement has been formulated subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.

MzE: BE-FT-—AF=ZA=t+—BHILFE K
EEEERAGT LB E UG REERE
WEREFABZEERHH -_T—HFEN
ARAREEZE-_T—NFE+=-A=+—8
MHBEE-_Z-—AFNA=1A WiEF
EHEFA25%FAREFTFA1% °

FARKERENEZAEEERBERP
REERBBEANEE 2 BRI HREE - K
SEVERZFEHRFEEMERSD -

AAREEZ BRER RS EHRABNRE
HARE K B 780 A M 7 55 (B 30 4 h R (B S 1B T IR
B 2 BRI B 478 #28,536,0007T (=&
—hF B ZEREREFE - BEERA
BERZEEHEDRERE RRAAEBR
ANARBEREFBECRIREHRETLE
B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21. FIRER KT B (&)

The movement of the impairment losses for on loan and interest FEWRERRFE ZHEBEZEDHIWT -
receivables is set out below.

2016 2015

—E-RE —ET—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT

1 April mA—H 2,335 -

Amount written off as uncollectible AT B ME 2 £ 88 (2,335) -

Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss EREBEmERZHEESE - 2,335

31 March —A=+—H - 2,335

Included in the impairment losses for loan and interest R-E—ARFE=A=+—"H EBKREZX

receivables were individually impaired loan and interest MEBEBERECERERKER X

receivables with an aggregate balance of approximately FE A HEEHRY) BE2,835000T (ZF

HK$2,335,000 as at 31 March 2015 (2016: nil). The individually —RNEF &)  BEBIRE 2 B R ITIRE
impaired receivables are recognised based on the credit history of BRAZEERE T URER -

the borrower.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

The Group is carrying on financial leasing business during the

EHMBHERME

BE—FE—NFZA=F—HIFE

22. R AR E SR
ARBIEAERRRARERS - RO

year. All interest rates inherent in the leases are fixed at the BAE P A R E R ET 4 B BiEE 5 - WA BE {E7E

contract date over the lease terms. HNHERS T o
2016 2015
—E-AF —ET-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BEEF T

Analysed as: AT

Current mENE D 94,723 -
Non-current IERENE D 6,579 -
101,302 -

Present value of

Minimum lease payments  minimum lease payments

REHENR REAENRZEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XF —RE ZEB-XE —hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT T BETT BT
Finance lease receivables comprise: ~ JEW AL AT E FRIBRE
Within one year R—FR 97,012 - 94,723 -
After two years but within five years ~ —FEERER 6,614 - 6,579 -
103,626 - 101,302 -
Less: unearned finance income B AR BRER A B E WA (2,324) - - -
Present value of minimum lease EURRERENRZRE
payment receivables 101,302 - 101,302 -

Effective interest rate of the above finance lease ranges from
6.15% to 6.61% per annum.

The fair value of finance lease receivables as at 31 March 2016
is estimated to be HK$101,302,000 (2015: nil) using an 6.15%
discount rate based on quoted one year swap rate and adding a
credit margin that reflects the secured nature of the receivables
balance.

LABMERE 2 BEMEN FEF6.15%E
6.61% e

BN Iﬁ%@ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬂ%iﬁﬁ%m,302,00073 (=

T—RF &) TIRBTHR—FIRER R

ﬁﬁfﬁﬂ%w%?r + 0 _E AT f Bk B UK FRIB
Rz BREENEERES -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — %

—NFZRA=+—HIFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

As at 31 March 2016, finance lease receivables are secured

23.

over the machinery and equipments leased. The Group is not

permitted to sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of

default by the lessee.

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS

Held for trading investments include:

22.

23.

R B ET
R-T-—RE=ZA=+—B BUBEEE
HIBTYAFTIR B 2 #88 K R (IR o 57
BALBENZIERT  AEBTEH &R
BHEFRIER G

EFE (®)

HIFEERE

FIFEERERRE

2016 2015
—RE —E—hfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed securities held for trading, at fair value $51EE&E 2 FWEH HANE
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REBE LM 2RAFES
(note a) (MF3Ea) 627,039 117,967
- Equity securities listed in the PRC — B T R FE 2,871 978
629,910 118,945

The fair values of the above listed securities are determined

based on the quoted market bid prices available on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange and the Shanghai Stock Exchange or the

market comparable approach at the end of the reporting period.

Note a:

As at 31 March 2016, included in the held for trading investments
is the Group’s investment in Superb Summit International Group
Limited (“Superb Summit”) which is listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, with a carrying amount of approximately HK$26,879,000
(2015: HK$29,910,000). The investment represented approximately
1.3% (2015:1.3%) shareholding of the ordinary shares of Superb
Summit International Group Limited. As at 31 March 2016, the
trading of the listed equity of Superb Summit was suspended and
the fair value of the Company’s investment in the listed equity of
Superb Summit has been determined using market comparable
approach reflects recent market value of comparable companies
with similar business, adjusted for differences in nature, scope and
location of the business.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
A B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FF

23. HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (Continued) 23. HIEEERE (8

Included in the held for trading investments are the following EEEEREBTEUTUABEEREEE 2D
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional BEEBIIN EEHEC 5

currency of relevant group entities:

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
RVB AR 2,871 978
As at 31 March 2016, the carrying amount of held for trading RZE—ARE=ZA=+—"HB EEAEY
investments which have been pledged as security for the BB 569,544,000 (2 —HF B
margin loan payable is approximately HK$569,544,000 (2015: 56,148,0007T ) 2 FEB B B E HITIER
HK$56,148,000), details of which are set out in note 26. ERRESEZRMER SEFBENME
26 °
24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24. pTES M T A
2016 2015
—E-RE —E-hE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
iE afE AE afE

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETR BT BT

Derivatives not under hedge FERE P EEZITETA
accounting
Equity call options (note ) R 73R 0 ERRE (P ED) - - 1,728 -
Derivative financial liabilities on RETABBRES 2
unissued convertible bonds (note i)  #TAE S ENE & (M EEN) - - - 618,633
Crude oil future contract (note iii) [RmEAEA 49 (P FEiil) 711 - - -
711 - 1,728 618,633

BEEMEAERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes:

i) During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group has long term
investment in ordinary shares of EML in Australia Securities Exchange.
EML has offered 1 for 6 non-renounceable rights issue at AUD18 cents
per share, with 3 free attaching options (exercisable at AUD 25 cents
within 15 months from issue) for every 2 new shares issued upon rights
issue. On 15 October 2014, EML issued the free attaching options to
eligible shareholders and were listed in Australia Securities Exchange.
The Group entitled to approximately 5,847,000 options. The initial fair
values of the options were assessed at approximately AUD 204,630
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,210,000) and were reassessed at
31 March 2015, amounted to approximately AUD292,329 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,728,000), resulting in fair value gain totaling
to approximately HK$1,728,000 being recognised under “(Loss) gain
arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial assets, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group did not exercise
the option and it lapsed on 16 January 2016. A fair value loss of
approximately HK$1,728,000 has been recognised under “Loss arising
from change in fair value of derivative financial assets, net” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March
2016.

(ii) On 28 June 2013, the Company has entered into subscription
agreement to issue convertible bonds at a total principal amount
of HK$620,000,000 to ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital
Investment Limited with zero coupon rate and a 2-year maturity since
the issuance date for the purpose of financing the investment in the
future expansion and as general working capital.

Following the approval by the independent shareholders of the
Company in a special general meeting on 31 December 2014,
convertible bonds with principal amount of HK$20,000,000 (note 30(i))
was issued to Wincon Capital Investment Limited on 8 January 2015.
Furthermore, an extension agreement was entered on 8 January 2015
between the Group and Wincon Capital Investment Limited to extend
the completion date of the subscription agreement to 8 July 2015 and
was approved by the independent shareholders of the Company in a
special general meeting on 19 March 2015. The contractual provisions
in relation to issuance of remaining convertible bonds with principal
amount of HK$600,000,000 according to the subscription agreements
and extension agreement were established on 19 March 2015 and the
derivative financial liabilities were recognised.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

PTESRTIT A (%)
B &E -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(i)

(Continued)

The initial fair value of the derivative financial liabilities recognised on
19 March 2015 were assessed at approximately HK$536,601,000
and were reassessed at 31 March 2015, amounted to approximately
HK$618,633,000, resulting in a total fair value loss of approximately
HK$618,633,000 being recognised under the “Loss arising from
changes in fair value of derivative financial liabilities” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2015.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the fair value of the derivative
financial liabilities were reassessed to their fair value before the issuance
of the respective convertible bonds as mentioned in note 30 and
resulting in total fair value of approximately HK$831,954,000. A fair
value loss of approximately HK$213,321,000 has been recognised
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial
liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

All the unissued convertible bonds as at 31 March 2015 has been fully
issued as at 31 March 2016.

Major terms of the crude oil future contract as at 31 March 2016 is as
follows:

Quantity
Particular (Unit) Maturity
Crude oil Aug 16 30 20 July 2016

The fair value of the above future contract are determined based on
the quoted market bid prices available on the New York Mercantile
Exchange on the date of initial recognition and at the end of the
reporting period.

Realised gain on settlement of derivative financial assets of
approximately HK$30,726,000 (2015: nil) was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended 31
March 2016.

The fair value of the derivative financial assets on 31 March 2016
amounted to approximately HK$711,000, resulting a fair value gain of
approximately HK$711,000 (2015: nil) being recognised under “(Loss)
gain arising from changes in fair value of derivative financial assets, net”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31
March 2016.

(i)

(i)

24. PTHE &M T H (#)

i (#)

(%)

PESRMEBER-Z—AF=ATHhBER
Z ¥ A S {E 47 #536,601,0000T WK =
E—ﬂi—ﬂ—+—ﬂ$ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%
618,633,000 B NHEE-_T—HE=A
=t+—HLEFEAHBER [TTESRARER
REZBELEZEBE] VERAAEBEE X
#4976 %618,633,0007T °

REE-Z—RE=A=1+—HItEER T
Ae@MBEZARENEN T HEHERET
BRETRRES (B ES0ATM) AT Z A St
B WEHB R REL AEES831,954,0007T °
DNAEFIELB 213,321,000 2 REE =
T-XNFE-A-+-BLEFEZAMBAEER
NTEERMaBEr A ANEEHEL 2 EIE]
IETEED/L,\

—EF=ZR=T—HRBERKRETZ
JMEEFER T - RF=A=+—HE
BHET-

RIZE-RE=ZA=+—H Ra#ganz
T E2EREFINT

HE
EZiEA () HA

EmNA+ASE 30 —Z-—AFtA-+H

RYIFERARERREHRR LRHFEERH
ZAREDREBEANBOBERZZAESZ
MIZMME ABEE -

HETESRMEEZERBRKREZNEE
30,726,0007C ( = F— R F : #&) Ewéxi_ z
—ANEZA=Zt+—HBUEFEZAMERE
TR

R-ZE—REZA=Z+—HBT4ASREEZ
NAELHABEET11,0007T 0 E AR LERE
HABET1,000T (ZE—RF|&) TREZE
ZE-RXFZAZ+—RLEFEZAMHER
ENTEeMEEZ ANEESELY (B
B FEIBETER.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

24. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24, TTHE TR T A (&)
(Continued)

30

N

Included in the derivative financial instruments are the following THEERITABETNINGRERSEER 2
amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional e EB LN EEETEZ &5
currency of relevant group entities:

2016 2015

—E—REF —E—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

usD ETT 711 -

AUD JBIT - 1,728
25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. Re LR FED

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held, and short-term ReLBeFEVREMSERES  RRDH

bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less AR 2 =8 A s AR 2 RERIRITIE R R AF R

and cash placed with financial institutions as follows: SREE 2RO T

2016 2015

—E—XREF —E—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Cash at bank and in hand RITReMFHERE 16,103 170,261

Cash at financial institutions RemEBEZES 2,209 2,937

Short-term bank deposits FRHIRITIE R - 20,822

18,312 194,020

Cash at bank and financial institutions carried interest at market FRITRERReMEBEZREENT

rates which range from 0.01% to 0.35% (2015: 0.01% to 0.35%) F0.01%20.35% (ZZE—HF :0.01% %
per annum. 0.35% ) 2 TS FIEETE »
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25.

20.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At 31 March 2015, short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$20,822,000 (2016: nil) with maturities of less than three
months carried at a fixed rate of 1.8% per annum (2016: nil).

Rl ECE R
BE—FE-—NF=ZHA=1+—HIFE

A RRESEY (@
R-Z-—RAF=A=+—A HHELR=

& A =z %2 BR 4R 17 17 3K #0786 20,822,000
TERF E)REFENEEF1.8% (=
T—RF EIFTE-

Included in the cash and cash equivalents are the following ReRBEEEEMRRETIAGREREEE

amounts denominated in a currency other than the functional oM EE N BB 2% :
currency of relevant group entities:

2016 2015

—E-XRE —hEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT T

HKS B 1 1

US dollar ETT 1,817 79

RVB AR 104 2,083

AUD RIT 366 20,916

Other currencies Hun g 116 140

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents of approximately REEZRe MBS EEWHES,975,000

HK$8,975,000 (2015: HK$116,115,000) are placed with banks
in the PRC. The remittance of those funds out of the PRC is
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC
government.

MARGIN LOANS PAYABLE

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the margin loans payable
was secured by the listed equity securities and deposit placed
in financial institution (2015: listed equity securities) held under
the margin accounts, with total market value and carrying value
of approximately HK$622,655,000 and HK$773,000 respectively
(2015: HK$92,395,000 and nil respectively) (notes 18, 20 and
23).

The margin loans payable carried a fixed interest rate at 3%
(2015: 3%) per annum.

20.

T (ZE— A F:B1116,115,0007T) J5 17
ERPEZRT - EZSE¢ELPRAET
PR A P BB T B e 2 SN EE & I PR ) o

ERNRESER
HE_Z—XFZAZT—HIEFE HE
5 R ARTEE 9 Bl 73 8978 %622,655,0007T
KB #773,0000T (ZE—RF : DRI A
92,395,000t X E ) 2 RN IRFBER BRI
RESEPETAR I LTRAFS KRS
BMBEFTR2ES (ZT—RF: LKA
BH)EHEIR (MH5E18 - 20%23) °

ERRESERIRBEFHEI% (ZF—h
F:3%)TR -

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

27. CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS 27. BN TFARE REREH
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT
Trade creditors B S EARR 374 475
Other creditors, deposits and accruals (note)  EAbEM R - FAK S K&
TEREM (M) 65,347 10,504
65,721 10,979
Note: Included in other creditors, deposits and accruals was an amount W EMEMERR FARSLBEREARENS
of approximately HK$51,296,000 (2015: nil) which represented the #51,296,0007T (ZZ — R & ) 2 5/IE - A
consideration payable to the non-controlling interests in respect of RZZE—AF—A+— BB —FHHEAR
the acquisition of the remaining 37.5% of issued share capital of a #RT37.5% B BITIRAER FEIE R i wm 2 KB
subsidiary on 11 January 2016 as disclosed in note 38. The amount is (AP FEBBFTHEE ) - Z KB AEEF 28
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. RARERKKEE-
The following is an aged analysis of trade creditors presented RBEPRR EFEMNERLZEZAHER
based on the invoice date at the end of reporting period. 2RO
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-0F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Within 60 days 60H A 154 169
61 — 90 days 61£290H 220 306
374 475
The average credit term on trade creditors is 60 days. The Group B HRNERF 2 FHEEHRR60B - RAEH
has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all Bl 7 B 75 R B B IR UK - AR T A RS 3K
payables are settled within the credit timeframe. EREEHRAEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=+—HIFZ

28. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 28. BEMEAE

A motor vehicle of the Group is held under a finance lease. The REEZ AHRERENERFE - HIAS.4
lease term was 3.4 years. For the year ended 31 March 2016, F - HE_Z—RFZA=ZT—HLFE"
the obligation under a finance lease carried effective interest MERSFRIERSTFIT9% (ZE—AF:
rate at 3.79% (2015: 3.79%) per annum. Interest rate is fixed at 3.79% ) 2 BB FEFTE - MEREH A HE
the contract date. The lease is on a fixed repayment basis and FoMHENZETENEEETE MW EFK
no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental NS RET LR HE -

payments.

Present value of
Minimum lease payments  minimum lease payments

REHEENN BREHENRZERE

At 31 March At 31 March
R=ZA=+-—H R=ZA=+-H
2016 2015 2016 2015

—F-AF —T-RF =B-AF _—FT-IF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT ARt  BETR BBt

Amount payable under a finance lease FiEFEE T E 2 A

Within one year R—EAN 1,400 1,527 1,374 1,443
In more than one year but not more  fBi@—F{ETHBBMF
than two years - 1,400 - 1,373
1,400 2,927 1,374 2,816
Less: future finance charges B ARBEER (26) (111) N/A N/A
Present value of lease obligation HERRE 2 RE 1,374 2,816 1,374 2,816
Less: amount due for settlement BT AR E 2SR
within twelve months (2N RBEEET)
(shown under current liabilities) (1,374) (1,4493)
Amount due for settlement after RTZEARGEE 23R
twelve months - 1,373
The Company’s obligation under a finance lease is secured by AABIABMEREBE T 2A&ERBEAZ
the lessors’ charge over the leased asset. THEEEEHRMT-

BEEMEAERAT
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. P&
Number of shares Share capital
MR &E (&N
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E—XxF ZZ-RF ZE-RF —T—AF
’000 ‘000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T8 TR BETT BT T
Authorised ordinary shares of HK$0.01 A F & REE
each: 5 Mo.m T
At the beginning and the end of R BFEEFEIRFER
the financial year 10,500,000 10,500,000 105,000 105,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of %77 N2 &E v LR
HK$0.01 each: FRREEBB0.017T:
At the beginning of the financial year ~ KRBT EFEEE4) 3,304,640 3,304,640 33,046 33,046
~ Issue of ordinary shares upon — TR AR R
exercise of share options (note (i) BITEBR (M) 18,800 - 188 -
— Issue of ordinary shares upon — R R T AR B 5B
conversion of convertible bonds BITEBRK
(note (i) (B &) ) 1,909,091 - 19,091 -
— Shares repurchased and cancelled ~ — [l 88 &% =t $4 % 17
(note (i) (B & i) ) (296,735) - (2,967) -
At the end of the financial year R BEEFR 4,935,796 3,304,640 49,358 33,046
Notes: B &
(i) On 30 April 2015, 5 June 2015 and 18 June 2015, options were (i) RZE—RFNA=1TH - ZZ—AF<A

exercised to subscribe for 2,000,000, 1,800,000 and 15,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at a price of
HK$0.375, HK$0.375 and HK$0.477 per share respectively at a
consideration of approximately HK$750,000, HK$675,000 and
HK$7,155,000 in which all the consideration was credited to share
capital and share premium. The new shares rank pari passu with the
existing shares issued in all respects.

(ii) On 22 June 2015, 23 June 2015 and 25 June 2015, convertible
bonds with prinpical amounts of HK$100,000,000 were converted
into 454,545,453 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.22 per share. The liability
component and equity component of the convertible bonds at the date
of conversion are approximately HK$61,505,000 and HK$108,424,000
respectively. The new shares issued rank pari passu with the existing
shares in all respects.

On 7 May 2015, 14 June 2015, 17 June 2015, 24 June 2015, 13
July 2015 and 14 December 2015, convertible bonds with prinpical
amounts of HK$20,000,000 and HK$460,000,000 were converted
into 60,606,060 and 1,393,939,391 ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.01 each respectively at the fixed conversion price of HK$0.33
per share respectively. The liability component and equity component
of the convertible bonds at the date of conversion are approximately
HK$362,123,000 and HK$799,635,000 respectively. The new shares
issued rank pari passu with the existing shares in all respects.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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ﬂﬁﬁ_g HEFERNATN\H EREDE
1718 2 B A & 3275 #50.3757T » 5 #50.3757T
,M%o 47770 2 B & 3 88 4N 2 512,000,000
fi% ~ 1,800,0008% }2.15,000,000% 45 A% 1 & 5
0.017c2 L@ - R {ELB’ET50,0007T « 7
#675,0007T M 78 #7,155,0007C * HAR AT B K
BEFABRARBGEE ZEFROESH
EHEBEFERITROZERSHAL -

(ii) RZE—RAFAAZ+ZBA - ZFT—AHERX
AZt+=BRZ-_ZE—HRFEAZ-+HE"
N % #4578 #100,000,0007T 2 7] #2 A% 18
Eiﬁi%%ﬁ%ﬂ&*}%ﬁzo.zzﬁ@%ﬁ%$ﬁ
A]454,545,453K F R E (BB K0.017T 2 &
B ATMIRE S RERE B2 B EHH
25 B0 D B4 & #61,505,0000T & 7B
108, 424 0007T ° EBITHIRMDAN S HHERE
BRHDZFHREHAL -

R-E—RAFRAALH ZZT— ﬂi/\ﬁﬂ
H —Z—RAFA++tH —ZT—HFRA
—+WUA - E-HFLtA+=ARK=-ZT—FH
F+ZA+WMHE A% 5 A% %20,000,000
ﬁ&;ﬂgmoooooooiZTW&%#EE
FER(EE RS 5033 T o plE kA RA
60,606,060/ }.1,393,939,391 % I 1 % - EA@;
BHEHARRES ZAENHD RERITH D
B4 /578 #£362,123,0007T 1.7 # 799,635,000
T BEITHRORS T HERERNHZER
LT o



29. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016

EHMBHERME

[ E_E-—NEFE=H=1—HIFE

29. AR ()

During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares through the

Hong Kong Stock Exchange as follows:

MiEE: (&)

@iy  PAFR - ANREFEIBE B PO E AR SR
LB UENIN

No. of
ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Price per share paid
BREE
##0.01T 2
Month of repurchase B 88 A % TEREA BRER 2 aRE
Highest Lowest
BaE BIKE
000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
i ik ik AT
July 2015 —E-AFtA 51,335 0.79 0.55 34,792
Aug 2015 —E-—RFNA 49,225 0.79 0.51 30,869
Sept 2015 —ET—-hFNA 38,005 0.69 0.62 25,020
Oct 2015 —T—AFT+A 4,990 0.80 0.76 3,892
Nov 2015 —T—AR&F+—A 13,525 0.70 0.63 9,015
Dec 2015 —ZT-RF+=A 11,200 0.76 0.73 8,260
Jan 2016 ZE-RF—A 30,975 0.74 0.65 21,432
Feb 2016 ZE-RFZA 42,775 0.72 0.58 27,059
Mar 2016 ZE-RF=A 54,705 0.76 0.66 38,574
296,735

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase except for
41,485,000 shares which cancellation has been completed on 8 June

2016.

AR 3 5 B B B 2 R 8A - 1E41,485,0000% 2
REZZE—REXANRTEKEH-

REEEREARQA
ZE-REER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

30. AI#AXEZ

CB 1 CB 2 Total
AR E 31 RRES2 ast
(note (i) (note (ii))
(BRF&E()) (B =k Gi) )
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Liability component at 1 April 2014 RZZE—MOFMA—B2Z
BEZH 52,328 - 52,328
Add: Liability component on initial mn: R ERRZ A
recognition B 17 - 14,182 14,182
Add: Effective interest expense nEERERNEEA
(note 10) (MF5E10) 10,813 594 11,407
Liability component at 31 March 2015 R -Z—H%F
and 1 April 2015 =A=+—HK
—E-AFMA—H
ZBE#BH 63,141 14,776 77,917
Add: Liability component on initial RN ERAR ARG
recognition i) - 438,444 438,444
Add: Effective interest expense n:-EENEEA
(note 10) (F5E10) 3,010 24,317 27,327
Reclassification of accrued coupon BN BRI EEEEM
interest to other creditors &~ 3R IR (4,646) - (4,646)
Converted into ordinary shares e SboR i
(note 29) (MF5E29) (61,505) (362,123) (423,628)
Liability component at 31 March 2016 == — /R4
=A=+—H
2 B &R - 115,414 115,414

The convertible bonds — liability component are classified under

non-current liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes:

(i

The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon rate of 2% per
annum at a total principal value of HK$100,000,000 on 28 March
2013 and HK$100,000,000 on 31 May 2013 (the “CB 1") to four
independent third parties (the “bondholders”). The convertible bonds
will mature at 27 March 2018 and 30 May 2018 respectively at its
principal amount or can be converted into 909,090,000 shares at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.22 per share.

The fair values of the convertible bonds of HK$109,939,000 and
HK$194,332,000 were valued by an independent valuer, Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, as at 28 March
2013 and 31 May 2013 respectively. The convertible bonds comprise a
liability component and an equity conversion component.

As disclosed in note 29(ii), on 22 June 2015, 23 June 2015 and
25 June 2015, the remaining convertible bonds with total principal
amounts of HK$100,000,000 were converted into 454,545,453
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion price of
HK$0.22 per share.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were
valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond-equity conversion reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group issued convertible bonds with zero coupon rate at a total
principal value of HK$20,000,000 on 8 January 2015 (the “CB 2”) to
its ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital Investment Limited. The
convertible bonds will mature on 7 January 2017 at its principal amount
or can be converted into 60,606,060 shares at any time between the
date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.33 per share.

The fair value of the convertible bonds of HK$20,000,000 was valued
by an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, as at 8 January 2015. The convertible bonds
comprise a liability component and an equity conversion component.

%‘Tﬁkfﬁ E)

$E@ —E-—ZFZA-+NAETLE

4858 A7 100,000,000 R — 2 —=4FH
H7+ A 217 N & 4258 A7 % 100,000,000
TEERAEEF2% 2 A BKES HT&&F
F)FUEBUE=H ([BHFEBEEA]) -
BEREHFBESHIR T \F=A= +ta
T \FRA=-+THEERSBEIHK
EHFRFEATRBRSRAEN0 22T 2 th R
4 5909,090,0008% A% {5 ©

AR (E 5 2 A 7o B 78 % 109,939,0007T &
#194,332,0007T 5 8 B S (BRI P 2 BT B
ETEREAERARDIN -_TE—=F=
A+ \BR-ZE—=FFAA=1+—H#ET
HE- T RBRESFBIEA G RES SR

{/'\ o

WA 20T E - R 2T —AF XA
T ZH - ZE-RAEFXRAZT=ZHBEZ
E-—FAFENA-THB AEEEAEE
100,000,0007T 2 Tl &4 AT 42 IR 15 35 LA B AR B 45
0.227T 2 [& E ¥ # B 9818 /5454,545,4530% &
B BB HE0.017T 2 LA

FEETEREMD Z A AETHE RN AT E )
RARMBESZ SHRGE - AR ES
ZAREHER B HEEBRIET G
8- %ME (BN EEEREN ZEE) JIEA
ARBHAE NIRRT 2 A RRES — &
SR

AEBR-_Z—RAF—ANBETASARE
ﬁ%MNQWDWExW$%%ZTﬁWE%
(TagBES2]) FHELIERARKTER
BEBRARF A BRBREFER T —LF—
BEtHRERSHEIHREFFTEA (KRBT
AR ES 2 B 2R Em B HARRER) AT g
125 1% %0.88 T 2 t R 8 1 £60,606,0600%
B 1n o

AIRRRE S 2 A B8 %20,000,0007T 7Y 58

4%@%@E%ﬂﬁ%%ﬁ&mﬁﬁ@@7
ZE-RF-ANBETHE TRRES
%ﬁ%%@&%ﬁ%ﬁ%1

REEEREARQA
ZE-REER
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(ii) (Continued)

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were
valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond-equity conversion reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

As discussed in note 29(ii), on 7 May 2015, the convertible bonds with
total principal amounts of HK$20,000,000 were fully converted into
60,606,060 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the fixed conversion
price of HK$0.33 per share.

The convertible bonds issued on 8 January 2015 recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

FEETEREMD Z A AETHE RN AT & H)
RARMBES 2 SHIRGE - AR ES
ZARMEHER B HEEERIET G
8- %ME (BN EEEREN ZEE) IETA
ARBHA NEGEERIA T 2 A RRES —
SRR

SN2 TR s R E—RFRA+ER -
N4 4858 /578 #20,000,0007T 2 AJ AR E A B
RERBEOIBTTZETHRETHER A
60,606,0608% &% E BB 01T 2 Bk -

REHMBRARER IR -_F—HF—A
NBEBETZ ABBRESIT

HK$'000

BT T

Cash received BWE S 20,000

Less: Legal and professional fee paid W BEXNZEEREXER (174)

Less: Equity conversion component B R G, (5,644)
Liability component on initial recognition at 8 January 2015 RZE—RAF—ANBVILEREZ

EEEEiln) 14,182

During the year, the Group further issued CB 2 at a total principal value
of HK$600,000,000 to its ultimate holding company, Wincon Capital
Investment Limited. The convertible bonds will mature at two years
after issuing of the convertible bonds. The detail mature dates of each
batch of issue are shown in following table at its principal amount or
can be converted into 1,818,181,818 shares at any time between the
date of issue of the convertible bonds and the maturity date at the
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.33 per share.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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A B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

30. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 30. AIRIRES (&)
Notes: (Continued) s (88)

@  (Continued) i (&)

HE_Z—R"F-A=-+-HLEFEEETL
RE TR BIRR R AR Z FTRRES T

The convertible bonds issued during the year ended 31 March 2016
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position are as

follows:
8 June 16 June 23 June 25 June 30 June 2uly 3duly 6 July 7 duly 8 July
2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 Total
“2-1%  -%-nf -%-1% -%-1%f -%-nf %-1f -%-1f C®-Rf CE-IfF %1
~ANE AATAB ARZTZR  RAZTEA AAZTH tAZR tA=R tARE tAth tANB At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000
TR AETR ABTR ABTT ABTT EETT EETT BT BT BT BETT
Cash received BhRE 30,000 35,000 35,000 60,000 20,000 20,000 50,000 70,000 120,000 160,000 600,000
Fair values of derivatve financiel fiEeRABZARE
ligbilties (note) (st 74,557 80,704 80,708 118,283 23,946 25,027 57,240 85,966 137,263 148,260 831,954
Fair values of convertible bonds issued BT RRES 2 AL E 104,557 115,704 115,708 178,283 43,946 45,027 107,240 155,966 257,263 308,260 1,431,954
Less: Euiy conversion component 1 BERERIA (B2641) 00,128 00,13 (134.439) 2933 (30412 70,702) (104813) (169573) (191,340) 093510)
Liabilty component on iital REfE ﬁﬂ NFRAL
recognition at issted date i 21916 25,576 25,576 43845 14615 14615 36,538 51,153 87,690 116920 438,444

Maturty date IR TJune 2017 15June 2017 22June 2017 24June 2017 29 June 2017 1 July 2017 2Juy 2017 5July 2017 6 July 2017 7 Juy 2017
ot S S S S < o R of S S
~ALE ~AtER AAZTZA RAZTEA RAZHAR tA-A AR tALA tArA tAtH

Note: Within the total of fair value of derivative financial liabilities above, Mzt REdfTEEmadE s A ERES
amount of approximately HK$618,633,000 has been recognised 495 %618,633,0007t 2 EBEREZE
under the “Loss arising from changes in fair value of derivative —RF=A=t+—HIEEEZAH

Bak[TTEERBELANEESE

financial liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss for the year ended 31 March 2015. The remaining amount 42 BB ] NRER - #97%81213,321,000
of approximately HK$213,321,000 was recognised under the THEEREBE_ZE—R"F=A=1+—
“Loss arising from change in the fair value of derivative financial ALtFEEzAMERR [ITTEEREE

ZARERPEEZEE] AR -

liabilities” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the
year ended 31 March 2016.

As discussed in note 29(i), 9 June 2015, 17 June 2015, 24 June 3% 20 Bt 5290 P 5 & —RFRNAN
2015, 13 July 2015 and 14 December 2015, the convertible bonds = ~:%E—£¢/\ﬂ JvJCEI . _iﬁ—ﬁﬁx\ﬁ
with total principal amounts of HK$460,000,000 were converted into —+mA- —AFEA+=BR=F—

1,393,939,391 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each at the fixed conversion
price of HK$0.33 per share.

The fair value of the convertible bonds of HK$1,431,954,000 was
valued by an independent valuer, Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, as at issue date. The convertible bonds
comprise a liability component and an equity conversion component.

The fair values of the unlisted bond component were calculated
by using a market interest rate of similar non-extendable and non-
convertible bonds. The fair values of the convertible bonds were
valued by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion component, is
included in the convertible bond-equity conversion reserve under equity
attributable to the owners of the Company.

¢+:H+EH’$$W£%%MMQQOo
To2Z AR E F DA B IR 50,337t 2 [E FE #E
{E#81% 51,393,939,301 % B IR E{E B #0.17T
ZEgmR e

AR EFH 2 A B #51,431,954,000T 7Y
BB EM P ERTCETHRBRNER
NRRETHEETHE - TRREFBES
B T M m SR AL 1

FEETEREMD Z A AETHE AR AT E )
RARMBARESR 2 SH R E - IR ES
ZAREHER B HEEERIGET G
B8 (RENEEEREN ZEE) IETA
RABGHEA NEIGREGRIR T Z AR Es—#
m R

REEEREARAQA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES 31.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax relates to the same fiscal authority. The net amounts
are as follows:

BB HRAR

87 BT 038 BIBIT 2 RIS B A BUA A
K HIRUIE B RS RS B A — 8
R R EIE AT S B B SRR FT1S
BEEEREY AT

2016 2015
—E-XHF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T ok e

Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTSHARE

The movement of net deferred income tax liabilities is as follows:

EXEFFSREBEFRIEESHMT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T

At 1 April MmA—A ~ 137
Credit to profit or loss (note 13) Mgz A (KTaE13) = (137)
At 31 March R=H=+—H - -

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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31.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

BE—FE—NFZA=F—HIFE

1. RIEFMEMEE (&)

DAT%ZIKEFE&L?‘EEFEEEE%ZE%EE

MEAE(EE) REZFHE)

years:

Unrealised

gain on

investments

Accelerated at fair value

tax  through profit
depreciation or loss Tax losses Total

i

BARE

Bl BEZREZ
mEFTE RERWREH BiER @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFIT BETT BB BETT
At 31 March 2014 RZZ-NEF=A=1+—H 297 137 (297) 137
(Crediited) charged to profit or loss RIBZ (GFA) $0k 83 (66) (154) (137)
At 31 March 2015 and 1 April 2015 R -ET—HAF=ZA=+—H 380 71 (451) -

k-_ZT-AFMA—A

(Credited) charged to profit or loss W8 (FTA) HIBR 8) 148 (140) -
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"E=ZA=+—H 372 219 (591) -

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$352,625,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$238,268,000) available for offset against future profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
approximately HK$3,582,000 (31 March 2015: HK$2,733,000) of

such losses.

No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining unused tax losses of approximately HK$349,043,000
(31 March 2015: HK$235,535,000) due to the unpredictability

of future profit streams.

Included in unrecognised tax losses

are losses of approximately HK$3,273,000 (31 March 2015:
HK$1,506,000) that will expire in the next five years. Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$1,860,000 (2015:
HK$513,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

RBERR  AEEARPAHRBERLQE

#352,625,0007T (=& —

TF=A=+—

A : 75 #038,268,0007T ) 7] 4 K $4 7k 2 &
F o Bt ik S E BT 495 13,582,0007T (=

%@_ﬂﬁziﬁ :+ H -/E
RIEETRIAEE °

52 733,0007T)

AP 7R 2R B SRR 2 N A FE R - I 4 T
TR E) BB EI8 4975 #349,043,0007T ( =

F-A4=A=+-8

1 8 235,535,000

T EREMEENIREE - RFERTIA
BREEFNARKRIFE R ZEEOEE

3,273,00070 (=& —

RE=ZA=1+—H:%

#1,506,0007T ) ° E i jE518 7] M PR HR 45 82 -

R EBRR - ANEE A A0 R E
BE4) 75 1,860,000 (ZFE— A F B
513,0007T ) ° BT K A] gL JE1S FE AR A i )
AAREEAT R R R W ERE A
AR E R E R MR IEEE -

BEE

ERERRAR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016

31.

32.

B2 T NF=ZF=+—HIFE

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of
the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$2,098,000
(2015: nil) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP AS LESSEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of renting of premises which fall due
as follows:

31.

32.

BRIEFTEH A E ()
BEBECEMEHRZEZ BZTENF—A—A
FEFE P KB A R REUE M SR 2B A
BURTENRL - W RN E H B HRER AR FE
BB A Al 2 REHE 498 %2,098,0007T (=
T-AF EELZEREB2ELERIE
B BE  REARAEEEMITHZEEE
EHoBENERZSYREES TR

WA E R SR B -
R E AR

AEBERFEBEA

R|BEIR - AEE Y EHEREA A
HREMREMARARZIN 2 HERE
RIEAYE HEERINT

2016 2015

—E-XRE e — R4

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BET T BT

Within one year R—FRA 6,995 7,902
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFAN(BEEMTREEBEEA) 3,848 4,400
10,843 12,302

The above lease commitments only include commitments for
basic rentals, and do not include commitments for additional
rental payable (contingent rents), if any, which are to be generally
determined by applying pre-determined percentages to sales less
the basic rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to
determine in advance the amount of such additional rentals.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EEEAEEREEAES AL ATE
ERENENES (KBERE) (MA) 2%
B 2R RERBEECALETE
DHREHE 2 EAEEMEE Bt T
AEErETARBINES 22



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=+—HIFZ

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 21 September
2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to its employees, the directors and other selected participants
for their contributions to the Group and to encourage them to
contribute further to the development of the Group so as to
enhance value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The total number of shares in respect of which options might
be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of shareholders’ approval of the Scheme (the
“Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10% limit was renewed, at
the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of the Scheme
Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares which
might be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other
share option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number
of shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The number of shares in respect of which options might be
granted to any individual in any one year was not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company then in issue, without
prior approval from the shareholders in general meeting.

Each grant of options to any director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company. Where any grant of options
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director or any of their respective associates would result in the
shares of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise
of options already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1%
of the Company’s issued share capital and with a value in
excess of HK$5,000,000 in the 12-month period up to the date
of such grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days from the date
of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option might be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any
time during the effective period of the Scheme to be notified by
the board of directors which shall not be later than 10 years from
the date of grant.

33. U AER 2N

—IEBEEAE ([ZABDRER=-F
—ZFNAZ T RBRBZRABRERRK
W EBREMIARERER BEFEUREMA
Bz2REERRFAAKERE ZERBEL
B 2R WE B R E AR E R
BE REMESARR ARG ZEE:
fEmEARARE2ERRIESE-

IR %A 8 A E A AT & AT 2 AR
BZBRMDAHTBEBARRNBIRILE
At BlE R B #ITRM 210% ([ 8% #
FRE) IR EE S REREE
B WEZ10%RBEEHE 2 RE - FARE
et 8 MM E MBS e BB ER R
1T 2 P A RIEATIE 2 R T(E M 31T
ZBRZBRNERE  TNEHBBARE T RE %
1T 21D 8L 230% °

AEBERNBEERARE 2 F R REA—
BFER FERER AL ZBRERN 2 A
THREBBERARADETRNZ1% -

BTHRAES FZ2TBABXFERR 2
B—EREHELARRARZEIENTE
EHE - WEMEZERRIBIIERTES
SEESEEABEATRL ZEMER
B 2SR EEERELAEETZ@AR
BRI RATE B R R 2 B AR T 1T
Kt TE8AIT 2 RN TR BBARR R B EIT
IR AR 20.1% K {8 8 8 8 74 #5,000,0007T
SLRERR B AR N R 2 IR R B LR -

R RBAEANE h AR 21 B AL ER
BREXMEBEBAITARRER T 2 BERE-
BB AT AR IR AL AT BUGRN S% T 81 2 B A
[RATASEITE EFSHRUEBHRE
HAE  BRABRNSERN R L BHERS 1
o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

The exercise price was determined by the directors of the
Company, and would not be less than the highest of the closing
price of the Company’s share on the date of grant, the average
closing price of the share on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant,
and the nominal value.

Details of specific categories of options granted under the share
option scheme are as follows:

33. U AR 2N AX (&)

TEERBRARAZESEE B TIRA
RABORE L BHZ W HE - ARB D
REER DA AEEXRBEE BN
ZFHWHmERARBRN ZEE L&D
ERE-

HRIB R AT 81 th 8045 TE 18 R RO BB IR iE =
BT

Fair value Fair value
at grant date for Fair value at grant date for
employees and  at grant date for directors and

Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price consultants employees employees
EERER EER ESRES
REHAH it B EIH R A

BEAH BEH s f1EE WAR DRE HoAE

19 April 2013 Note 19 April 2013 to 18 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17

ZT-=4NmA+NA Mzt ZZ-ZENATIBE 10,3757 BE0.127T w0127 BE0ATTL
ZT-\§WA+NRB

26 April 2013 Note 26 April 2013 to 25 April 2018 HK$0.375 HK$0.12 HK$0.12 HK$0.17

ZT-Z4MAZ+RA Btk ZZ-ZHWMAZ+RAE 0,375 B2 BB BBOATT
“Z-\FWAZ+hA

3 February 2015 Note 3 February 2015 to 2 February 2020 HK$0.477 HK$0.19 HK$0.19 HK$0.19

—Z-1F-A=A i “Z-R%-f=RE BE04TTT 50197 EB0.197T B9
—T-FF-ACH

11 November 2015 Note 11 November 2015 to 10 November 2020 HK$0.638 HK$0.27 - -

ZZ-REt-At-A (i3 ZE-REt-At-HE B #0.6387 027 - -
ZZZTE+-ATH

28 December 2015 Note 28 December 2015 to 27 December 2020 HK$0.792 HK$0.35 - HK$0.35

ZZ-REFZAZTAR MR ZZ-RETZAZTN\RE BE0.7927T #0357 - #0357
“ECRES AR

Note: BIaE

In accordance with the terms of the Scheme, these share options were vested
at the date of grant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FF

33. U AR 2N AX (&)

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share

options held by directors, employees and consultants during the
year end 31 March 2016:

TEREBEES RELERMFHNARRERE
BERBE T R"EF=ZA=t—BILFE

Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Transferred Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the during the  at 31 March
2015 year year year year 2016
R-B-1% R-B-R%
A—B =A=+-H
Option type mRER i R AT B FRRH ERTRE ERRK FRER e RAT 8
(note a)
CEDY

Directors =
19 April 2013 —E-=¥MmA+NA 44,050,000 - - - - 44,050,000
26 April 2013 ZZT-ZfMA=+A 1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000 -
3 February 2015 —Z-n¥-A=AH 25,000,000 - - - - 25,000,000
28 December 2015 “Z-AFTZAZ A - 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000

Employees B8
19 April 2013 —T-=%MA+NA 7,125,000 - - - - 7,125,000
26 April 2013 ZZ-ZF¥MA=+XA 3,000,000 - - (1,000,000) - 2,000,000
3 February 2015 —Z-R¥-AR=A 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000

Consultants G
19 April 2013 ZE-=FfMmA+NHA 33,875,000 - - - - 33,875,000
26 April 2013 —T-=fMA=+A 12,000,000 - (1,800,000) - 1,000,000 11,200,000
3 February 2015 —Z-R¥-A=A 102,000,000 - (15,000,000) - - 87,000,000
11 November 2015 I e s B = - 50,000,000 - - - 50,000,000
28 December 2015 ZE-RF+ZAZFNH - 275,460,000 - - - 275,460,000
233,050,000 330,460,000  (16,800,000) (1,000,000) - 545,710,000

Exercisable at the end of the ~ LA 174

year 545,710,000
Weighted average exercise ~ INEFI{TH (B HK$A % HKS#E & HK$ & HK$ & % HK$# %
price 0.4337C 0.7697T 0.4667C 0.4337¢ - 0.6357C

REEEREARAQA
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — %

—NFZRA=+—HIFE

on 26 April 2013 was resigned on 30 April 2015.

(b)  The Company have received notices of exercise of share
option from its employee and a director of the Company on 30
March 2015, the ordinary shares were issued accordingly after
the reporting period.

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.83
(2015: HK$0.68).

During the year ended 31 March 2016, options were granted on
11 November 2015 and 28 December 2015 (2015: 3 February
2015). The estimated fair values of the options granted on
those grant dates were approximately HK$13,603,000 and
HK$97,159,000 (2015: HK$26,989,000) respectively and was
determined by using the Binomial Model.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES 33. DA fn 2 E 8 2 A 5 X ()
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share TREEEE RBEMBERREZ_Z—1A
options held by directors, employees and consultants during the FoZA=+—HUEFEFEZARATERE
year ended 31 March 2015: a5
Outstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
at 1 April during the during the during the  at 31 March
2014 year year year 2015
R-Z-mE —Z-1F
A—H =ZA=+-H
Option type HERR i RATHE FREH ERfTHE FREYR i R AT
Directors Bz
19 April 2013 —T-ZFMA+IH 44,050,000 - - - 44,050,000
26 April 2013 —Z-ZFMA=+H 2,500,000 - (1,000,000) - 1,500,000
3 February 2015 —hE-HA=H - 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000
Employees EE
19 April 2013 —Z-ZFMA+AIH 7,125,000 - - - 7,125,000
26 April 2013 —ET-ZFMA=+H 4,000,000 - (1,000,000) - 3,000,000
3 February 2015 —RE-A=H - 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000
Consultants B
19 April 2013 —“T-=ZFMA+IH 33,875,000 - - - 33,875,000
26 April 2013 —E-=#FMA=F"H 13,000,000 - - (1,500,000) 11,500,000
3 February 2015 —hF-A=H - 102,000,000 - - 102,000,000
104,550,000 132,000,000 (2,000,000) (1,500,000) 233,050,000
(note b)
(BtzEb)
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAIE 233,050,000
HK$5 HK$/5 HK$5 HK$5 HK$ 5 1
Weighted average exercise price MEFHITEE 0.3757C 0.4777C 0.3757C 0.3757C 0.4337C
Notes: (a) During the year ended 31 March 2016, an independent non- Wex: @ #HEZZ-—AR"F=ZA=+—HL*HF
executive director who was granted 1,000,000 Share options E R-_ZE—Z=ZFOA-_+BEER

1,000,00017 fEME < B IENVITE S
ER-ZZT—RFMNA=+HEIT-
b) ARFER-_ZE—RHE=A=+H#%
EHREEMARR —REEZITEFEE
BEiE @A AR RS B BT
ES
BRAFEEITFECBIREMS N7 Ei
Bz AR B B A 0.837L (ZF —
F B ¥0.687T) °

REBEE-_Z—XRFEF=A=1+—HILEE"
EREEN -_ZT—AFt+t—A+—HBE=
? £¢+ BABZ+NH(ZE—HF:

—EF-A=ZA)RE-RZERLHA
Hﬁ%%zﬁﬂff%émaﬁ@ﬁﬁ E\Ji’mlﬁf%
13,603,0007T M # #97,159,0007T ( =
—hE: 5%%1%26,989,00073)jztleéiftﬁiﬂ
BT
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[ E_E-—NEFE=H=1—HIFE

33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS EXPENSES
(Continued)

The significant inputs into the Binomial Model are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2016

33. U AR 2N AX (&)

RZBEARWGAZEZHRNT

Date of grant
R AH

19 April 26 April 3 February 11 November 28 December
2013 2013 2015 2015 2015
—E-Zf —B-=f —E-RfE —E-RfE —E-IfE
mE+HAE mA=+7A —R=H +-A+-B +ZA=+NH
Share price at the grant date RELAEZRE HK$E#0.37500  HKSEH0.3750  HK$BH0.475T  HK$B 061000 HK$EH0.7707T
Exercise price per share BRTERE HK$E#0.37500  HKSE#0.37570  HK$BH047770  HK$BH0.63870  HK$EH0.7927T
Expected volatility BHREIEE 44.3% - 57% 44.3% - 57% 62.3% 56.21% 56.18%
Expected life of options TRE B RET 33-45yearst  3.3-45yearsfE 32-3.4yearsE 29vyearsF  2.9-3.3 yearsF
Expected dividend yield BHIREE 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Annual risk-free interest rate ERRF M= 02%-027%  0.17%-0.26% 0.88% 1.15% 1.02%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility
of the Company’s share price over the previous years. The
expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on
management’s best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability,
exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options were
approximately HK$110,762,000 (2015: HK$26,989,000)
which amounting to approximately HK$108,995,000, nil,
and HK$1,767,000 (2015: HK$20,741,000, HK$1,017,000
and HK$5,231,000) were to be recognised as share-based
payments expenses granted to consultants, employees and
directors respectively for the year ended 31 March 2016 with a
corresponding increase in equity.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of
the options. The variables and assumptions used in computing
the fair value of the share options are based on the Company’s
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

TBHRE D RBA R RRENBEFEZE
LRBEEE-AEEBEEGMET RAH
ZTEHIA M H R 2 A g
TERVWETREEERERZZEMA PR

o
=

PR EEREZ  AABEAELLEE
110,762,0007T ( ==& — R 4 : £ #26,989,000
JL) 0 #9178 #108,995,00000 C T B
1,767,0007T ( =& — R 4F : #%20,741,000
JT ~ & #1,017,0007T K& #5,231,0007T ) #4#

REBBE_Z—"FZAZT+—HLLEE
AR RIETERE EERES ARG AER
I REA S  WARREIE hniEE s o

Bz AN ETHER ZAARE T A
oAt EBRBEAEMERZEE MMRR
DERARRBZ &EME - BIREBERES
TEIBBERZITAZEMAR-
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

34. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

HONG KONG

The Group operates the MPF Scheme under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees
in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees. Under the
MPF Scheme, each of the Group companies (the “employer”)
in Hong Kong and its employees are required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Legislation.
The contributions from each of the employer and employees are
subject to a cap of HK$1,250 per month before 1 June 2014
and HK$1,500 per month, since 1 June 2014 onwards. During
the year ended 31 March 2016, the total amount contributed
by the Group to this scheme and charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss was approximately HK$171,000 (2015:
HK$313,000).

THE PRC

As stipulated by rules and regulations in the PRC, subsidiaries in
the PRC are required to contribute to a state-managed retirement
plan for all its employees at a certain percentage of the basic
salaries of its employees. The state-managed retirement plan
is defined contribution retirement plan and responsible for the
entire pension obligations payable to all retired employees. Under
the state-managed retirement plan, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or post-retirement
benefits beyond the annual contributions. During the year ended
31 March 2016, the total amount contributed by the Group to
this scheme and charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss was approximately HK$97,000 (2015: HK$87,000).
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(A) TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HI FE

3. BEABEALTZR

Details of the material transactions entered into during the

year with related parties are as follows:

R
FR BEEEALIIZERRSZ
ERCEUNNE

2016 2015
A —T-hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Ultimate holding company: S NI
Management fee paid ENEREE - 78
Related company (note): BiE N A (FFE) -
Aircraft — charter charges R — RS 1,587 809
Aircraft — other costs and expenses RE—BENHEMERK
reimbursement paid EEE] 2,351 3,422
Non-controlling interests: FEPEHI A RS
Management fee paid BENERE - 2,108

The above related party transactions were carried out in

accordance with the terms mutually agreed between the

respective parties.

Note: The related company is Trillion Winner Investment Limited
of which one of the executive directors and substantial

shareholder of the Company is the beneficial shareholder.

The aircraft — charter charges and other costs and expenses
reimbursement are charged by this related company
pursuant to the terms of the respective aircraft charter

agreement.

TMEBBEATZR S TIREBETY
FEEWTE ZIERETT -

MizE: &% BAE QR ATrillion Winner
Investment Limited (4N2 & 2 &/
—ERTEERFERFAEER
JRE) Rk — B REMERR
FXMHAZEAEARRESESE
T 197 5 2 AER R UCER o
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EHMBHRRME
For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35. BEAEATZRS (&)
(B) BALANCES (B) i aR
Details of the balances with related parties are as follows: HAERMEBEALZERFBNT
2016 2015
Name of Company NS —E—-XHF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
YT RESRIZEBR QR FY T REBRIEEBR AR
(note a) (MfzFa) 22 311
Trillion Winner Investment Limited  Trillion Winner Investment Limited
(note b) (M7Eb) 1,952 -
REEAKRELE (ARER) REEAKRELE (ERER)
(note b) (FtzFb) 241 -
2,215 311
Notes: B 5
@ FIMREBRKEBR AR is the company of @ FNMREEBREERAFA
which one of the executive directors and substantive RARZEP—ZHRITESRE
shareholder of the Company is the director and beneficial ERRAEERE:BREZR
shareholder. Ale
(o) Trillion Winner Investment Limited and 28 & A& E % (o)  Trillion Winner Investment
(BIRA %) are companies of which one of the executive Limited R B EE R ERZE (B
directors and substantial shareholder of the Company is RAEB)EARGZHEP—ZH
the beneficial shareholder. TEERFTERTAETZRR
NG
(©)  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on € H“AEAEER RERARE

demand.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z — &

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

BALANCES (Continued)

(i) Amounts due to a director

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

In addition to the outstanding balances with related parties
detailed above, the Group had prepayment to Trillion
Winner Investment Limited of approximately HK$2,000,000
as at 31 March 2015 (2016: nil), which were included in
debtors, deposits and prepayments. During the year ended
31 March 2015, the maximum amount outstanding due
to Trillion Winner Investment Limited outstanding were
approximately HK$2,000,000 (2016: HK$2,000,000).

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The emoluments of the directors and other members of key
management during the year were disclosed in note 12.

ACQUISITION OF THE ADDITION INTEREST
IN A SUBSIDIARY

On 11 January 2016, the Group acquired the remaining
37.5% of the issued share capital of Ease Main Limited
from Joy Well Investments Limited at a consideration
of approximately HK$92,922,000. An amount of
approximately HK$51,296,000 remained unsettled as at 31
March 2016. Details of the acquisition of additional interest
of the subsidiary are disclosed in note 38.

BHMBHRME

—NFZA=+—HIFE

35. EEBALTZRS (&)

(B)

(¢

(D)

ek (E)
(i) BF—BFEFERE
FHEAEIER B RERE

SKEFEE -
B Xt zEEBEEALTZHE
RKEEEHIN NZZE—HF=A

=+—B  R&EEA A Tilion Winner
Investment Limited 2 FXTH 49 /8 &
2,000,00070 (=& —/"F &) - 78
REFABRWER FHiEe REN

RBEN-BE_Z—AF=-A=+—
B IEFE & R EETrillion Winner
Investment LimitedZ KT8 E R 4 A&
7 12,000,0007T (ZF — R F B
2,000,0007T,) °

FTEEEAEBZ#HE

FANEERTEEBABZEMKE
2SR 12 EE -

W is — BB AR 2 BEMER

RZTE—R"F—A+—H KAEEMU
R B 4978 #92,922,0007T 6] Joy Well
Investments Limited 4% i 2 BE G IR A A
EBITRAZHB TI7.56% e N =
T—RNEZA=Z+—H EHBE
51,296,000 T ) A & 1+ - B B UL B Y
BRI IMER 2 5B M FE38 I K

e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  36. ANA BB fEAr R &

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment = K 22 1 1,815 3,370
Interests in subsidiaries TG =N 248,470 155,087
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEESMEE 22,355 29,592
Non-current deposits and prepayments EMBFH IS RIENHIA 1,838 1,813
274,478 189,862
Current assets REBEE
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EUERFR - FHiRe MBI FIE 7,532 5,535
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NN 419,029 223,853
Derivative financial instruments TEemIA - 1,321
Cash and cash equivalents BehIREZEY 4,041 52,135
430,602 282,844
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHIE A BIRIE 56,122 24,437
Creditors, deposits and accruals JENEREF T AL E NIEIRE A 59,244 5,317
Derivative financial instruments TETRIA = 618,633
115,366 648,387
Net current assets (liabilities) RBEE (BE)FE 315,236 (365,543)
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 589,714 (175,681)
Capital and reserves AR E
Share capital & A< 49,358 33,046
Reserves (note a) ffE (Hska) 424,942 (286,644)
Total equity MR 474,300 (253,598)
Non-current liability FREBEE
Convertible bonds AR (& 5 115,414 77,917
589,714 (175,681)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

BE-F—AE=A=F—AILFE

For the year ended 31 March 2016

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

36. ANA R FSAR R &R (&)

COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES (A) fEfE
Convertible
bonds
Capital Share - equity
Share Contributed redemption option conversion  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves reserve losses Total
TRRES
EAERE -REER
R EE HABH 1 BRERE i ZHER ag
(notes i & i)
(P &Fi &ii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT BB
At 1 April 2014 RZZ-NERA—-A 310,376 55,215 14 15,225 108,424 (95,881) 393,373
Loss for the year FABE - - - - (712,650) (712,650
Issue of convertiole bonds BBRRES-ERERDN
~ equity conversion (Ft3%30)
component (note 30) - - - 5,644 - 5,644
Recognition of equity-settled AEEB N EZEEIRN A
share based payments ERI0 (B 3E33)
vested (note 33) - - 26,989 - - 26,989
Share options exercised (note 33) 778 E (ff3£33) 290 - - (290) - - -
Share options forfeited R R - - (177) - 177 -
At 31 March 2015 R_ZE-HE=A=1-H 310,666 55,215 14 41,747 114,068 (808,354) (286,644)

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4—HIFZ

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (Continued)
(A) RESERVES (Continued)

36. ANA R FSAR R R (&)

(A) B (@)

Convertible
bonds Retained
Capital Share - equity profits
Share Contributed redemption option conversion  (accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserves reserve losses) Total
TARES
EAEE BRE -REER REET
R EE HABH & B B (R EER) )
(notes i & i)
(P &Fi &ii)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT LS BETT BETT BETT BETT BB
At 1 April 2015 RZZ-RENA-A 310,666 55,215 14 41,747 114,068 (808,354) (286,644)
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - - (609,655) (609,655)
Issue of convertiole bonds BBRRES-ERERDN
~ equity conversion (Ft3%30)
component (note 30) - - - - 993,510 - 993,510
Issue of shares upon conversion of ME R R EHERTRE
convertible bonds (note 29) (Fit&E29) 1,312,596 - - - (908,059) - 404,537
Recognition of equity-settled REGEZNEREEURA A
share based payments EREI (H3E33)
vested (note 33) - - - 110,762 - - 110,762
Repurchased of ordinary shares ~ Z#EEEE (195,960) - - - - - (195,960)
Share options exercised (note 33) 77 {5 A (Fi13£33) 11,654 - - (3.262) - - 8,392
Share option forfeited R - - - (118) - 118 -
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=A=1+-H 1,438,956 55,215 14 149,129 199,519 (1,417,891) 424,942
Notes: (T

(i) As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the contributed surplus
of approximately HK$6,226,000 represents the difference
between the fair value of net assets of subsidiaries acquired

and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for

the acquisition and HK$48,989,000 represents the amount
being transferred from share capital and share premium as

distributable reserve.

(i) As at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the contributed surplus
of approximately HK$48,989,000 represents the amount
being transferred from share capital and share premium as

distributable reserve.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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A BARBSBRLE6,226,000 T FTIR
BB ARLFEEZ AAEERAN ARG
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5 1548,989,0007T 18 B IR AR B Ik 1 5 (B
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FEA R B inm BE R AR DIRFEE LS
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306.

37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

(A) RESERVES (Continued)

Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is
available for distribution to shareholders.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

EXERCISE OF SHARE OPTIONS

Subsequent to the end of the year, on 20 May 2016 and 23
May 2016, options were exercised to subscribe for 8,430,000
and 10,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each at a price of HK$0.375 per share at a consideration of
approximately HK$3,161,000 and HK$3,750,000 respectively
in which all the consideration was credited to share capital and
share premium.

REPURCHASE AND CANCELLATION OF ISSUED
SHARES

Subsequent to the end of the report period, the Group
repurchased 30,615,000 of its own shares through the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange as follows:

36.

37.

RAPIFBEARAEK (&)

fdt ¥ (40)
REBRE-NN—FRAE (EE
A1) ADRZBABBAHES IR T
Ho

(A)

s MR =R

ﬁﬁ&%

REHBR R-B—AFAEA-TER
SR AEEACTZA WEEEES

A SR B #0.375 L 2 B8 D B R B
8,430,0000% £.10,000,000% & & ml & /5 1
0.01TCZ A RRIE B - REH B RBE
3,161,0007T & 7% #3,750,00070 - A Fr A
REDEFTARAR R EE -

BORFEHSHTRND

RBERE NEEEBBE B ZTE
[6130,615,0000x B & 2 IRH 0T

Price per share

BRE®

No. of ordinary Aggregate
shares of consideration
HK$0.01 each Highest Lowest paid

SREE

BH0.01 T2
Month of repurchase BE A5 ERREHE =3 BiK EHERE
HK$'000 HK$ HKS HK$'000
BT T B B BT T
April 2016 —T-RFONA 27,465 0.69 0.65 18,607
May 2016 —E—-RFhHA 3,150 0.67 0.65 2,070
30,615 20,677

The above shares were cancelled on 8 June 2016.

FHBEHERZE—RNFENANBTH-

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERWME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F—NF=H=+—HIFE

37. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. REHIEE1E
(Continued)
SUBSEQUENT CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF REB LERTFBE LT Z2RAHFS
THE EQUITY SECURITIES LISTED IN HK AND ZAREBEEEEE

SHANGHAI, THE PRC

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, there was a R|ERE - REE - EERFELEDZ
significant decline in the fair value of certain equity securities #:FJ&Z’X E#Z ATLEEREAR TR R
listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC. The total unrealised EEM ANEEHELEZAEREBRRE
loss arising from changes in fair value is approximately '77%’%%46 922,0007T °

HK$46,922,000 as at report date.

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. XX
OF THE COMPANY

b\

NCGEEA PN pA=T

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZE-—RERZFT—RHF=H=1+—8H"
2016 and 2015 are as follows: RAREEZMEBR TZ.#IEJZDT:
Place or
country of Issued and
incorporation/ paid up
establishment/ Class of share capital/  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations shares register capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
HREL/ BEAR
R/ &% HRRE/ AREEEZ
AAEH FER REGER dMER  RGHA FEREERREELY TREH
2016 2015
“E-XF Z2-31F

Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
EE k4 B B

% % % %
Dingyi Group (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 1 - 100 - 100  Investment holding
HEEE (ZR)ERAT 3 il BT REER
Dingyi Resources Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 1 - 100 - 100 Investment holding
SEERARRA 3 £ BRI REER
RESE(RINRETHERRA The PRC N/A Registered capital of N/A - 100 - 100 Investment acvisory service and
RMB50,000,000 and metal trading
paid-up capital of
RMB22,082,000
HE TER AR TER REZARBRLEE
AR #50,000,0007C &
BRRE
AR #22,082,0007
FTRAREZERERARA The PRC N/A Registered and paid-up N/A - 100 - 100 Restaurant
capital of RMB500,000
PE TER BNE Ve TER iE
AR¥500,0007
Dingyi (North America) Limited The BVI N/A US$1 1 100 - - - Investment holding
(note i)
ABRAAE TR 1ET (WD) REER

200 DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ElZ2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. RARIFEMNB AT ZFIE (8)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March RZE—RNERZZTE—RF=A=+—H"
2016 and 2015 are as follows: (Continued) AAREBMBARIZEFBWOT : (K)
Place or
country of Issued and
incorporation/ paid up
establishment/ Class of share capital/  Number of Proportion of ownership interest
Name of company operations shares register capital shares and voting power held by the Company Principal activities
EMEL/ BETR
Aa-£3:1 ] HRBRE/ rARKEZ
RAEB FEX REGER &R RGEA FERRERREELA TEXHE
2016 2015
“E-RF —Z-%%
Directly Indirectly  Directly Indirectly
E& GE3 EE GE:3
% % % %
Dingyi North America Seattle LLC The USA N/A US$1 1 - 100 - - Investment holding
(note )
e TEn e k) REER
Easy Prestige Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100  Investment holding and loan
financing
ERERAT RERAES iR E REBRRENRE
(Golden Season International Limited The BVI Ordinary US§1 1 - 100 - 100  Securities trading and trading of
wine
SZBERERAA EERAES £l 1T EFEERERER
Ease Main Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1,000 1,000 - 100 - 62.5  Investment holding and securities
(note i) trading
RAERAT EERLES £l 1,000% 7T (i) REARREFEE
Dingyi Financial Services Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$1 1 - 100 - 100  Loan financing
Investment Limited
RELRBBRABRAT i g BEATL EXRE
REER(RINBEREERAA The PRC N/A Registered capital N/A - 100 - 100 Financial leasing
of RMBB800,000,000
and paid-up capital of
RMB85,700,000
PE TER HTER TR RERE
AR 800,000,000
R R
AR 85,700,007
Xumao Ventures Limited The BVI Ordinary US$1 1 - 100 - 100  Inactive
TREEIRARRR RERLES R E TEXK
Notes: B 5 -
(i) Dingyi (North America) Limited and Dingyi North America Seattle LLC (i) Dingyi (North America) Limited }2Dingyi North
were newly established during the year ended 31 March 2016. America Seattle LLCREZ T — R F=A

=+—HILFERL-

BEERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
EHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #Z -F— N NF=H=4+—HIFEZ

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38.
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii) On 11 January 2016, the Group acquired the remaining 37.5% of
the issued share capital of Ease Main Limited at a consideration of
approximately HK$92,922,000. Ease Main Limited is engaged in
the Investment holding and securities trading business. The effect of

N

=

li

ARBEBHEBARZ

B (

iy

)

onp

mE

A

MisE: (&)

(ii) R-TZ—XNF—A+—8 AEEDKEELH
BRARBEITRA 2 FEHI7.5% REAL
A}imz 922,0007T ° 2B R A RIHFHRE
% BREHFEEER WBEIMES 2 F 2

acquisition of the additional interest is summarised as follows: T
HK$'000
BT T
Carrying amount of non-controlling interests acquired BRI R 2 REE 73,756

Accrued consideration payable to non-controlling FERTRES IR E R (B

interest (51,296)
Consideration paid to non-controlling interests BT SRt 2 KB (41,626)
Excess of consideration paid recognised within equity RERAERENEIMUE (19,166)
(iii) The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the opinion (iii) FRINRARFEEREETEZEREFESE

of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other subsidiaries that
are not material to the Group. A majority of these subsidiaries operates in the
PRC, Hong Kong and the BVI. The principal activities of these subsidiaries are
summarised as follows:

HEENAEENBLR - ARREERAF
FIHMMBARENSERRERN LR

Number of subsidiaries

MEARHE
31/3/2016 31/3/2015
Principal activities Principal place of business —RE —ET—AF
TEEH TEGE Y =A=+-H =A=1-8
Inactive Hong Kong 1 1
BEER i
The BVI 1 2
REREURS
The PRC 1 1
LE
Investment holding The BVI 2 2
BEER RBREUHS
5 6

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities at the end of both years nor
at any time during both years.

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EHMBHERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FEF

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of

Place of ownership interests and
incorporation/ voting rights held by
Name operations non-controlling interests
S, FEHEERTENRERE
£ B BERREELH
2016 2015

ZE-xE —T-1%

Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong
(note i) - -

EF (B#)BRAR (MEE) BB

Ease Main Limited and its The BVI/Hong Kong/

subsidiaries (‘Ease Main The PRC

Group’) (note ii) - 37.5%
RRERDFAREMBLR RBRELES/

(FRBAKE]) (FE0) B/ HE

Individually immaterial
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests

BB R BER
EREYN:Li- G

Note:

(i) On 4 July 2014, the Group disposed of Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited
which is one of World Pointer Group Companies. The details are
disclosed in note 40.

(ii) The Group held 62.5% equity interest in Ease Main Limited, in which
Ease Main Limited held 100% equity interest of Dingyi Financial
Services Investment Limited and S EE R (ORI MEAHEBR AR,

The Group has acquired the remaining 37.5% equity interest in Ease
Main Limited on 11 January 2016 and it became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group afterwards.

38. RARIFEMB AT ZFIE (8)

BREAFEHMERNEZER
BARNFR

TRINIASE Z A EASFES MR

FEEEMBRRINFIE:
Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
BB THEMN
BENET (B8) Rt FEFMER
2016 2015 2016 2015

“E-xE -1 ZEBE-X§f =—T-h8%
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT BT BT

(143) - -

3,857 (22,808) - 69,899
- W) - _
3,857 (22,958) - 69,899

() RZZE—NFE+ANA AEERHEEF
(&HB)BR R A (World Pointere B A & 2
—) o BRI 40 FE o

(i) AERERRABRARFHO2.5%Z B M
BRAFRAFNBESBRRBKAERAF R
SEER ORI BERERRARRKAF100%
ZRHE -

REBCR-ZT—XR"F—A+—BUKRELHA
BIRARFIERI7.5%ME  HILEKARNEE
ZEREWBAF -

REEEREARAQA
ZE-REEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 &2 =F—NF=H=4+—HI FF

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. RARIFEMNB AT ZFIE (8)

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the TN EGANEE 2 A E RIS R
Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests EEMBATINMBERBE - U THBKE
is set out below. The summarised financial information below BMEEENEEANIHHATN SRR .

represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.

EASE MAIN GROUP REAEE
2015
—T—RHF
HK$’000
BET T
Current assets MEEE 257,924
Current liabilities nBaE (71,526)
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company KABRHE AEEEZR 116,499
Non-controlling interests IR H R S 69,899

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —FE—NF=H=+—HIFZ

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. RARIFEMNB AT ZFIE (8)
OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

EASE MAIN GROUP (Continued) RPFLEE (&)
2015
—T-hF
HK$'000
BT T
Revenue Wz 2,054
Other income H iU zs 1,269
Expenses s (64,143)
Loss for the year FEEE (60,820)
Loss attributable to the owners of the Company NARVEE ANEMLEE (38,012)
Loss attributable to non-controlling interests FEPEHIE R R RS B 1R (22,808)
Loss for the year FEEE (60,820)
Other comprehensive expense attributable to RARIBEEANELEMGEEER
the owners of the Company (776)
Other comprehensive expense attributable to MR EREMmEREE A
the non-controlling interests (466)
Other comprehensive expense for the year FREMEEEA (1,242)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to RARIEEBEANELIREERESE
the owners of the Company (38,788)
Total comprehensive expenses attributable to G RIELSRA BT
the non-controlling interests (23,274)
Total comprehensive expenses for the year FEHFEERES (62,062)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KERERBRESMAFRE (189,860)
Net cash outflow from investing activities WEEBERES R TFE 523
Net cash inflow from financing activities BEREFAERESMAFRE 319,913
Net cash inflow RBeRAFRE 130,576

BEERREERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ER R e

For the year ended 31 March 2016

39.

40.

PCE-ANF=ZA=F—HIFFE

CHANGES IN OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
A SUBSIDIARY THAT DO NOT RESULT IN A
LOSS OF CONTROL

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group disposed
of 37.56% of its interest in Ease Main Limited, reducing its
continuing interest to 62.5%. The proceeds on disposal of
approximately HK$93,384,000 were received in cash. An amount
of approximately HK$93,173,000 (being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net assets of Ease Main Limited
at the date of disposal) has been transferred to non-controlling
interests. The difference of approximately HK$211,000 has been
credited to other reserve.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

On 4 July 2014, the Group disposed of World Pointer Group
Companies to non-controlling interests of World Pointer Group
Companies, CL Holdings Limited, at cash consideration of
HK$25,000,000. World Pointer Group Companies are engaged
in food and beverages — restaurant and bars business. The
aggregated net assets of World Pointer Group Companies at the
date of disposal were as follows:

Consideration received:

39.

40.

3 — B B2 2 P A 25 2
B (3 MM EEUE AR

RBE-Z-AF=A=+—RALEFE &
SEBEERNRABERAFIT6%2

B ERESHIRE62.5% - HE BB 2 ATE
FRIBH) 193,384,000t BRI Wrs o A
HH)7E03,173,0007L 2 FIAE (BRI & B
MR PIEGRAER AR EEFECR
HE) DEZETIEEG MR  ZEABE
211,0007C E 5T A E A & 4 ©

HENB R A

RZZE—NFLtANA AEEERRSNR
{84 %25,000,0007T [AIWorld Pointerss B2
7]z FE 4 # 28 CL Holdings Limited
EWorld Pointerfs B2 7 - World Pointerfe
B QR EER— 2R MBE R World
Pointerse B AR N E HEl 2 EE FERE
UNNE

EWRE:

HK$’000
BT

Cash received

EWHRE

25,000

DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemen}s
AHE B R EME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #EZE - E—NF=H=4+—HIFZF

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued) 40. HEMEB R A (4)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was KERFEZEEREBD T
lost:

HK$'000

BT
Plant and equipment %= K& 3,068
Intangible asset (note a) mILEE (M5Ta) -
Inventories FE 799
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEW R - FH iR R IB(T FRIE 3,283
Amounts due from related parties e B i A T RRER 768
Cash and cash equivalents HeMBESEEY 12,021
Creditors, deposits and accruals JERERER FAKRSRIERER (6,746)
Amounts due to related parties JET B B A T RRAR (3,136)
Amounts due to non-controlling interests JE AT FEHZE Il 1 i 25 BR K (28,756)
Net assets disposed of HEZEEFRE (18,699)
Gain on disposal of World Pointer Group Companies: i EWORLD POINTERE B 2 7] 2 W & :

HK$'000

BT
Consideration received B E 25,000
Put option receivable recognised in prior year (note b) RBEFERER < BIEREGEIE (MiFEb) (25,000)
Net liabilities disposed of HECZBEFHE 18,699
Non-controlling interests FEFE B 1 A 5 (9,137)
Gain on disposal &z = 9,562
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEELEZEHERAFEH:

HK$'000

BT T
Cash consideration BeRE 25,000
Less: bank balance and cash disposed of W EZRITESRLES (12,021)

12,979

SEEEREERAT
—g-—neey 207



208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SHHAFRERME

For the year ended 31 March 2016 #ZE —E—NF=H=4+—HIFZ

40. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

Notes:

(@) On 21 December 2010, World Pointer Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and its former fellow subsidiary, as non-
controlling interests of the World Pointer Group Companies, entered
into an option agreement pursuant to which (i) the former fellow
subsidiary irrevocably and unconditionally granted to World Pointer
Limited an option to sell all but not part of its 51% interest in the
issued share capital of the World Pointer Group Companies to the
former fellow subsidiary during the period from 1 January 2013 to
31 December 2013 at a cash consideration of HK$25,000,000 (the
“WP Put Option”); and (i) World Pointer Limited irrevocably and
unconditionally granted to the former fellow subsidiary an option to
sell all but not part of its 49% interest in the issued share capital
of the World Pointer Group Companies to World Pointer Limited
during the period from 1 January 2014 to 15 January 2014 at a cash
consideration of HK$24,019,608 provided that World Pointer Limited
has not exercised its option described in (i).

The Group recognised the WP Put Option as derivative financial asset.
As 31 March 2013, the fair value of WP Put Option was reassessed
at HK$25,000,000 and a gain on fair value change of approximately
HK$38,000 was recognised under “Gain arising from changes in fair
value of derivative financial assets, net” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2013.

As disclosed in note 14, on 30 December 2013, World Pointer Limited
issued a Notice to the former fellow subsidiary that the World Pointer
Limited would exercise the WP Put Option to sell all but not part of its
51% interest in the issued share capital of the World Pointer Group
Companies to the former fellow subsidiary. The Notice has a six-month
notice period which will expire on 30 June 2014, and the completion
of the sale and purchase of the WP Option Shares has taken place
on 4 July 2014. As at 31 March 2014, the WP Put Option had been
exercised and derecognised. Other receivable of HK$25,000,000 is
recognised due to the existence of the contractual right to receive the
disposal consideration of HK$25,000,000 as at 31 March 2014.

41. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2016, convertible bonds with
principal amounts of HK$100,000,000 and HK$480,000,000
were converted into 454,545,453 and 1,454,545,451 ordinary
shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each at the fixed conversion
price of HK$0.22 and HK$0.33 per share respectively.
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